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UBIQUITI NETWORKS, INC.
PART |
Note About Forward-Looking Statements

” ” o ” o " ow T

When used in this Report, the words “anticipatébélieves,” “could,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “expects’ “intends,” “may,” “plans”

“potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “should,” “wil 1,” “would” or similar expressions and negatives tifose terms are intended to identify
forward-looking statements. These are statements thaer&édafuture periods and include statements abaufuture results, sources of
revenue, our continued growth, our gross margireket trends, our product development, technoldgiezelopments, the features, benefits
and performance of our current and future produtts, ability of our products to address a varietyrarkets, the anticipated growth of
demand for connectivity worldwide, our growth stgies, future price reductions, our competitivaustaour dependence on our senior
management and our ability to attract and retaiy kersonnel, dependency on and concentration ofimtiibutors, our employee relations,
current and potential litigation, the effects ofugonment regulations, our compliance with laws agglilations, our expected future operating
costs and expenses and expenditure levels forngsaad development, selling, general and admiaiste expenses, fluctuations in operating
results, fluctuations in our stock price, our paymef dividends, our future liquidity and cash ngeour credit facility, future acquisitions of
and investments in complimentary businesses anexiected impact of various accounting policies ands adopted by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board. Forwelooking statements are subject to risks and umadeties that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those projected. These risks anceutainties include, but are not limited to, fad@ffecting our quarterly results, our ability
to manage our growth, our ability to sustain orr@ase profitability, demand for our products, otnilay to compete, our ability to rapidly
develop new technology and introduce new prodectsability to safeguard our intellectual propertyends in the networking industry and
fluctuations in general economic conditions, anel isks set forth throughout this Report, includingler Item 1“Business” and under

Item 1A/Risk Factors.” These forward-looking statementgak only as of the date hereof. We expressly disaay obligation or
undertaking to release publicly any updates orsmris to any forward-looking statements containeickim to reflect any change in our
expectations with regard thereto or any changeviergs, conditions or circumstances on which any statement is based.

This Report also contains estimates and other médion concerning our industry, including marketesand growth rates, which are based on
industry publications, surveys and forecasts, idirig those generated by Gartner and Cisco SystimsThis information involves a number
of assumptions and limitations, and you are cawibnot to give undue weight to these estimateseTinelustry publications, surveys and
forecasts generally indicate that their informatibas been obtained from sources believed to bahieli The industry in which we operate
subject to a high degree of uncertainty and risk thua variety of factors, including those desaililbeder Iltem 1A. "Risk Factors."

The Gartner Report described herein, or the "GartReport,” represent data, research opinion or \pents published, as part of a syndica
subscription service, by Gartner and are not repreations of fact. The Gartner Report speaks dis afriginal publication date (and not as of
the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K) areldpinions expressed in the Gartner Report areexiip change without notice.

Item 1. Business

Business Overview

Ubiquiti Networks develops high performance netvimgktechnology for service providers and entergrisgur technology platforms focus on
delivering highly-advanced and easily deployabletsans that appeal to a global customer base d@erserved and underpenetrated markets.
Our differentiated business model has enabled bssi@mk down traditional barriers such as high pebdmd network deployment costs and ¢
solutions with disruptive price-performance chagastics. This differentiated business model, carabiwith our innovative proprietary
technologies, has resulted in an attractive alter#o traditional high touch, higbest providers, allowing us to advance the mardleption o
our platforms for ubiquitous connectivity.

We offer a broad and expanding portfolio of netviregkproducts and solutions for service providerd enterprises. Our service provider
product platforms provide carrier-class networkasfructure for fixed wireless broadband, wireleaskhaul systems and routing. Our
enterprise product platforms provide wireless LA astructure, video surveillance products, andhireeto-machine communication
components. We believe that our products are hidiflgrentiated due to our proprietary softwaretpool innovation, firmware expertise, and
hardware design capabilities. This differentiatadlows our portfolio to meet the demanding perfanggrequirements of video, voice and datz
applications at prices that are a fraction of thaféered by our competitors.
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As a core part of our strategy, we have developdifferentiated business model for marketing aritingehigh volumes of carrier and
enterprise-class communications platforms. Ourrtassi model is driven by a large, growing and higingaged community of service
providers, distributors, value added resellersiesys integrators and corporate IT professionalschwve refer to as the Ubiquiti Community
our Community. The Ubiquiti Community is a criticelement of our business strategy as it enablés disve:

* Rapid customer and community driven product devetmmt.We have an active, loyal community built from oustomers that we
believe is a sustainable competitive advantage.sblttions benefit from the active engagement betwtbe Ubiquiti Community and
our development engineers throughout the produaldpment cycle, which eliminates long and expemsiultistep internal processes
and results in rapid introduction and adoption wf products. This approach significantly reducesdmyvelopment costs and time to
market.

e Scalable sales and marketing modWe do not currently have, nor do we plan to hirdiract sales force, but instead utilize the
Ubiquiti Community to drive market awareness anchded for our products and solutions. This commupitypagated viral marketing
enables us to reach underserved and underpenetnat&dts far more efficiently and cost-effectivétan is possible through traditional
sales models. Leveraging the information transparefithe Internet allows customers to researchluate and validate our solutions
with the Ubiquiti Community and via third party weltes. This allows us to operate a scalable saldsnarketing model and
effectively create awareness of our brand and mtsdiVord of mouth referrals from the Ubiquiti Comnmity generate high quality
leads for our distributors at relatively little ¢os

e Self-sustaining product support.The engaged members of the Ubiquiti Community tenabled us to foster a large, cost efficient,
highly-scalable and, we believe, self-sustainingima@ism for rapid product support and disseminatfanformation.

By reducing the cost of development, sales, margedind support we are able to eliminate tradititmainess model inefficiencies and offer
innovative solutions with disruptive price performea characteristics to our customers.

Our revenues were $320.8 million , $353.5 milliovd &197.9 million in the fiscal years ended Jung2B0.3 , 2012 and 201 Yespectively. W
had net income of $80.5 million , $102.6 milliorda$49.7 million in the fiscal years ended June2®1,3 , 2012 and 2011 , respectively. In this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, we refer to the fispadrs ended June 30, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 as 2@tal, fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 ,
respectively.

Industry Overview

Internet traffic worldwide has grown rapidly in ezt years, driven by an increase in the numbesefs) increasing mobility of those users anc
high bandwidth applications, such as video, autlmjd-based applications, online gaming and soabihorking. According to Cisco Visual
Networking Index, global Internet protocol, or tRffic is expected to increase from 30,734 petafydr PB, per month in 2011 to 110,282
per month in 2016, representing a 29% CAGR overpghaod. Wired networking solutions have tradititip been used to address increasing
consumer and enterprise bandwidth needs. Howehehigh initial capital requirements and ongoingmaging costs and long market lead
times associated with building and installing isfracture for wired networks has severely limitee widespread deployment of these netw

in underserved and underpenetrated markets. Wéralketsvorks are emerging as an attractive altem#bivaddressing both the broadband
access needs of underserved and underpenetratketsniarboth emerging and developed countries.

Underserved and underpenetrated markefBhere exists a significant market opportunitypath emerging and developed economies. In
“unconnected” emerging markets, the lack of antdistaed network infrastructure and the high iniiaployment costs associated with
traditional wired network infrastructure build-oltas encouraged adoption of wireless networkinggtfucture. In “under-connectediarkets
bandwidth demand exceeds either the available @ggeam existing infrastructure or the affordalslepply of new infrastructure, resulting in
an attractive market opportunity for wireless systdo bolster connectivity. Additionally, we beleethere is a large market opportunity in
connected markets serving customers that wantgimgeeliable, scalable and customizable wirelestsvorks and whose primary buying
criterion is based on price-performance charadtesis

Limitation of existing solutions. Existing service provider wireless networkingheologies have been developed to satisfy the istrga
demand for broadband access, support mobility aoige the performance and reliability demandeabstomers. According to Gartner,
aggregate end-user spending on wireless netwoddngpment for Enterprise WLAN, wireless broadbaodess, and LTE solutions, is
expected to grow from $10.4 billion in 2012 to thillion in 2017, representing a CAGR of 32%. Hoee these existing solutions based
upon wired, satellite or cellular technologiesgaffail to meet the
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price-performance requirements of fixed wirelessvoeking in emerging markets, rural markets, ocefsensitive markets, which in turn has
led to low penetration of wireless broadband aceesslarge populations of unaddressed users ie treas. Within the enterprise, existing
WLAN deployments are often relatively complex amdtty, providing customers with a large number afaritical features and functionaliti

at a high cost. Given the growth in Internet coneedevices, and the consumer’s desire for constamiectivity, there exists growing demand
for WLAN solutions that provide critical featuressagnificantly lower cost than existing solutions.

Increasing use of the unlicensed spectrt. In the absence of affordable broadband acce$eilicensed spectrum, the number of users of th
unlicensed radio frequency, or RF spectrum hagasad for communications equipment, as well asutnaesdevices such as cordless phones
baby monitors and microwave ovens. This increagBggof unlicensed RF spectrum has made providigly duiality wireless networking more
challenging due to increasing congestion in thécensed spectrum.

Government incentives for broadband accesSovernments around the world are increasinglintakoth regulatory and financial steps to
expand access to broadband networks and increagdelality of advanced broadband services to coressmand businesses.

To provide robust wireless networks that meet teepperformance needs of service providers anerprises, vendors of wireless networking
solutions must address the problems facing incutrdeations:

» Poor performance. To deliver high performance, wireless networksodutions need to satisfy diverse performance requénts for
video, voice and data. The challenges of operatiriige unlicensed RF spectrum, including spectromserand interference resulting
from the proliferation of devices, often resultifficulty establishing network connections andeliable or poor performance.
Additionally, the performance and reliability ofisting wireless networking solutions decline rapids the number of subscribers and
range of service delivery increases. Lack of hardvead software integration between products, telcigies and vendor devices can
diminish network performance significantly and ie&se the complexity of network management, integrand expansion.

» High cost of ownershif. Existing alternative solutions, such as fibetHe-premises, cable, DSL, WiIMAX, LTE and traditibna
backhaul, provide high capacity, high performanaabiband access; however, these solutions canttesety costly, and often do not
meet the demanding price-performance requireméntaderserved markets.

« Complexity. Existing alternative solutions are often diffictd deploy and manage and require skilled empleyedigh cost
consultants to install and operate. In additionsteng enterprise solutions often offer a largeiefgrof features and functionalities that
enterprise customers may find overwhelming or uassary.

e Lack of product support and customr-driven featuresProduct support and feedback for alternative sepgliwvireless networking
solutions is often costly and ineffective. Existingeless solutions are not accompanied by dyngmuduct support to assist customers
in efficiently setting up and troubleshooting theatworks. Additionally, alternative suppliers gally lack an effective mechanism to
communicate with their end-users and incorporagdifack from usage into product roadmaps.

Our Solution

Our products and solutions enable both serviceigens and enterprises to deploy the infrastrucimrdigh performance, scalable and reliable
wireless networks cost effectively. Our wirelessamrking solutions offer the following key benefits

» High performance proprietary technology solution Our proprietary products and solutions includentperformance radios, antenn
software, communications protocols and managenoeig that have been designed to deliver carriereauterprise class wireless
broadband access and other services primarilyemuticensed RF spectrum. Our radios and antemréash incorporate our innovative
proprietary technologies and firmware, are desigmadlfield tested to deliver carrier-class netwspkeds, throughput, range and
coverage, while simultaneously meeting the vargiagormance requirements of video, voice and daffid. Our products and
solutions overcome significant performance chakkenguch as dynamic spectrum noise, device inteder@utdoor obstacles and
unpredictable levels of video, voice and data perémce. Importantly, we are able to utilize theduiiti Community to validate the
effectiveness of our end user experience and foauslevelopment efforts on those features and ifmmality that are critical to their
requirements.

»  Price disruptive offering. Our products and solutions have been designeddble service providers and enterprises to defiggr
performance to their users at highly disruptive@oints. The deployment and operation of ourtgwia
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require a fraction of the capital expenditures, lenpentation expenses and network maintenance abtsse associated with existing
solutions.

Integrated and easy to deploy and mane. Our integrated products and solutions reducedneplexity associated with the installati
management and expansion of wireless networks.iléidich of our product families, products are basefirmware that is built on a
common codebase. This allows us to offer commotufea and functionality and leads to consistenbilisaacross each product
family. The integration between our products isigiesd to enable service providers and enterprsegliver wireless broadband acc
and other services that have high performance ctaistics without significant management, deplogtreosts or upgrade complexity.

Scalable communit-led approach Purchasing our proprietary products and solutemables immediate access to the Ubiquiti
Community, including current and historical troudileoting and technical information as well as Ipeattices and deployment advice
for our end users. Product support from our Commguisiself-sustaining and scales efficiently, wgttowth and relevance driven by the
size and engagement of our customer base. Thialdealommunity-led approach to customer supportritaries to the substantially
lower total cost of ownership of our products aallisons relative to incumbent providers. Additilpaour Community provides an
effective channel for product feedback from ourteoeer base.

We are growing our intellectual property portfaihelp protect the development of our proprietftware, hardware and complete solutit
We believe that protecting the innovation and tetbgy underlying our comprehensive wireless netwaylsolutions is key to ensuring our
continued ability to provide customers with diffetiated value

Our Strategy

Our goal is to disrupt the market for communicagiéechnology with innovative solutions that providading performance at prices that are a
fraction of those of alternative solutions. Keymeénts of our strategy include the following:

Continue to deliver high performance characteristiat disruptive price pointsWe intend to expand the market opportunity foviee
providers by continuing to provide products andiSohs with disruptive pric@erformance characteristics. We also intend to recplae
market and displace high-priced alternative sohdim enterprise markets. We believe that we catasuour disruptive strategy
through our unique business model, focusing orfdatires and functionalities most critical to castos and avoiding the fringe
features, which add both cost and complexity.

Leverage our technologies and business model ireadnt markets We intend to continue to leverage our technologies business
model to target other large and growing marketswheabelieve are ripe for disruption such as videweillance, machine-to-machine
communications and licensed microwave wireless fagkmarkets. For the enterprise market, we inttedwur enterprise wireless
local area network, or WLAN, product, UniFi, inda 2011 and have experienced strong adoptionlasgaly new customer base.
According to Gartner we were thatargest global provider of enterprise WLAN coordethaccess points in 2012. We believe we ar
well positioned to gain traction in these new addadble markets and will continue to acceleratarmovation in these products.
Similarly, we intend to drive adoption of airVisipour IP camera management system, airFiber, adoouwireless backhaul radio
platform and mFi, our machine-to-machine commuiacaplatform, all of which we released in fiscall20

Maintain and extend our technological leadersh. We intend to continue to develop innovative soha for our target markets. We
believe that our continued focus on developing gachnologies with customer-driven feedback fromttbiquiti Community will
allow us to deliver products and solutions withrdiiive price-performance characteristics thatspecifically targeted to our markets.
In addition, we believe our continued innovatiokéy to the value our products and solutions preyahd is a critical component to
achieving user lock-in.

Continue to grow our powerful user communityWe believe our differentiated business model, pedday the Ubiquiti Community,
provides us with a significant and sustainable ostitipe advantage over competitors. The Ubiquitir@ounity facilitates streamlined
and efficient product development coupled withghhi efficient sales and distribution model thdbwak us to avoid the costs associ:
with expensive direct and channel organizationg §éif-sustaining product support aspect of theyuibiCommunity simplifies the
deployment process and provides a highly effeatbad-time support system for customers.

Continue to sell to our existing customend/e plan to continue to provide our customers withhtperformance, reliable, and cost-
effective integrated products and solutions. Irtipalar, we believe our use of differentiated piefary protocols and the scalability of
our products positions us to grow with our custaras they build out their
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networks. Furthermore, we intend to cregd-complementary solutions to our existing custmnFor example, we believe customer
our airMAX solutions can benefit significantly frothe incremental deployment of our EdgeMAX and idieF products.

Our Technology and Products

We offer products and solutions based on our petgmy technology with disruptive price-performabaracteristics across multiple markets.
Utilizing low cost hardware, consumer chipsets mmbvative software and firmware, we build pricafpemance solutions to address both
service providers and enterprises. In addition,tecihnology allows us to design our products faeeaf manufacture. Our focus on cost
efficiency, robust product design and high perfanoeadrives the development of our technology, petsland solutions.

Technology Platforms
Our current major service provider and carrier gohs include:
Base Station/Backhaul/Customer Premise Equipn“CPE")/Bridge—airMAX

We offer end-to-end solutions that incorporate pnaprietary RF technology, antenna design and fianewechnologies. These technologies
simplify the adoption and use of our products aravige our products and solutions with performadiearacteristics usually found only in the
carrier-class wireless networking solutions andeasignificant performance, reliability, scalalyiland ease-of-use challenges in the unlicense
RF spectrum.

In September 2009, we introduced our airMAX platiovhich includes proprietary protocols developedibywhich contain advanced
technologies for minimizing signal noise. Theseppietary protocols help our products deliver cardlass wireless networking performance
for video, voice and data applications. airMAX Ideto support a wireless network that can scalataireds of clients per base station over
long distances while maintaining low latency anghhihroughput. Unlike most systems using 802.1Adsted protocols, which are primarily
designed for indoor networks, our airMAX systems agroprietary Time Division Multiple Access (TDNIArotocol to manage the sending
and receiving of data over the network to maxinsizd¢ime efficiency. airMAX incorporates smart poli, which is a feature that improves the
scalability of a wireless network by predicting th@ce and data requirements of an applicatiomgtgiaven time and allocating the required
bandwidth. airMAX also improves scalability by gig priority to active client hardware over idleetlt hardware to reduce perceived latency
on large networks. airMAX provides users with tihdity to seamlessly switch operating frequenciesdal time to overcome noise and
interference due to changes in the operating enmiemt.

A majority of our airMAX products and solutions clverage multiple input multiple output, or MIM@&chnology, which relates to the use of
multiple antennas at both the transmitter and veced improve performance. Most of our radios esgphultiple independent transmitters and
receivers to create independent communication eiamusing the same frequency spectrum. We use eddaray signal processing
techniques to combine our radios’ communicatioranaels into a single, higher data rate channel.a@pproach to MIMO technology
effectively doubles the capacity of our radios wlkempared to traditional radios. Each of our stéoraantennas is dual polarized with
radiation patterns that are optimized for MIMO penfiance. Our high performance outdoor antennadesmigned to amplify signal power,
resulting in stronger signals and better link dyaknd to block noise. Our design produces a bsid@al-to-noise ratio for each channel and
simplified signal processing to combine the chasinghich in turn effectively doubles the throughpfibur antennas, when compared to sii
input single output devices. Our devices suppatibua encryption protocols including: WEP, WPA, WHKIP, WPA-AES, WPA2, WPA2-
TKIP and WPA2-AES.

Network Routing Platfor—EdgeMAX

In September 2012, we announced EdgeMAX, a disrepiiice-performance software and systems routiaifiogpm. We believe the initial
product, the EdgeRouter Lite, is the world’s fsab-$100 router capable of over 1 million packetsgecond processing performance.
EdgeMAX is powered by our full-featured EdgeOS apieg system that includes advanced QoS, firewdghhamic routing and VPN
functionality.

Point-to-point Wireless Backhaul—airFiber

In March 2012, we introduced airFiber, a 24 GHxpob-point radio system. Components of the airFfiyeduct, including the radio, were
designed to provide low latency with high through@ur airFiber product uses an integrated spli¢mma and a global positioning system to
simultaneously send data packets from each sitieedink. We engineered proprietary communicatiostqcols so that airFiber does not su
from the traditional packet overhead associatel Wii-Fi based
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standards. We believe airFiber will be consideredrapelling alternative to wired backhaul as aigfils not easily susceptible to vandalism,
copper theft, and fiber optic damage because diel\yehdpoints need to be secured. airFiber doegqoire physical infrastructure such as
laying cable or fiber, and by utilizing unlicensggkectrum, customers achieve significantly fastptalenent.

Our current major enterprise solutions include:

Enterprise WLAUniFi

In January 2011, we released our UniFi Enterprisé&VBystem, which is a scalable Wi-Fi solutionttirecludes Wi-Fi certified hardware with
a software based management controller, targetiteggrise customers. UniFi hardware utilizes MIM@Hnology, works with 802.11a/b/g/n
and ac standards and uses a single cable forrdatntission and power-over-Ethernet. Unlike otmemprise Wi-Fi systems that utilize a
costly hardware Wi-Fi switch, UniFi uses a virtaahtroller that allows for on-site management onote management through the cloud,
allowing customers to deploy UniFi in both indooidaoutdoor applications. Each UniFi access pointtmmanaged centrally with the UniFi
Controller software, which we provide free of ctar@he UniFi Controller enables enterprise WLAN @agers to centrally configure and
administer a UniFi network and individual accesmfsowithout any special training and through secagcess from any web browser. The
UniFi platform provides automatic UniFi access paiaetection, firmware updates, real-time statug) toading, advanced security options and
“zero handoff roaming”, our proprietary innovatifar seamless roaming for mobile devices.

Video Surveillance—airVision

In August 2011, we introduced our line of AirCan2B4 megapixel IP cameras and our airVision managestdtware controller. The H.264
cameras use a single cable for data transmissibip@mer-over-Ethernet. airVision, our managementradler software, can be used to
manage multiple airCam H.264 IP cameras as wellasage digital video recorder devices. airVisioftveare is available for download at no
cost on our website and only manages Ubiquiti Netveamera devices. Similar to our other network aggment products, airVision can be
accessed securely from any web browser, providedlel statistical reporting and advanced analyditd provides a management console
multiple views, versatile camera settings and guitable event recordings.

Machine-To-Machine Communication—mFi

In June 2012, we announced availability of mFi,ehhincludes hardware sensors, power devices, andgeaent software that allows device:
to be monitored and controlled remotely via WiFir Example, mFi allows users to manage and mottitar building temperature and power
consumption. The management controller softwale Isased and can be accessed from any browselylocdhrough the cloud. mFi software
allows management to create rules to control nuosedevices.

The table below summarizes information about oadpct platforms:

Bands of
Name Target Applications Operation (GHz) MSRP
Service Provider Products
airMAX Base station/Backhaul/CPE/Bridge 0.9/ 2.4/ 3.6/ 5.8/10.0 $39 - $399
EdgeMAX Routing N/A $99
airFiber Microwave Backhaul 24.0 $1,498(1)
Enterprise Products
UniFi WLAN 2.4/ 5.8 $29 - $229
airVision IP Video Surveillance N/A $89 - $110
mFi Machine-To-Machine Communication 2.4/5.8 $8 - $99

(1) MSREP listed is for one airFiber unit only, lisitypically sold in pairs.

The Ubiquiti Community

We established the Ubiquiti forum, wiki and newsgeto foster a large, growing and engaged onlamaraunity of service providers and
distributors, customers and employees among otfieesUbiquiti Community powers our business modeldeilitating rapid introductions ai
development of customer-oriented products. The WlbiGommunity provides best practices, adviceylidleshooting and product feedback. It
also acts as a source of product support and dvivelsmarketing.
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The following describes the key aspects of ouranable business model that are powered by theuitb@ommunity:

« Rapid customer and commun-driven product developmentWe seek to identify features and products that@rare expected to be,
needed or desired by the majority of customershat product. We rely on the Ubiquiti Communityaasignificant source of requests
for features that we translate into new producagdand designs.

e Scalable sales and marketing moc. We rely on the Ubiquiti Community to drive marlkatareness and demand for our products anc
solutions. This community-propagated viral markgtmables us to reach underserved and underpeuetnatrkets far more efficiently
and cost effectively than is possible through tradal sales models. For example, there have bey instances where members of
Ubiquiti Community, who happen to be on online fosunot affiliated with us, have strongly recommehttet users of other wireless
networking solutions try our products and solutidfe also hold conferences as an effective wagttoduce and promote our produ
and solutions to the global Ubiquiti Community. Example, in 2012 and 2013, we held our Ubiquitirild&onference at locations in
the United States, Brazil, Argentina, Hungary, RasShina and India.

» Self-sustaining product supportOur service providers and IT professionals, whihesiastically support each other through the
Ubiquiti forum, as well as other blogs and onlimeups, have fostered a large, scalable and, weugelself-sustaining mechanism for
rapid product support and dissemination of infoioratThe members of the Ubiquiti Community resptmdser questions posted on
our forum in a rapid manner. These responses arertited by other members of the Ubiquiti Commutatiielp ensure that the users
are receiving the best possible answers. Top ass@@ommon questions are stored in the Ubiquitivdeks Community Knowledge
Base. In addition, our internal customer suppagtaization provides feedback on critical produsties, and augments the information
in the Ubiquiti Community.

Sales and Distribution

Historically, we have not employed a direct satasd, nor do we plan to in the future. We sell praducts and solutions globally to service
providers and enterprises primarily through ouersive network of distributors, and, to a lesséermx original equipment manufacturers
(“OEMSs”) and direct customers. During fiscal 20%& sold our products to over 100 distributors, OEd direct customers (collectively,
“customers”) in over 50 countries. In fiscal 201f&¢al 2012 and fiscal 2011 , Flytec Computers tepresented 13% , 16% and 20% of our
revenues, respectively. In fiscal 2012 and fi@€Hl1 , Streakwave Wireless Inc. represented 10%d.8%@of our revenues, respectively. We
had no other customer or distributor that accoufdedore than 10% of our revenues in fiscal 20fi8cal 2012 and fiscal 2011 .

A substantial majority of our sales are made ttrithistors outside the United States and we antieiffzat non-U.S. sales will continue to be a
significant portion of our revenues. Sales in Scerica accounted for 21% , 25% and 26% of ouemneres in fiscal 2013 , fiscal 2012 and
fiscal 2011 , respectively. Sales in Europe, thddW East and Africa accounted for 40% , 37% ,26fb of our revenues in fiscal 2013 , fiscal
2012 and fiscal 2011 , respectively. We do not hevevisibility on the location or extent of purclea of our products by individual network
operators and service providers from our distrilaitthformation regarding financial data by geodjia@reas is set forth in Iltem 7 and Item 15
of this Form 10-K. See Note 13 of Notes to Consdéd Financial Statements under Item 15.

Although we publish an MSRP for our products, aigtributors have control of pricing to the ultimaerchaser. Historically, we did not
provide our distributors with any substantial satagming or marketing materials; however, curngntte are expanding our product education
offerings for distributors, as well as increasingrketing support. Our agreements with our distotgitio not limit their ability to carry
products that compete with ours. Our distributigne@ments generally have a one year term, sulgj@ettbmatic renewal unless cancelled by
one of the parties. Our distributors typically pr®/us with purchase orders for delivery withindg/s, which we use to forecast future den
and estimate desired inventory builds.

We have initiated a training program for our disiitors and other interested individuals so thag ttes educate and train others on the effe
deployment and use of our products and solutiossofAlune 30, 2013Ubiquiti had 114 certified trainers with over @Bdistributors and oth
interested individuals having completed the cedifion process. The goal is for those completimgctrtification process to in turn educate
train service providers and enterprise customeitherffective deployment and use of our produatssolutions. We offer the training
program to distributors and other interested irdiiais in different languages throughout the world.

Manufacturing and Suppliers

We retain contract manufacturers to manufactunetrobthe quality of and ship our products. We gaiity utilize contract manufacturers
located in China. Our relationships with contraeamafacturers allow us to conserve working capitaduce
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manufacturing costs and minimize delivery lead Smdile maintaining high product quality and thdigbto scale quickly to handle increas
order volume. We make substantially all of our piases from our contract manufacturers on a puratraes basis. Our contract manufactu
are not required to manufacture our products fgrsgpecific period or in any specific quantity. Wigect that it would take approximately th
to six months to transition manufacturing, quadissurance and shipping services to new providers.

Our internal manufacturing organization consistsugiply chain managers, logistics employees anttatiors who supervise the manufacture
of our products at contract manufacturer sitestastiengineers. We rely on our contract manufarcgwaed our internal quality assurance
resources to implement quality assurance prograsigided to achieve high product quality and reliigbWe believe that our low warranty
expenses and product return rate to date refleighalevel of product quality. We tightly integrater research and development efforts with
our supplier selection process. Once product matwriag quality reaches a satisfactory level, wevenimto full scale production at the same
contract manufacturer site. We also evaluate aifideubther suppliers for components from timeitoe.

We rely on third party components and technologlyuitd and operate our products, and we rely oncoutract manufacturers to obtain the
components, subassemblies and products necessaing fmanufacture of our products. While componants supplies are generally available
from a variety of sources, we and our contract rfeturers currently depend on a single or limitadhber of suppliers for several compone
for our products. We and our contract manufacturgsson purchase orders rather than long-termraotg with these suppliers. The majority
of our product revenues are dependent upon thesal®ducts that incorporate components from Qaralm Atheros, Inc. ("Qualcomm
Atheros") and we do not have a second source &rr thipsets. We are party to a non-exclusive Beemgreement with Qualcomm Atheros
whereby we license certain technology that we ipamte into our products. The current term of aneaded license agreement with
Qualcomm Atheros expires on September 1, 2014. ddrisement automatically renews for successiveyeaeperiods unless the agreement i
terminated by written notice of nonrenewal at |€stays prior to the end of its then-current téive. depend on this license agreement to
modify and replace firmware that Qualcomm Atherosvfales with the chipsets with our proprietary fimare. While our agreement with
Qualcomm Atheros remains effective, in accordaniti thie current terms of the agreement, eitherypady terminate the agreement without
cause at the end of the annual contract term.

We do not stockpile sufficient chipsets to cover time it would take to re-engineer our productsetgace the Qualcomm Atheros chipsets. If
we need to seek a suitable second source for QuaicAtheros in our products, there can be no assartirat we would be able to successt
source our chipsets on suitable terms, if at alarly event, our use of chipsets from multiple sesimay require us to significantly modify our
designs and manufacturing processes to accommtiiese different chipsets.

Research and Development

Our research and development organization is ressiplerfor the design, development and testing ofppaducts. Our engineering team has
deep expertise and experience in networking arehaatdesign, and we have a number of personnelavifstanding experience with netw
architecture and operation. We have developedratredd to continue to develop our technology in pgirbperating with a relatively flat
reporting structure that relies on individual cdmitors or small development teams to develop,aredtobtain feedback for our products. Our
products and solutions benefit from the active gegaent between the Ubiquiti Community and our nedeand development personnel
throughout the product development cycle, resulitingpid introduction and adoption of new produ@sr research and development
personnel evaluate the input from service provid@rprofessionals and enterprises and responigeio needs by modifying our products or
developing new products based on the input received

As of June 30, 2013, our research and developtaant consisted of 111 full time equivalent emplayéecluding contractors, located in
California, Illinois, Lithuania, Taiwan and Russ@ur research and development operations work odugt development and new versions of
our existing products. Our research and developmegrenses were $21.0 million , $16.7 million and.gImillion for fiscal 2013 , fiscal 2012
and fiscal 2011 respectively. We expect that the number of oseaech and development personnel will continuaedoeiase over time and tt
our research and development expenses will alsease.
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Competition

The markets for networking solutions for serviceyiers, enterprise WLAN, video surveillance, migewe backhaul and machine+tmachine
communications technology are highly competitivd are influenced by the following competitive fastoamong others:

» total cost of ownership and return on investmeabeisited with the solutior
« simplicity of deployment and use of the solutic

« ability to rapidly develop high performance integihsolutions

» reliability and scalability of the solutior

» market awareness of a particular bri

» ability to provide secure access to wireless neltgy

» ability to offer a suite of products and solutic

» ability to allow centralized management of the Sols; an

» ability to provide quality product suppc¢

We believe we compete favorably with respect teéhfactors. Although we are a recent entrant irvitheo surveillance, microwave backhaul,
routing and machine-to-machine communication markee believe our products compete favorably is¢hgroduct categories. We have beel
successful in rapidly developing high performantdegrated solutions because we use individual ibutors and small, experienced
development teams that focus on the key needsd#rearved and underpenetrated markets. Our prodandtsolutions are designed to mee
price-performance characteristics demanded by wstomers to achieve a strong overall return orr theestment. Our products are designed
to operate in growing networks without degradatioperformance or operational complexity.

In the integrated radio market, our competitordude Motorola Inc. ("Motorola™) and Trango Systeins. ("Trango"). In the 900MHz product
market, our competitors include Cisco Systems, (t€isco") and Proxim Inc. ("Proxim™). In the emloksdl radio market, our competitors
include Mikrotkls Ltd. ("Mikrotikls") and Senao Networks, Inc. ("Senao"). In thekibaul market, our competitors include Ceragon ek,
Inc. ("Ceragon™), Mikrakls and DragonWave Inc ("DragonWave"). In the CP&keat, our competitors include Mikrkls, Ruckus Wireless
Inc. ("Ruckus") and TP-LINK Technologies CO., LTOXP-LINK"). In the antenna market, we primarily cpete with PCTEL, Inc.
("PCTEL") and Radio Waves, Inc. ("Radio Waves")the enterprise WLAN market, we primarily competiéwiRuckus, Aruba Networks, In
("Aruba Networks") and Cisco. In the video sunaailke market, we primarily compete with Vivotek,.I({8/ivotek™), Axis Communications
AB ("Axis Communications") and Mobotix Corp. ("Motig"). In the microwave backhaul market, we prinlhadompete with Cambium
Networks ("Cambium"), DragonWave, SAF Tehnika amdrgo. In the machir-to-machine communications market, we primarily pete
with EnergyHub, Inc. ("EnergyHub"), Motorola andefiMe.com Ltd. ("AlertMe.com”). We expect increasemnpetition from other
established and emerging companies if our markairoges to develop and expand. As we enter new etgrive expect to face competition
from incumbent and new market participants.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination @atent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laasyell as confidentiality procedures and contralatestrictions
to establish and protect our proprietary rightseSehlaws, procedures and restrictions provide kamiyed protection and the legal standards
relating to the validity, enforceability and scagfeprotection of intellectual property rights anecertain and still evolving. Furthermore,
effective patent, trademark, copyright and tradeeteprotection may not be available in every couimt which our services and products are
available. We seek patent protection for certaiowfkey concepts, components, protocols, processsther inventions.

As of June 30, 2013 , we had 10 issued patenteityhited States and over 40 pending U.S. anddongatent applications. These patent
applications relate to various high-level featwethedded in certain of our products, includingittegration of components in a microwave
system and certain performance improvements to r&dieivers. We have filed, and will continue te,fpatent applications in the United
States and other countries where we believe tlodoe & strategic technological or business reasdo 0. Any patents issued to us now or in
the future may be challenged, invalidated or cireented and may not provide sufficiently broad ptttsm or may not prove to be enforceable
in actions against alleged infringers.

As of June 30, 2013 , we owned U.S. trademark tragiisns in our logo, UBNT, airMAX, UniFi, mFi, E@MAX, airVision, airFiber, airOS,
NanoStation, airGrid, NanoBridge, and a numberadémark applications and registrations in the éthBtates and other countri

We endeavor to enter into agreements with our eyegl® and contractors and with parties with whonmdwéusiness in order to limit access to
and disclosure of our proprietary information. V@weot be certain that the steps we have takerprailent

12




Table of Contents

unauthorized use or reverse engineering of ountgolgy. Moreover, others may independently devédmhnologies that are competitive with
ours or that infringe on our intellectual propeffe enforcement of our intellectual property rgjatso depends on the success of our legal
actions against infringers and counterfeiters,these actions may not be successful, even whernghis have been infringed.

Employees

As of June 30, 2013 , we employed 183 full timeiegjent employees, which included 111 in researchd@evelopment, 32 in sales, general
and administrative and 40 in operations. As of tiae, we had 83 in the United States, 24 in Litieya48 in Taiwan, 25 in China and three in
Russia. We also engage a number of temporary emgdognd consultants. None of our employees aresepied by a labor union or is a party
to a collective bargaining agreement.

Corporate Information

We incorporated in the State of California in 2@383Pera Networks, Inc. and we commenced our cupparations in 2005 and changed our
name to Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. at that time. Im8w2010, Ubiquiti Networks, Inc., a California corgtion, changed its state of organization t
Delaware by merging with and into Ubiquiti Netwoyksc., a Delaware corporation. Our executive effiare located at 2580 Orchard
Parkway, San Jose, California 95131, and our telepmumber is (408) 942-3085. Our website addezasviv.ubnt.com. The information on,
or that can be accessed through, our website igarbof this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Unless the context requires otherwise, the words™Wus,” “our” and “Ubiquiti” refer to Ubiquiti Néworks, Inc. and its subsidiaries as a
whole.

Available Information

The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quart&gports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Forikh 8nd amendments to reports fi
pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Séesifiixchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchangd,Age filed with the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC"). Such reportisather information filed by the Company with BEC are available free of charge on
the Company'’s website at_http://ir.ubnt.com/sen.when such reports are available on the SEC welidite public may read and copy any
materials filed by the Company with the SEC at$i#C’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NBnRd580, Washington, DC 20549.
The public may obtain information on the operatdnhe Public Reference Room by calling the SEC-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains
an Internet site that contains reports, proxy aforination statements and other information regaydsuers that file electronically with the
SEC at_www.sec.govThe contents of these websites are not incorpdiato this filing. Further, the Company’s referes to the URLSs for
these websites are intended to be inactive texéfi@tiences only.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

This Report contains forward-looking statements &éna subject to risks and uncertainties that coalgse actual results to differ materially
from those projected. These risks and uncertaiirigdade, but are not limited to, the risk factees forth below. These risks and uncertainties
are not the only ones we face. Additional risks andertainties not presently known to us or thatweently believe are immaterial may also
affect our business. If any event related to tik@s®vn or unknown risks or uncertainties actuallgurs and has material adverse effects on ot
business, financial condition and results of openastcould be seriously harmed.

We have limited visibility into future sales, whiahakes it difficult to forecast our future operatqresults.

Because of our limited visibility into demand arfithanel inventory levels, our ability to accuratidyecast our future revenues is limited. We
sell our products and solutions globally to netwoplerators, service providers and others, primaénifgugh our network of distributors,
resellers and OEMs. We do not employ a direct dJalee. Sales to distributors accounted for 98%%%nd 97% of our revenues in fiscal
2013, fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 , respectivElgnerally, our distributors are not obligated torpote our products and solutions and are fre
to promote and sell the products and solutionsuofcompetitors. We sell our products to our distrdss on a purchase order basis. Our
distributors do not typically provide us with infoation about market demand for our products. Whidehave recently begun efforts to obtain
inventory level and sales data from our distribsittinis information has been difficult to obtainaitimely manner. Since we have only recently
begun gathering this data, we cannot be certairtiteanformation is reliable. Our operating exphare relatively fixed in the short-term, and
we may not be able to decrease our expenses &t affy shortfall in revenues. If we under forecishand, our ability to fulfill sales orders
will be compromised and sales may be deferredsirditogether as potential purchasers seek alteersalutions.
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We are subject to risks associated with our distititrs’ inventory management practices. Should arfyoorr distributors fail to resell our
products in the period of time they anticipate overstock inventories to address anticipated sugptgrruptions that do not occur, ou
revenues and operating results would suffer in fuéuperiods.

Our distributors purchase and maintain their owreitiories of our products and have no right torrethe products they have purchased. We
receive limited information from the distributoesgarding their inventory levels and their saleswfproducts. If our distributors are unable to
sell an adequate amount of their inventories ofppaducts, their financial condition may be advirsdfected, which could result in a decline
in our sales to these distributors. Distributorghwihom we do business may face issues maintaifficient working capital and liquidity or
obtaining credit, which could impair their ability make timely payments to us. In addition, inplast we have experienced shortages of our
products and our distributors have ordered quastiti excess of their anticipated near term den@aitsulate themselves from supply
interruptions. If, in the future, some distributaiecide to purchase more of our products thanegyegired to satisfy customer demand in any
particular quarter, inventories at these distribaiteould grow. These distributors likely would redduture orders until inventory levels real
with customer demand, which could adversely affegtrevenues in a subsequent quarter.

We rely on a limited number of distributors, whiclkie consider to be our customers, and the loss a$ting distributors, or a need to add
new distributors may cause disruptions in our shipnts, which may materially adversely affect our Etlyito sell our products and achieve
our revenue forecasts and we may be unable toisgkntory we have manufactured to meet expected @etnin a timely manner, if at all.

Although we have a large number of distributors whb our products, we sell a substantial majasftpur products through a limited number
of these distributors. In fiscal 2013 , fiscal 2Qi# fiscal 2011 , Flytec Computers Inc. represkf@89% , 16% and 20% of our revenues,
respectively. In fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 , 8kreave Wireless Inc. represented 10% and 15% ofewgmues, respectively. We anticipate
that we will continue to be dependent upon a lichitember of distributors for a significant portiohour revenues for the foreseeable future.
The portion of our revenues attributable to a gigiestributor may also fluctuate in the future. Taration of a relationship with a major
distributor, either by us or by the distributorufresult in a temporary or permanent loss of meres. We may not be successful in finding
other suitable distributors on satisfactory terarsat all, and this could adversely affect ourigibtb sell in certain geographic markets or to
certain network operators and service providers.

We have experienced, and may in the future expecierreduced sales levels and damage to our brang tduproduction of counterfeit
versions of our products.

In the past we have identified parties that areufenturing and selling counterfeit products thatlveéieve infringe our intellectual property
rights. Sales of these counterfeit products wergubstantial that our revenues were adverselytafleshile these products were in the market
Given the popularity of our products, we believerthis a high likelihood that counterfeit produstther products infringing on our
intellectual property rights will continue to emerdn order to combat counterfeit goods, we hawkraay continue to be required to spend
significant resources to monitor and protect oteliactual property rights. Although we have talséeps to prevent further counterfeiting, we
may not be able to detect or prevent all instanésfringement and may lose our competitive positin the market before we are able to do
so. If the quality of counterfeit products is nepresentative of the quality of our products, farttamage could be done to our brand. In
addition, enforcing rights to our intellectual pesty may be difficult and expensive, and we mayb®successful in combating counterfeit
products and stopping infringement of our intell@attproperty rights, particularly in some foreigsuatries, where we could lose sales.

Our operating results will vary over time and sudlactuations could cause the market price of ourroanon stock to decline.

Our quarterly operating results fluctuate signifit due to a variety of factors, many of which atgside of our control, and we expect thel
continue to do so. Our revenues were $101.2 milli®d3.2 million , $74.9 million , $61.5 million dr$94.9 million and our net income was
$28.8 million , $20.7 million , $17.8 million , $1Bmillion and $28.5 million in the three monthgded June 30, 2013, March 31, 2013,
December 31, 2012, September 30, 2012 and Jyrg93Q , respectively. Because revenues for anydyteriod are not predictable with any
significant degree of certainty, you should noy rah our past results as an indication of our ®ifperformance. If our revenues or operating
results fall below the expectations of investorsexurities analysts or below any estimates we pnayide to the market, the price of our
common shares would likely decline substantialliziol could have a material adverse impact on imvesinfidence and employee retention.
Our common stock has recently experienced subataotce volatility. For example, from our initipublic offering through June 30, 201ghe
price of our common stock ranged from $7.80 to $3per share. Additionally, the stock market ashalerhas experienced extreme price anc
volume fluctuations that have affected the stodkepof many technology companies in ways that neyetbeen unrelated to these companies
operating performance.
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Factors that could cause our operating resultsstuk price to fluctuate include:

» varying demand for our products due to the findrania operating condition of our distributors ahdit customers, distributor invent:
management practices and general economic conglition

« shifts in our fulfillment practices including in@sing inventory levels in attempt to decrease cnstdead time:

« inability of our contract manufacturers and supgli® meet our demar

» success and timing of new product introductionsi®yand the performance of our prodt

* announcements by us or our competitors regardiodyats, promotions or other transactis

» lost sales due to the proliferation of countenfeitsions of our produc

» costs related to the protection of our intellecpalperty rights, including defense against codating efforts

» costs related to responding to government inquigkged to regulatory complian

e our ability to control and reduce product cc

e expenses of our entry into new markets, suchdeo surveillance microwave backhaul and machinerachine communicatior

e commencement of litigation or adverse resultstigdtion:

e changes in the manner in which we sell prod

e increased warranty cos

» volatility in foreign exchange rates, changemterest rates and/or the availability and codirancing or other working capital to our
distributors and their customers;

» the impact of write downs of excess and obsoleteritory; an

» the impact of any provisions for doubtful accot

In addition, our business may be subject to sedispriaowever, our recent growth rates and timirigpduct introductions may have masked
seasonal changes in demand. Although we have nogiped seasonality to date, we may experienceosadity in the future.

We could be adversely affected by unfavorable restriom shareholder class action litigation.

Beginning on September 7, 2012, two shareholdssaation complaints were filed against us. On dan80, 2013, the plaintiffs filed an
Amended Consolidated Complaint, which alleges ctaimder the Securities Act of 1933, the Securkfieshange Act of 1934 and SEC Rule
10b-5 on behalf of a purported class of those wiralased our common stock between October 14, 20d Bugust 9, 2012 and/or acquired
our stock pursuant to or traceable to the registragtatement for our initial public offering. Tkensolidated complaint seeks, among other
things, damages and interest, rescission, anchaitstfees and costs. Although we believe thagtlegations in the complaint are without
merit and we intend to vigorously contest the ditign, there can be no assurance that we will beessful in our defense. If one or more of
these claims are resolved against us, our consetidmancial statements could be materially adgraffected.

If we fail to protect our intellectual property rigts adequately, our ability to compete effectivelyto defend ourselves from litigation cou
be impaired, which could reduce our revenues andri@ase our costs.

We rely primarily on patent, copyright, trademariddrade secret laws, as well as confidentiality aon-disclosure agreements and other
methods, to protect our proprietary technologies larow-how. Our patent rights and the prospeciigiets sought in our pending patent
applications may not be meaningful or provide uthwiny commercial advantage and they could be @uha®ntested, circumvented or
designed around by our competitors or be declarealid or unenforceable in judicial or administvatiproceedings. Any failure of our patents
to adequately protect our technology might maleagier for our competitors to offer similar produet technologies. In addition, patents may
not be issued from any of our current or futureligagons.

Monitoring unauthorized use of our intellectual peaty is difficult and costly. Unauthorized useooir intellectual property, such as
counterfeits of our products and unauthorized tegfisn of our trademarks by third parties, hasuoed in the past and may occur in the futur
without our knowledge. The steps we have taken mayprevent unauthorized use of our intellectuapprty. Further, we may not be able to
detect unauthorized use of, or take appropriafessteenforce our intellectual property rights. @ampetitors may also independently develor
similar technology without infringing our intelleal property rights. Our failure to effectively peot our intellectual property could reduce the
value and potential application of our technology aould impair our ability to compete. Any failusg us to meaningfully protect our
intellectual property could result in competitoffedng products that incorporate our most techgially advanced features, which could
seriously reduce demand for our products. We haitiated and may continue to initiate infringemeldms or litigation. Litigation, whether
we are a plaintiff or a defendant, can be experainktime-consuming, may place our intellectuapprty at risk of being invalidated or
narrowed in scope, and may divert the efforts afteahnical staff and
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managerial personnel, which could result in loveatenues and higher expenses, whether or not gigatitin results in a determination
favorable to us.

Enforcement of our intellectual property rights abad, particularly in China and South America, isfiited and it is often difficult to protec
and enforce such rights.

The intellectual property protection regimes owtdige United States are generally not as compraleeas in the United States and may not
protect our intellectual property in some countriggere our products are sold or manufactured or Ioeagold or manufactured in the future. In
addition, effective enforcement of intellectual peoty rights in certain countries may not be aldda

In particular, the legal regimes relating to irgetal property rights in China and South Ameriealmited and it is often difficult to
effectively protect and enforce such rights in thosuntries. For example, the regulatory schemeritorcing China’s intellectual property
laws may not be as developed as regulatory schenodiser countries. Any advancement of an intellatproperty enforcement claim through
China’s regulatory scheme may require an exteresiveunt of time, allowing intellectual property imigers to continue largely unimpeded, to
our detriment in the Chinese and other export niarke addition, rules of evidence may be unclaaonsistent or difficult to comply with,
making it difficult to prove infringement of ourtgllectual property rights. As a result, enforcetmmases may be difficult or ineffective.

These factors may make it increasingly complicéteds to enforce our intellectual property rightminst infringers, allowing them to harm
our business in the Chinese or other export maddsn the United States by affecting the pridmgour products, reducing our sales,
importing infringing products into the United Stai@nd diluting our brand or product quality repiotat

If our contract manufacturers do not respect ourtillectual property and trade secrets and if thayothers produce competitive produc
reducing our sales or causing customer confusiomydusiness, operating results and financial conidit could be materially adversely
affected.

Our contract manufacturers operate in China, whaseecution of intellectual property infringementarade secret theft is more difficult than
in the United States. In the past, our contractufeaturers, their affiliates, their other customersheir suppliers have attempted to participate
in efforts to misappropriate our intellectual prageand trade secrets to manufacture our prodocttiemselves or others without our
knowledge. Although we attempt to enter into agreets with our contract manufacturers to precluéentfrom misusing our intellectual
property and trade secrets, we may be unsuccesshonitoring and enforcing our intellectual protyetights. We have in the past found and
expect in the future to find counterfeit goodshe tnarket being sold as Ubiquiti products. Althoughtake steps to stop counterfeits, we may
not be successful

and network operators and service providers wholase these counterfeit goods may have a bad erperiour brand may be harmed, and
our business, operating results and financial candcould be materially and adversely affected.

Our business and prospects depend on the stren@itbuo brand. Failure to maintain and enhance our bnd would harm our ability to
expand our base of distributors and the number aftwork operators and service providers who purchase products.

Maintaining and enhancing the Ubiquiti brand idical to expanding our base of distributors, netaaperators, service providers, and VARS
who purchase our products. Maintaining and enhancin brand will depend largely on our ability tntinue to develop and provide products
and solutions that address the price-performanaeacteristics sought by these customers and ernd-ursenderserved and underpenetrated
markets, which we may not do successfully. If wiettapromote, maintain and protect our brand sasfidly, our ability to sustain and expand
our business and enter new markets will suffertifeumore, if we fail to replicate the Ubiquiti Coramity in other markets that we seek to
enter, the strength of our brand in and beyondetmoarkets could be adversely affected. Our brandbmampaired by a number of other
factors, including product malfunctions and exgtidn of our trademarks or confusingly similar gathrks by others without permission.
Despite our efforts to protect our trademarks, &eehbeen unsuccessful to date in obtaining a trademgistration from the United States
Patent and Trademark Office for the name of ourpgamy, Ubiquiti Networks, and as a result, we ordydncommon law trademark rights in
the United States in our name. Additionally, weédbeen subject to counterfeiting efforts which rdagnage our brand value. Any inability to
effectively police our trademark rights againstutharized uses by third parties could adverselyaichphe value of our trademarks and our
brand recognition. If we fail to maintain and entaithe Ubiquiti brand, or if we need to incur ungipated expenses to establish the brand in
new markets, our operating results would be neghtiaffected from reduced sales and increased segeelated to strengthening our brand
and our customers may be confused about which ptedue ours.
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The networking, enterprise WLAN, video surveillanaaicrowave backhaul and machine-to-machine commeations markets in which we
compete are highly competitive and competitive grees from existing and new products and solutiangy have a material adverse effect
on our business, revenues, growth rates and mastere.

The networking, enterprise WLAN, video surveillanogcrowave backhaul and machine-to-machine comeatioins markets in which we
compete are highly competitive and are influencgddmpetitive factors including:

» price and total cost of ownership and return orgtment associated with the soluti
« simplicity of deployment and use of the solutic

« ability to rapidly develop high performance integihsolutions

» reliability and scalability of the solutior

» market awareness of a particular bri

» ability to provide secure access to wireless neltgy

» ability to offer a suite of products and solutic

» ability to allow centralized management of the Sols; an

» ability to provide quality product suppc¢

We expect competition to intensify in the futureotiser established and new companies introducepmneducts in the same markets we sen
intend to enter and as these markets continuertsotidate. In particular, companies with successiidely known brands may price their
products aggressively to compete with ours. Thimetition could result in increased pricing pressueduced profit margins, increased sales
and marketing expenses and failure to increasthednss of, market share, any of which would fkstriously harm our business, operating
results or financial condition. If we do not keegcp with product and technology advances, end nsaysswitch to other suppliers and our
ability to sell our products may be impaired, whiduld harm our competitive position, revenues piregpects for growth.

A number of our current or potential competitors ke longer operating histories, greater brand recdgpn, larger customer bases ar
significantly greater financial, technical, salesparketing and other resources than we ¢

As we move into new markets for different typegqtiipment, our brand may not be as well known esntbents in those markets. Potential
customers may prefer to purchase from their exjstumppliers rather than a new supplier, regardiépsoduct performance or features. In the
integrated radio market, our competitors includegdfdaa and Trango, and in the 900MHz product mametco and Proxim. In the embedded
radio market, our competitors include Mikilds and Senao. In the backhaul market, our congpetinclude Ceragon, DragonWave and
Mikrotikls. In the CPE market, our competitors include tdiikls, Ruckus and TP-LINK. In the antenna market pnmarily compete with
PCTEL and Radio Waves. In the enterprise WLAN mianke primarily compete with Ruckus, Aruba Netwogksd Cisco. In the video
surveillance market, we primarily compete with Mgk, Axis Communications and Mobotix. In the micene backhaul market, we primarily
compete with Cambium, DragonWave, SAF Tehnika arahdo. In the machine-to-machine communicationsketawe primarily compete
with EnergyHub, Motorola and AlertMe.com. We expiectreased competition from other established anerging companies if our market
continues to develop and expand. As we enter nerkets® we expect to face competition from incumtsamd new market participants.

In addition, some of our competitors have made adipns or entered into partnerships or othertsgi@ relationships with one another to o

a more comprehensive solution than they had offergididually. We expect this consolidation to conie as companies attempt to strengthen
or maintain their market positions in an evolvingustry and as companies enter into partnershipseoacquired. Many of the companies
driving this consolidation trend have significangiseater financial, technical and other resourbas tve do and are better positioned to acquir
and offer complementary products and technolodiks.competitors resulting from these possible clittstions may create more compelling
product offerings and be able to offer greateripgdlexibility, making it more difficult for us taompete effectively, including on the basis of
price, sales and marketing programs, technology@duct functionality. Continued industry consotida may adversely impact perceptions
the viability of smaller and even medium-sized terlbgy companies and, consequently, willingnegsutehase from such companies. These
pricing pressures and competition from more comgmslve solutions could impair our ability to salirgoroducts profitably, if at all, which
could negatively affect our revenues and resultgpefrations.

New entrants and the introduction of other distriion models in our markets may harm our competitipesition.

The markets for development, distribution and séleur products are rapidly evolving. New entrasgsking to gain market share by
introducing new technology and new products mayeriaknore difficult for us to sell our products,dacould create increased pricing press
reduced profit margins, increased sales and macketipenses or the loss of market share or expatiekkt share, any of which may
significantly harm our business, operating resaiitd financial condition.
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Historically, large, integrated telecommunicati@gsiipment suppliers controlled access to the wasegiroadband infrastructure equipment anc
network management software that could be usegtéme the geographic reach of wireless internevolés. However, in recent years,
network operators and service providers have bblenta purchase wireless broadband infrastructgugpenent and purchase and implement
network management applications from distributoesellers and OEMSs. In addition, increased conipetftom providers of wireless
broadband equipment may result in fewer vendorsigirig complementary equipment to our products,clvidould harm our business and
revenues. Broadband equipment providers or sysitgriators may also offer wireless broadband itrinature equipment for free or as par

a bundled offering, which could force us to redaaoe prices or change our selling model to remampetitive. If there is a major shift in the
market such that network operators and serviceigeeos begin to use closed network solutions tht operate with other equipment from the
same vendor, we could experience a significanteah sales because our products would not beopézable with these proprietary
standards.

We may not be able to enhance our products to keape with technological and market developmentsderelop new products in a timely
manner or at competitive prices.

The market for our wireless broadband networkingigment is emerging and is characterized by ragitiriological change, evolving industry
standards, frequent new product introductions &uedt groduct life cycles. Our ability to keep paei¢h technological developments, satisfy
increasing network operator and service providguirements and achieve product acceptance dep@odsour ability to enhance our current
products and continue to develop and introduce praduct offerings and enhanced performance feaamddgunctionality on a timely basis at
competitive prices. Our inability, for technolodica other reasons, to enhance, develop, introduckeliver compelling products in a timely
manner, or at all, in response to changing mardedlitions, technologies or network operator angtiserprovider expectations could have a
material adverse effect on our operating resuksif users fail to purchase our products. For el@nifpwe are unable to achieve in a timely
manner and keep pace the same level of integratidrplug and play functionality for our enterpnseducts that characterizes our airMAX
product line, our ability to grow our end user basd achieve broad acceptance of our enterpriskipt® could be adversely affected. Our
ability to compete successfully will depend in kamgeasure on our ability to maintain a technicskiyled development and engineering staff
and to adapt to technological changes and advamdks industry, including providing for the contied compatibility of our products with
evolving industry standards and protocols and cditiyvgenetwork management environments. Developraedtdelivery schedules for our
products are difficult to predict. We may fail trioduce new versions of our products in a timakhion. If new releases of our products are
delayed, our distributors may curtail their effddamarket and promote our products and networkaipes and service providers may switch tc
competing products, any of which would result ideday or loss of revenues and could harm our basirla addition, we cannot assure you
the technologies and related products that we dpweill be brought to market by us as quickly ascpated or that they will achieve broad
acceptance among network operators and servicédersv

We may become subject to warranty claims, prodiatility and product recalls.

From time to time, we may become subject to wayranproduct liability claims that may require wsnhake significant expenditures to deft
these claims or pay damage awards. In the evemta@irranty claim, we may also incur costs if we pensate the affected network operator o
service provider. We may also be the subject ofipeoliability claims. Such claims could requirsignificant amount of time and expense to
resolve and defend against and could also harmepuitation by calling into question the qualityonfr products. We also may incur costs and
expenses relating to a recall of one or more ofppaducts. For example, during the three monthe@mdarch 31, 2013 we recalled our Rocke
Titanium products due to an identified manufactyigsue which was subsequently rectified. The m®oé identifying recalled products that
have been widely distributed may be lengthy andirecsignificant resources and we may incur sigaiiit replacement costs, contract damagge
claims from our network operators or service prevddand harm to our reputation. Costs or paymeatiern connection with warranty and
product liability claims and product recalls cogllse our operating results to decline and harnii@urd.

Our distributors, network operators, service proeig, VARs and system integrators may expect usiteimnify them for intellectual
property infringement claims, damages caused byedtif/e products and other losse

Our distributors, network operators, service prevedand other parties may expect us to indemnéyntfor losses suffered or incurred in
connection with our products, including as a restilhtellectual property infringement, defectivegducts, damages caused by defects and
damages caused by viruses, worms and other malisiwfitware, although our agreements with them nadyim all cases, require us to provide
this indemnification. The maximum potential amoahfuture payments we could be required to make begubstantial or unlimited and
could materially harm our business, operating tesarid financial condition. We may in the futureesgto defend and indemnify our
distributors, network operators, service providard other parties, irrespective of whether we kelibat we have an obligation to indemnify
them or whether we believe that
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our services and products infringe the assertedléatual property rights. Alternatively, we mayeat certain of these indemnity demands,
which may lead to disputes with a distributor, natkvoperator, service provider or other party aray megatively impact our relationships w
the party demanding indemnification or result tightion against us. Our distributors, network @pers, service providers and other parties
may also claim that any rejection of their indemmiémands constitutes a material breach of oureageats with them, allowing them to
terminate such agreements. If, as a result of imitggrdemands, substantial payments are requiratietationships with our distributors,
network operators, service providers and otheliggmdre negatively impacted or if any of our mafleagreements is terminated, our business,
operating results and financial condition couldhteterially adversely affected.

If we lose the services of our founder and chiefeexitive officer, Robert J. Pera, other key membef®ur management team or ke
research and development employees, we would beimed| to replace these individuals. We may not txeato smoothly transition and may
incur additional expense to recruit and employ repkements.

Our success and future growth depend on the skitisking relationships and continued services ofraenagement team and in particular, ou
founder and chief executive officer, Robert J. Pénar future performance will also depend on odilitsiio continue to retain our other senior
management. We do not maintain key person insurf@m@ny of our personnel, except for a minor pplidth respect to Mr. Pera.

Our business model relies in part on leanly stafifedependent and efficient research and developteams. Our research and development
team is organized around small groups or individwaltributors for a given platform and there idibverlap in knowledge and
responsibilities. In the event that we are unablestain the services of any key contributors, vay ime unable to bring our products or product
improvements to market in a timely manner, if tdile to disruption in our development activities.

Our future success will also depend on our abititattract, retain and motivate skilled personnghe United States and internationally. All of
our employees work for us on an at will basis. Cetitipn for personnel is intense in the networké&mgipment industry, particularly for
persons with specialized experience in areas ssieintenna design and RF equipment. As a resultyayebe unable to attract or retain
qualified personnel. Our inability to attract ardain the necessary personnel could adverselytaftedusiness, operating results and finar
condition.

We operate in an industry with extensive intelleatyproperty litigation. Claims of infringement agast us or our suppliers may cause us to
incur substantial expenses to defend ourselves andld impair our ability to sell our products if aadverse outcome were to occur.

Our commercial success depends in part upon usancbmponent suppliers not infringing, misapprafing or otherwise violating

intellectual property rights owned by others anohpeble to resolve intellectual property claimshout major financial expenditures. We
operate in an industry with extensive intellectoaperty litigation and it is not uncommon for slipgs of certain components of our products,
such as chipsets, to be involved in intellectuapprty-related lawsuits by or against third partMany industry participants that own, or claim
to own, intellectual property aggressively asdegtrtrights. Our key component suppliers are ofé&egets of such assertions, and we may
become a target as well. In addition, the netwqrérators and service providers, whom we agreertaioecircumstances to indemnify for
intellectual property infringement claims relatedour products, may be targets of such assertiescannot determine with certainty whether
any existing or future third party intellectual pssty rights would require us to alter our techigids, obtain licenses or cease certain activitie:

There are numerous patents and patent applicatidghe United States and other countries relatinggmmunications technologies, and many
of our competitors and other parties have substipitent portfolios in this area. We do not gelyecnduct searches for patents relating to
our technologies or approach third parties to sektense to their patents. Even if we were to cehduch searches we may not uncover all
relevant patents and patent applications. We therefannot assure that our products, technologi@®perations do not, and will not, infringe
third party patents. We have received, and makerfiture receive, claims from third parties assgrintellectual property infringement and
other related claims. In addition, if our revengesw and our profile increases, the frequency awveisty of these claims may increase. Future
litigation may be necessary to defend ourselvesd@ngand indemnification from our suppliers, if agmiate, by determining the scope,
enforceability and validity of third party propray rights or to establish our own proprietary tgtsome of our competitors may have
substantially greater resources than we do andbeaple to sustain the costs of complex intelldgit@perty litigation to a greater degree and
for longer periods of time than we could. In adafitipatent holding companies and other third-paoty-practicing entities that focus on
extracting royalties and settlements by enforciatppt rights may target our component suppliersyufacturers, us, our distributors, members
of our sales channels, our network operators andceeproviders, or other purchasers of our prosliithese companies typically have little or
no product revenues and therefore our
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patents may provide little or no deterrence agansh companies filing patent infringement lawsagainst our component suppliers,
manufacturers, us, our distributors, members ofsaigs channels, network operators and servicadasy or other purchasers of our products
For example, we have received correspondence fastain patent holding companies who assert thahftiege certain patents related to
wireless communication technologies. We believe tiiese patents are either invalid or not infringgdis. However, we cannot assure you

a court adjudicating a claim that we infringe thpatents would rule in our favor should these patefding companies file suit against us. We
believe that in the event of a claim we may betketito seek indemnification from our suppliers wéwer, we cannot provide any assurances
that if we seek such indemnification, we will rageit. At any time, any of these third parties ebuilitiate litigation against us, or we may be
forced to initiate litigation against them. RegasH of whether claims that we are infringing patetnademarks or other intellectual property
rights have any merit, these claims can be timswming and costly to evaluate and defend and could:

» adversely affect our relationships with our currenfuture network operators and service provigdersuppliers

e cause delays or stoppages in the shipment of agiupts, or cause us to modify or redesign our prtx

e cause us to incur significant expenses in defendaims brought against us, for which we maybmable to obtain indemnification, if
applicable, from our suppliers;

« divert managemerg’attention and resourc

» subject us to significant damages or settlem

* require us to enter into settlements, royalty egnising agreements on unfavorable terrr

* require us to cease certain activit

Moreover, even if some of our contract manufacgiege obligated to indemnify us, these contractufeanturers may contest their obligations
to indemnify us, or their available assets or indiynobligation may not be sufficient to cover dosses.

In addition to liability for monetary damages agsins or, in certain circumstances, our networkafoes and service providers, we may be
prohibited from developing, commercializing or dooing to provide certain of our products unlessols&ain licenses from the holders of the
patents or other intellectual property rights. Vdarmot assure you that we will be able to obtainsrmgh licenses on commercially reasonable
terms, or at all. If we do not obtain such licenses business, operating results and financiadlitimm could be materially adversely affected
and we could, for example, be required to ceasFioff our products or be required to materiallgrattur products, which could involve
substantial costs and time to develop.

For information regarding our trademarks, see igiefactor above titled “Our business and prospdefgend on the strength of our brand.
Failure to maintain and enhance our brand wouldhhaur ability to expand our base of distributord #me number of network operators and
service providers who purchase our products.”

We and our contract manufacturers purchase some @aments, subassemblies and products from a limiteenber of suppliers. The loss
any of these suppliers may substantially disruptr @lbility to obtain orders and fulfill sales as waesign in and qualify new components.

We rely on third party components and technologlyuibd and operate our products, and we rely oncoutract manufacturers to obtain the
components, subassemblies and products necessaing imanufacture of our products. Shortages inpmorants that we use in our products
possible, and our ability to predict the availapitf such components is limited. If shortages odauhe future, as they have in the past, our
business, operating results and financial condittonld be materially adversely affected. Unpreditggrice increases of such components
to market demand may occur. While components apgligs are generally available from a variety afrees, we and our contract
manufacturers currently depend on a single or dichitumber of suppliers for several components diopooducts. If our suppliers of these
components or technology were to enter into exetugglationships with other providers of networkeguipment or were to discontinue
providing such components and technology to usvamdere unable to replace them cost effectivelytall, our ability to provide our
products would be impaired. We and our contractufeiurers generally rely on purchase orders rattaar long-term contracts with these
suppliers. As a result, even if available, we andamntract manufacturers may not be able to sesuffecient components at reasonable prices
or of acceptable quality to build our products itinaely manner. Therefore, we may be unable to rmestomer demand for our products, wl
would have a material adverse effect on our busirmserating results and financial condition.

Our reliance on third party components and techqoloeans that we may not be able to introduce meduzts or continue to sell existing
products without obtaining and maintaining techgglticenses from third parties. For example, waeantty rely upon a license from
Qualcomm Atheros, whose chipsets are incorporat@dmajority of our products. This process is caitito our ability to manufacture our
products. Obtaining and maintaining these licemsag be costly and may delay the introduction ohsfieatures and functionality, and these
licenses may not be available or renewable on cawially favorable terms, or at all, and even ifemetd into, may in some circumstances be
terminated. The inability to offer advanced feasuoe
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functionality, or a delay in our introduction ofwmgroducts, may adversely affect demand for oudpets and consequently, materially
adversely affect our business, operating resulisfiaancial condition.

We are dependent on Qualcomm Atheros for chipsetsdur products and do not have short-term alteriags if Qualcomm Atheros were to
terminate its agreement with us, which could causeto be unable to fulfill short-term demand andldg our ability to fulfill orders.

Substantially all of our products currently includ@psets from Qualcomm Atheros. Our license ageggtwith Qualcomm Atheros may be
terminated for convenience at the end of the ancwratract term which is September 1, 2014 upong8@ g@rior written notice by either party.
The termination of our license agreement with Qoiim Atheros could have a material adverse effectwrbusiness, operating results and
financial condition. To the extent we are unablsaoure an adequate supply of chipsets from Quaicatheros, we would be required to
redesign our products to incorporate components fatternative sources, a process which would csigséficant delays and would adversely
impact our revenues. In accordance with the cuteenis of the agreement, Qualcomm Atheros may etmterminate the agreement without
cause at the end of the annual contract term bggivs at least 90 days prior written notice bef®eptember 1, 2014. We do not stockpile
sufficient chipsets to cover the time it would takere-engineer our products to replace the Quahedktheros chipsets. Furthermore, if we
sought a suitable second source for Qualcomm Ashenipsets in our products, there can be no assesdhat we would be able to
successfully second source our chipsets on acdeptins, if at all. In any event, our use of ckigsrom multiple sources may require us to
significantly modify our product designs to accontate these different chipsets.

We rely on a limited number of contract manufactueseto produce and test all of our products, andltae to successfully manage our
relationships with these parties could adverselfeat our ability to market and sell our products.

We retain contract manufacturers, which are prilpdocated in China, to manufacture and controlliggaf our products. We currently do not
have long-term supply contracts with any of thes@mact manufacturers. Any significant change inrelationship with these manufacturers
could have a material adverse effect on our busjregserating results and financial condition. We&kensubstantially all of our purchases from
our contract manufacturers on a purchase ordes.b@si contract manufacturers are not otherwiseired to manufacture our products for :
specific period or in any specific quantity. We egpthat it would take approximately three to sismis to transition manufacturing and
guality assurance services to new providers. Rglgim contract manufacturers for manufacturing amality assurance also presents significar
risks to us, including the inability of our conttamanufacturers to:

» assure the quality of our produ

e manage capacity during periods of volatile dem

e qualify appropriate component suppli

e ensure adequate supplies of matel

e protect our intellectual property rigr

» deliver finished products at agreed upon pricessahedules; ar
» safeguard consigned materials and finished g

The ability and willingness of our contract manuéeers to perform is largely outside our contrar Example, during mid-2009, the
technology market was rebounding from the sharp@enc contraction that was experienced in 2008. yruppliers and contract
manufacturers were unprepared for the speed atthmund. This led to significant component shorsagyed capacity constraints at contract
manufacturers. During this time, our contract mantifrers claimed difficulty in procuring componeatsl extended our order lead times
significantly, which forced us to extend the lesde for our distributors.

From time to time, we may change contract manufacsywhich may disrupt our ability to obtain ouwogucts in a timely manner. We believe
that our orders may not represent a material podfmur contract manufacturers’ total orders asda result, fulfilling our orders may not be a
priority in the event our contract manufacturees @onstrained in their abilities or resources thlifall of their customer obligations in a time
manner. If any of our contract manufacturers ssféer interruption in its business, experiencesydeldisruptions or quality control problem:
its manufacturing operations or we have to chamgald additional contract manufacturers, our abititship products to our customers would
be delayed, our revenues could become volatileoandost of revenues may increase.
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We recently retained the services of a third padgistics and warehousing provider in China. Theiliare or inability of this service provide
to safeguard and to accurately segregate, record agport our inventory could disrupt our businesadharm our reputation and operating
results.

Beginning in the quarter ended December 31, 20&2he&gan using a third party logistics and warehlmgugrovider in China to fulfill the
majority of our worldwide sales. Prior to that, alipments were mainly fulfilled by our contractmaéacturers. Depending on the terms of ou
arrangements with the contract manufacturers, ligimto this inventory may belong to them or & MWe rely on this third party logistics and
warehousing provider to accurately segregate arwrdeour inventory for us and to report to us theeipt and shipments of our products. We
also rely on our third party logistics and warehinggrovider to efficiently manage and track théwgy of products from the warehouse.
Further, we rely on our third party logistics prd&t to safeguard our inventory, which accountsafeast majority of our inventory balance. If
this service provider fails to safeguard and taeately segregate and record our inventory or mauagl track the delivery of products, the
resulting product loss and/or administrative burdeuald have a material adverse effect on our basimgperating results and financial
condition.

Our third party logistics and warehousing providar China may fail to deliver products to our custars in an accurate and timely manner,
which could harm our reputation and operating ressl|

We rely on our third party logistics and warehoggmovider in China to accurately deliver on a tiyieasis our products to our customers.
However, due to factors out of our control, thedhparty logistics provider could fail to delivdret correct product or to deliver products in a
timely manner. Any delay in delivery of our prodsicr inaccurate delivery of our products to ourtaoeers could create dissatisfaction amonc
our customers and harm our reputation. Such faiturkeliver products to our customers in an aceuaatd timely manner could also have a
material adverse effect on our business, operatisglts and financial condition.

We have recently increased our levels of inventofyinished products and are exposed to the riskcafrying excess or obsolete products.

With the use of our third party logistics and waresing provider, we have increased our levels wérimory of finished products and are
exposed to the risk of carrying excess or obsqegducts. We are also faced with the same risk weispect to the Qualcomm Atheros chipset:
and other components necessary to ensure a cousirsupply of finished products. If demand for cotimgeor newer versions of our products
accelerates more rapidly than we expect, we coaliceuired to write-off excess products for whieménd has eroded which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, operagisglts and financial condition.

We are subject to numerous U.S. export control ambnomic sanctions laws and a substantial majoofyour sales are into countries
outside of the United States. Sales outside oflthréted States represented 75% , 76% and 70% ofreuenues in fiscal 2013 , fiscal 2012
and fiscal 2011, respectively. Although we did not intend to dq 8@ have violated certain of these laws in thetpasd we cannot currentl
assess the nature and extent of any fines or otpenalties, if any, that U.S. governmental agencimay impose against us or our employees
for any such violations. Any fines, if materiallyiffierent from our estimates, or other penalties,dd have a material adverse effect on @
business and financial results.

Sale of certain of our products into Iran, Cubaj&yhe Sudan and North Korea is restricted ohjmited under U.S. export control and
economic sanctions laws. In addition, certain of geducts incorporate encryption components ang meaexported from and outside the
United States only with the required authorizatioreligibility for a license exception. Until ear®010, we lacked sufficient familiarity with t
export control and sanctions laws and their appliitg to our products. Our lack of sufficient falmrity was largely due to our lean corporate
infrastructure, the inexperience of our managertesarh in these matters and the fact that our pradaret manufactured outside the United
States and most of our products never enter theet§itates. In early 2010, as a result of diligammertaken in connection with the Summit
transaction, we learned that our products couldoaatold, directly or indirectly, into Iran and etfrcountries subject to a U.S. embargo and wi
learned that some of our products were listed efbmmerce Control List in the EAR, and requiréhatization from the BIS, prior to export.
We then began to evaluate the export controls andt®ns applicable to our product sales and te saéps to comply with these laws. For
instance, we revised our standard form distribuigreements to clearly articulate the restrictiomsosed by export control and sanctions law:
governing business with embargoed countries, dishtbbwnloads of our software by users in thesetcasnand obtained the required
Commodity Classification Rulings for our encryptiproducts as required by the EAR. In February 201t Audit Committee retained outside
counsel to conduct a review of our export contahpliance and possible sales of our products bigl theérsons to embargoed countries. This
review was conducted to fully respond to and coatgewith a request for information from OEE, reigtto two foreign companies and the
export classification of our products and to enshead we were in compliance with the export contnadl sanctions laws. The review
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was completed in April 2011 and we took the actidescribed below as a result of our review. In Nag1, we filed a disclosure report
regarding our findings as a result of this revieithvDEE. In August 2011, we received a warningeleftom the OEE indicating that the OEE
had completed its investigation of us, was closingthe matter without issuing a penalty, had e&tnmred the matters described below for
criminal or administrative prosecution and clogeg investigation of us. In June 2011, we also fdadluntary self-disclosure with OFAC, the
results of which are still pending.

Transactions Involving Possible Sales of Produats Iran

Although we do not believe that we directly soldperted or shipped our products into Iran or arheotountry subject to a U.S. embargo, we
believe our products have been sold into Iran by gharties. Until early 2010, we did not prohibiir distributors from selling our products i
Iran or any other country subject to a U.S. embargo

From 2008 to early 2010, we had a distributionrageament with a distributor (“Distributor 1”), inéHJnited Arab Emirates (“UAE") that gave
this distributor exclusive jurisdiction over eleveountries in the Middle East, including Iran, aslivas authorization to sell worldwide. We hac
no sales to Distributor 1 in fiscal 2012 or fis28lL3, and sales to Distributor 1 represented 4%6&haf our revenues in fiscal 2011 and fiscal
2010, respectively. We cannot determine which ofpyaducts Distributor 1 sold directly or indiractb persons in Iran. At some point prior to
February 2010, Distributor 1 requested that wetlst resellers on our website as authorized rasefitour products in Iran and we did so. We
removed these resellers from our website in latewary 2010 upon learning of restrictions underwh®. embargo.

In early 2010, we began implementing policies pbilnig sales of our products into the countriegesciito the U.S. embargo, revised our
standard form distribution agreements to cleadigalate this policy and disabled downloads of software by users in these countries. We
also entered into a new distribution agreement Wigtributor 1 that excluded Iran as one of itsiteries and contained explicit covenants that
Distributor 1 would comply with U.S. export contrarhd economic sanction laws, including a covenantmsell our products into Iran.

From March 2010 until February 2011, we continueithg business with Distributor 1 under the amendisttibution agreement. However, we
now believe that Distributor 1 continued to self pwoducts into Iran after February 2010 and thatowerlooked emails from Distributor 1 that
included information about Distributor 1's possiblivities related to shipping our products talrn February 2011, we suspended sales of
our products to Distributor 1 due to the informatlearned during our export control review thatdatled Distributor 1 may still be selling
products into Iran. Also, during our investigatiwe learned that from December 2009 through Febr2@iyl, another distributor, Distributor
was selling our products to a company in Iran.httime of these transactions, we did not havestaillition agreement with Distributor 2 and
we had not specifically instructed Distributor 2tlour products could not be sold into Iran. Disttor 2, a distributor in Europe, received
orders from an Iranian entity, placed those ordetis us and instructed us to ship the productsttdrd party in the UAE. As such, we believ
the products’ final destination was the UAE. Ouwramrels indicate that we may have made up to 13 gmipsrto Distributor 2 involving an
aggregate value of approximately $340,000 that hzaxe been resold into Iran during this time. PigoFebruary 2011, we had not previously
notified Distributor 2 of our prohibition againsiles of our products into Iran. In March 2011, upearning that it was receiving orders from a
company in Iran, we notified Distributor 2 that #ed customer was in Iran and of our prohibitiorsates to Iran and also entered into a
distribution agreement with Distributor 2. The agrent contains clear language requiring compliavittethe export control and economic
sanctions laws. We continue to sell products tdribistor 2, as we believe this issue has beenvedand these sales did not represent a
material portion of Distributor 2's business with u

Export Classification of Our Produc

Following the Summit transaction, we began to redeahether our products were subject to U.S. exqguntrols and we hired outside counsel
to assist us with this analysis. We learned thatraber of our products, although they are foreigrdpced and do not enter into the United
States, may be considered encryption items un@éeEAR and required an encryption review by BISMiay 2010, we filed encryption reviews
with BIS for our products, and we obtained the miCommaodity Classification Rulings for our pratsibetween June 2010 and November
2010. We shipped our products prior to receiviresthrulings and these shipments appear to hawedothe EAR. In addition, we used
incorrect export authorizations on our shippingudoents even after we received the required Comm@lé#ssification Rulings.

Accordingly, prior to May 2010, we did not fully smly with applicable encryption controls in the EAdRSspite having made foreign sales of
such items, and continued to use incorrect expghaaizations on shipping documents until Febridy1, as we did not fully understand the
scope of the requirements. In addition, througltioistperiod, we lacked an effective compliance progwith respect to these laws. We have
implemented a significant number of policies angcedures and continue to implement further poliaied procedures that will help us to
comply with these laws.
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Inquiry from U.S. Department of Comme’s Office of Export Enforcement

In January 2011, OEE contacted us to request tgiravide information related to our relationshighva logistics company in the UAE and
with a company in Iran, neither of which comparaes Distributor 1 or Distributor 2, as well as infation on the export classification of our
products. As a result of this inquiry we, assidigautside counsel, conducted a review of our edpansactions from 2008 through March
2011 to not only gather information responsive B3 request but also to review our overall compd@with export control and sanctions
laws. We believe our products have been sold nato by third parties. We do not believe that wecdlily sold, exported or shipped our
products into Iran or any other country subjeci 1d.S. embargo. However, until early 2010, we aitiprohibit our distributors from selling
our products into Iran or any other country subfec U.S. embargo. In the course of this reviewideatified that two distributors may have
sold Ubiquiti products into Iran. Our review alsuhd that while we had obtained required Commodigssification Rulings for our products
in June 2010 and November 2010, we did not aduiseslipping personnel to change the export autatiozs used on our shipping docume
until February 2011. During the course of our exgontrol review, we also determined that we ha@dao maintain adequate records for the
five year period required by the EAR and the samstiregulations due to our lack of infrastructurd because it was prior to our transition to
our current system of record, NetSuite.

In May 2011, we filed a self-disclosure statemeitbhthe BIS and OEE. In June 2011 we filed a s&dldsure statement with OFAC,
regarding the compliance issues noted above. Huotodures address the above described findingthengmedial actions we have taken to
date. However, the findings also indicate that labsitributors continued to sell, directly or inditly, our products into Iran during the period
from February 2010 through March 2011 and thateeeived various communications from them indicativag they were continuing to do so.
Since January 2011, we have cooperated with OEEpaiud to our disclosure filing, we informally steal with the OEE the substance of our
findings with respect to both distributors. Fromyv2011 to August 2011, we provided additional infiation regarding our review and our
findings to OEE to facilitate its investigation a®éE advised us in August 2011 that it had comglégeinvestigation of us. In August 2011,
we received a warning letter from OEE stating BBE had not referred the findings of our reviewdominal or administrative prosecution of
us and closed the investigation without penalty.

OFAC is still reviewing our voluntary disclosur@. dur submission, we have provided OFAC with anaxtion of the activities that led to 1
sales of our products in Iran and the failure tmply with the EAR and OFAC sanctions. Although QFAC and OEE voluntary disclosures
covered similar sets of facts that led the OEEesmive the case with the issuance of a warningr|éfFAC may conclude that our actions
resulted in violations of U.S. export control armeomic sanctions laws and warrant the impositiopemalties that could include fines,
termination of our ability to export our producasid/or referral for criminal prosecution. The masimcivil monetary penalty for the violatio
is up to $250,000 or twice the value of the tratisacwhichever is greater, per violation. The gges may be imposed against us and/or our
management. Any such fines or restrictions may agerial to our financial results in the period ihieh they are imposed. Also, disclosure of
our conduct and any fines or other action relatinthis conduct could harm our reputation and heweaterial adverse effect on our business,
operating results and financial condition. We campredict when OFAC will complete its review or i upon the imposition of possible
penalties.

We have taken actions designed to ensure that esjagsification information is distributed to tappropriate personnel in a timely manner
have adopted policies and procedures to promoteaapliance with applicable export laws and redofe, including obtaining written
distribution agreements with substantially all af distributors that contain covenants requiringhptiance with U.S. export control and
economic sanctions law; notifying all of our dibtrtors of their obligations and obtaining updatedribution agreements from distributors that
account for approximately 99% of our distributoverue in fiscal 2013 . However we cannot be sucé sations will be effective.

Additionally, our failure to amend all our distrifian agreements and to implement more robust campdi controls immediately after the
discovery of Iran-related sales activity in earBl@ may be aggravating factors that could impagirtiposition of penalties imposed on us or
our management. Further, should our efforts to eneur compliance with applicable export laws aggltations not be sufficient in prevent
our distributors from distributing our productsard country subject to a U.S. embargo or otherwviislating applicable export laws and
regulations in the future, we could be subjectdeagnment investigations or penalties in the futdmy such penalties, if they occur, may be
more severe in light of our prior violations dissed above. Based on the facts known to us to dategcorded an expense of $1.6 million for
this export compliance matter in fiscal 2010, whiepresents management’s estimated exposure & ifinaccordance with applicable
accounting literature. This amount was calculatechfinformation discovered through our internalie@gvand we deem this loss to be probable
and reasonably estimable. However, we believeitimteasonably possible that the loss may bedrighut we cannot reasonably estimate the
range of any further potential losses. Should aatthi facts be discovered in the future and/or &haatual fines or other penalties substant
differ from our estimates, our business, financ@idition, cash flows and results of operationsdidne materially negatively impacted.
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We may also be subject to export control and ecorosanctions laws of jurisdictions outside of thenitied States and a substantial majority
of our sales are into countries outside of the Ugtk States. If we fail to comply with those foreigrport control and economic sanctions
laws, we may be unable to sell our products and business would be materially and adversely affdcéad our revenues would decline.

In addition to U.S. export regulations, variousestbountries regulate the import of certain endoyptechnology and products, and these laws
could limit our ability to distribute our produads our customers’ ability to implement our productshose countries. Changes in our products
or changes in export and import regulations magterdelays in the introduction of our productstimen countries, prevent our customers with
international operations from deploying our progduat, in some cases, prevent the transfer of mdyats to certain countries altogether. Any
change in export or import regulations or relatggidlation, shift in approach to the enforcemergampe of existing regulations, or change in
the countries, persons or technologies targetesuibly regulations, could negatively impact our il sell our products to existing customers
or the ability of our current and potential distribrs, network operators and service providersideithe United States.

We base our production on our forecasts of futur@es. If these forecasts are materially inaccuratee may overbuild product, which we
may be unable to sell in a timely manner or at ail, we may underbuild product, which may impair ogustomer relationships.

Our distributors typically provide us with purchameers for delivery within 60 days. We provide sontract manufacturers forecasts of up to
approximately five months of demand for long leiagktcomponents. To the extent our forecasts aremally inaccurate because we do not
receive anticipated purchase order volume, we malguor overbuild product. We may over or undeedast the distributors’ actual demand
for our products or the mix of products and the ponents associated with the building of our prosludte have experienced volatility in
orders with limited advanced notice, and we expach volatility to occur in the future. If we areable to meet any increases in demand, our
business, operating results and financial condittonld be materially adversely affected and ouutagion with our customers may be
damaged. Conversely, if we over forecast demandnaebuild excess inventory which could materialtiversely affect our business,
operating results and financial condition.

We have limited experience and personnel to managesupply chain, our contract manufacturers and othird party logistics services
provider, which may cause us to experience lowesgurct margins, impair product quality and result iour inability to fulfill demand for
our products and solutions.

We rely on our contract manufacturers to produaktast all of our products. We also rely on ourtcaet manufacturers to obtain the
components, subassemblies and products necessaing imanufacture of our products. We have limérgerience and personnel to manage
our relationships with our contract manufacturerd aur supply chain. Inaccurately forecasting camend for key components, including the
Qualcomm Atheros chipsets, could materially adugratect our ability to build our products in anely manner and our margins could
decline. Any failure by us to effectively and proaely manage these relationships and activitiagdcoesult in material adverse effects on our
business, operating results and financial conditiiowe were required or choose to transition saheur supply chain activities from our
contract manufacturers to within our organizatioa,would be required to hire more experienced parsband develop more supply chain
policies and procedures. This transition coulddrgthy and could cause significant delays in tlegpetion, testing and shipment of our
products, any of which may result in material agdeezffects, including an increase in our costsaumdbility to ship our products and
solutions. We cannot assure you that we would beeable to effectively complete any such transition

We have significantly increased our transactionalles volumes in recent periods, and if we falil tifeetively manage the challenges
associated with this transaction volume growth, may experience difficulty in properly fulfilling catomer orders and may incur increased
operational costs.

Over the past several years we have and continexptand our product offerings, the number of custemve sell to and the number of cont
manufacturers we utilize to produce our producsslufe to effectively manage the increased logidtiomplexities associated with this
expansion would make it difficult to fulfill custoen orders in a timely manner and could lead toarust dissatisfaction. Further, we may neec
to increase costs to add personnel, upgrade aaeplur existing reporting systems as well as ingour business processes and controls.
Failure to effectively manage any of these log@tahallenges would adversely impact our businestopmance and operating results.
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We rely on the Ubiquiti Community to generate awaess of, and demand for, our products. If particiggan in the Ubiquiti Community
decreases materially, or if negative informatiomsgified or otherwise, spreads quickly through tbemmunity, we would need to incur
substantial additional expenses to generate awasmnef, and demand for, our produci

We believe a significant portion of our growth tatel has been driven by the diverse and activelgaged Ubiquiti Community and our busin
model is predicated on the assumption that the WihiGommunity will continue to be actively engag&iven our lack of a direct sales force
and limited marketing expenditures, the marketiraglel enabled by the Ubiquiti Community is centoatite success of our business but is
ultimately outside of our control. In light of thapid spread of information within the Ubiquiti Comnity and the material influence such
community has over product adoption by network afges and service providers, any negative informmaéibout us or our products, whethe
not justified, could quickly and materially decreakemand for our products and be difficult forasvercome. If the members of the Ubiquiti
Community were to reject our products and solutimnadopt competitors’ products on a broad basisbasiness, operating results and
financial condition would be materially and advéyssfected because we would need to incur subsiaadditional expenses to generate
awareness of, and demand for, our products.

We rely on the Ubiquiti Community to provide netvkooperators and service providers with supportnstall, operate and maintain our
products. Any inaccurate information regarding oyroducts that is spread by the Ubiquiti Communitylack of member participation witl
respect to particular products could lead to a pager experience or dissatisfaction with our prodsic

As we offer limited technical support for our preti; we rely on the Ubiquiti Community to providesestance and, in many cases
documentation, to network operators and serviceigeos for the installation, operation and mainte®of our products. Because we do not
generate or control the information provided thiotige Ubiquiti Community, inaccurate informatiorgaeding the installation, operation and
maintenance of our products could be promulgateslitih forum postings by members of the Ubiquiti @umity. Inaccurate information
could lead to a poor customer experience or difsation with our products, which could negativishpact our reputation and disrupt our
sales. Although we moderate and review forum pgstio learn of reported problems and assess theaycof advice provided by the Ubig
Community, as our operations continue to grow, veg mot have adequate time or resources to adegumatelitor the quality of Ubiquiti
Community information.

We rely on the Ubiquiti Community to provide our gimeers with valuable feedback central to our resgtaand development processes and
if the members of the Ubiquiti Community were tptproviding feedback, our internal research andvédopment costs could increase.

We rely on the Ubiquiti Community to provide ragidd substantive feedback on the functionality dfet#veness of our products. The
insights, problems and suggestions raised by thguitbCommunity enable our engineers to quicklgalwe issues with our existing products
and improve functionality in subsequent productasks. For example, we developed airSync (palnecditMAX platform) in response to
collocation interference issues that were describdédrum postings by members of the Ubiquiti Conmityt If the members of the Ubiquiti
Community were to become less engaged or othestagged providing valuable, timely feedback, oteiinal research and development ¢
and our time to market would increase, which caaldse us to incur additional expenses or make roalupts less attractive to network
operators and service providers.

Our profitability may decline as we expand into ngoduct areas.

We receive a substantial majority of our revenuesifthe sale of outdoor wireless networking equipim@/e have limited experience in
selling our products outside of our distributiondab As we expand into new product areas, suchi@sprise WLAN, video surveillance
equipment, wireless backhaul and machine-to-maaton@nunications, we may not be able to competetdffdy with existing market
participants and may not be able to realize a pesieturn on the investment we have made in tpesgucts or services. Entering these
markets may result in increased product developmests and our new products may have extendedttinmarket relative to our current
products. If our introduction of a new product & successful or we are not able to achieve themess or margins we expect, our operating
results may be harmed and we may not recover agugt development and marketing expenditures. Weais® be required to add a direct
sales force and customer support personnel to mankksupport new or existing products, which waelguire us to accept substantially lowel
product margins or increase our operating expergiding a direct sales force or customer suppaidqenel could reduce our operating
income and may not be successful.
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If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal controls, we may not be able to accurately repmur financial condition or results of
operations which may adversely affect investor ddefice in our company and, as a result, the valdear common stock.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act ("Section"t@&quires our management to furnish a reportamm, our independent registered public
accounting firm to attest to, the effectivenessufinternal control over financial reporting. Wave implemented an ongoing program to
perform the system and process evaluation anchgestcessary to comply with these requirementshéve incurred and expect to continue tc
incur significant expense and to devote signifieasburces to Section 404 compliance. This assgamust include disclosure of any
material weaknesses identified by our managemeumtirinternal control over financial reporting. Aaterial weakness is a deficiency or
combination of deficiencies in internal control odi@ancial reporting, such that there is a reabtmpossibility that a material misstatement of
a company's annual and interim financial statemeiltsiot be prevented or detected on a timely ®asn the event that our management ol
independent registered public accounting firm detee that our internal control over financial refioy contains a material weakness as
defined under Section 404, investor perceptiorsuofcompany may be adversely affected and couldecawlecline in the market price of our
stock.

Unfavorable tax law changes, an unfavorable goverant review of our tax returns, changes in our geaghic earnings mix, or imposition
of withholding taxes on repatriated earnings coutdiversely affect our effective tax rate and our ogng results.

We conduct operations in multiple jurisdictions dhdrefore our effective tax rate is influencecdtfsy amounts of income and expense
attributed to each such jurisdiction. If such antewmere to change so as to increase the amouots afet income subject to taxation in higher
tax jurisdictions, or if we were to commence opiera in jurisdictions assessing relatively higheer tates, our effective tax rate could be
adversely affected. Historically, we have earnstjaificant amount of our operating income fromside the United States in low tax rate
jurisdictions. The continued availability of thestes is dependent on how we conduct our busimessition across all tax jurisdictions. We
subject to periodic audits or other reviews byaathorities in the jurisdictions in which we contloar activities and there is a risk that tax
authorities could challenge our assertion that axetconducted our business operations approprigtesder to benefit in these lower tax rate
jurisdictions. In addition, there are possible pagposals that are being considered by the U.Sgfess or the legislative bodies in fore
jurisdictions that could affect our tax rate, tlagrging value of deferred tax assets or our othetiabilities. We cannot predict the form

timing of potential legislative changes, but anwheenacted tax law could have a material advergmct on our tax provision, net income :
cash flows. In the event of an unfavorable outcdime,may result in additional tax liabilities ather adjustments to our historical results. In
addition, we may determine that it is advisablerfitime to time to repatriate earnings from non-lissidiaries under circumstances that
could give rise to imposition of potentially sigeéint withholding taxes by the jurisdictions in whisuch amounts were earned and substanti:
tax liabilities in the United States. In additiame may not receive the benefit of any offsettingdeedits, which also could adversely impact
effective tax rate. As of June 30, 2013, we h@ti®b4 million of our $227.8 millionf cash and cash equivalents in accounts of owsidialie:
outside of the United States and we will incur figant tax liabilities if we were to repatriatease amounts.

Although we believe our tax estimates are reasend¢ ultimate tax outcome may materially diffiemfi the tax amounts recorded in our
consolidated financial statements and may matgrédfect our income tax provision, net income astcllows in the period or periods for
which such determination is made.

The final determination of our income tax liabilitynay be materially different from our income tax gvision.

The final determination of our income tax liabilityay be materially different from our income taxyision. We are subject to income taxes in
both the United States and international jurisditéi Significant judgment is required in determgngur worldwide provision for income taxes.
In the ordinary course of our business, there @asyntransactions where the ultimate tax deternonas uncertain. Additionally our
calculations of income taxes are based on ourpreéations of applicable tax laws in the jurisaias in which we file. Although we believe ¢
tax estimates are appropriate, there is no asseithat the final determination of our income tability will not be materially different than
what is reflected in our income tax provisions aodruals.

We are also subject to the periodic examinatioousfincome tax returns by the Internal Revenue iSein the United States and other tax
authorities. We regularly assess the likelihoodaferse outcomes resulting from these examinat@mdstermine the adequacy of our
provision for income taxes. The outcomes from thesaminations may have an adverse effect on ouatipg results and financial condition.
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Should additional taxes be assessed as a reswdtwofegislation, an audit or litigation; if our efitive tax rate should change as a result of
changes in federal, international or state and l@salaws; if we are found to not be in compliawagéh tax regulations; or if we were to change
the locations where we operate, there could betariaheffect on our income tax provision and resof operations in the period or periods in
which that determination is made, and potentialjuture periods as well.

Furthermore, our provision for income tax couldréase as we expand our international operatiom@tackw products, implement changes to
our operating structure or undertake intercompaaysictions in light of acquisitions, changing laxs, expiring rulings, and our current and
anticipated business and operational requirements.

Our operating expenses are increasing as we makgeexitures to enhance and expand our operation®nder to support additional growt
in our business and public company reporting andnepliance obligations.

Over the past several years, we have increaseexpenditure on infrastructure to support our apéitéd growth and as a result of our
becoming a public company. We are continuing toerggnificant investments in information systerigng more administrative personnel,
using more professional services and expandingperations outside the United States. We intendake additional investments in systems
and personnel and continue to expand our operatiosispport anticipated growth in our businessaddition, we may determine the need in
the future to build a direct sales force to magsad sell our products or provide additional resesirar cooperative funds to our distributors.
Such changes to our existing sales model wouldylitesult in higher selling, general and administ&expenses as a percentage of our
revenues. We expect our increased investmentsversely affect operating income. As a result obehtactors, we expect our operating
expenses to increase.

We have experienced rapid growth in recent periodisve fail to manage our growth effectively and deop and implement appropriate
control systems, our business and financial perfante may suffer.

We have substantially expanded our overall busjmessaber of distributors and contract manufactyreesidcount and operations in recent
periods. We have made investments in our informatistems and significantly expanded our operattside the United States, including
expansion of our research and development acsviti¢ithuania and Taiwan. Our expansion has plaaed our expected future growth will
continue to place, a significant strain on our nugmeal, administrative, operational, financial aiter resources. Our business model reflects
our decision to operate with minimal infrastructarel low support and administrative headcountjsis related to managing our growth are
particularly salient and we may not have sufficiem¢rnal resources to adapt or respond to uneggasttallenges. As a result of our focus on
managing our rapid growth, we may have not allatatéficient resources to complying with applicat#gulatory and other requirements,
such as spectrum operating regulations, exporeamzhrgoed countries regulations and the UniteeStadreign Corrupt Practices Act
("FCPA™), and our development of infrastructureigesd to identify and monitor our compliance witlese regulatory and other compliance
obligations is at an early stage. For example gibr&ary 2011 we hired our first employee chargat womplying with spectrum use
requirements and we hired a chief counsel in May12dnd a general counsel in March 2012. Althoughhawes put certain policies and
procedures in place in line with the establishnuérat chief financial officer position, certain dfese policies have been adopted and our
procedures have changed and we have limited stfonsible for their implementation and enforcemiéot example, we have put in place
procedures to verify foreign buyers against U.Sqdalified persons lists and to identify the nemdefkport licenses based on proposed bills of
material for new products. Furthermore, our empdsywho have the most contact with our distributwraho are involved with order entry
have attended training regarding export controtsspred by the BIS. If we are unable to managegmuwth successfully, or if our control
systems do not operate effectively, our businedsoperating results will suffer.

A large percentage of our research and developmaperations are conducted in Taiwan, Lithuania, Iibis, New York and Russia, and o
ability to introduce new products and support ouxisting products cost effectively depends on ouiligpto manage these disparate
development sites successfully.

Our success depends on our ability to enhancerdysreducts and develop new products rapidly arsd effectively. We currently have a
number of our research and development personfaiiman, Lithuania, lllinois, New York and Russia.addition to our corporate
headquarters in California, we must successfuliycate product development activities across thimua development centers and manage
them in such a manner as to meet our time to marketows while maintaining product consistency gudlity. We could incur unexpected
costs or delays in product development at thesetefacilities that could impair our ability to ntemarket windows or cause us to forego
certain new product opportunities.
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We rely on third parties for financial and operatial services essential to our ability to manage dowrsiness. A failure or disruption in thes
services would materially and adversely affect @lnility to manage our business effective

We currently use NetSuite to conduct our order rgangent and financial processes. The availabilitthisf service is essential to the
management of our business. As we expand our apesatve expect to utilize additional systems agrise providers that may also be
essential to managing our business. Although tetersys and services that we require are typicabyla@ve from a number of providers, it is
time consuming and costly to qualify and implemiese relationships. Therefore, our ability to nggnaur business would suffer if one or
more of our providers suffer an interruption initHrusiness, or experience delays, disruptionsuality control problems in their operations,
we have to change or add additional systems amitesr We may not be able to control the qualityhef systems and services we receive i
third party service providers, which could impair @bility to implement appropriate internal cotdrover financial reporting and may impact
our business, operating results and financial dandi

Increased debt levels could adversely affect ouitigbto raise additional capital to fund our opet®sns or limit our ability to react tc
changes in the economy or our industry.

As of June 30, 2012 we had $29.6 million of dekdtesl to a term loan with East West Bank. Additignan August 2012 we increased the
term loan facility to $50.0 million and entereddr& revolving line of credit for up to another $banillion from East West Bank and U.S. Bank
under a new loan agreement which replaced our [méor agreement with East West Bank. As of Jun€B03 , our balance outstanding undel
these facilities was $76.3 million .

Our increased debt level could have important oquseces, including:

* increasing our vulnerability to general economid ardustry condition:

e requiring a substantial portion of cash flows froperations to be dedicated to the payment of gral@nd interest on our indebtedne
therefore reducing our ability to use our cash #dwfund our operations, capital expendituresfahde business opportunities;

» restricting us from making strategic acquisi@r causing us to make netrategic divestiture

« limiting our ability to obtain additional finamg for working capital, capital expenditures, dsbtvice requirements, acquisitions and
general corporate or other purposes; and

« limiting our ability to adjust to changing matl@nditions and placing us at a competitive disad&ge compared to our competitors
who are less highly leveraged.

We also may be able to incur substantial additiomdébtedness in the future. If new indebtedneaslé®do our current debt levels, the rela
risks that we now face could intensify.

A significant amount of our cash and cash equivalsrare held in accounts of our subsidiaries outsitle United States. If we are require
to bring cash into the United States to meet outute funding obligations, we would have to pay th#endant high tax rates or seek other
available funds.

We have significant operations outside the Unitedes. As of June 30, 2013, we held $210.4 milibour $227.8 million of cash and cash
equivalents in accounts of our subsidiaries outsfdbe United States. Although we believe thatdbmbination of our existing United States
cash balances and future United States operatsigflavs are sufficient to meet our ongoing Uni&dtes operating expenses and debt
repayment obligations, our expenses in the UnitateS could increase faster than expected. If theseces of cash were insufficient to meet
our future funding obligations in the United Stat@s could be required to bring cash into the UWhii¢ates and pay the attendant high tax rate
or seek other available funding sources which caoelgatively impact our operating results, financiahdition or stock price.

Failure to comply with the FCPA, and similar lawssaociated with our activities outside the Unitedifés could subject us to penalties and
other adverse consequences.

As a substantial majority of our revenues is anltllvei from jurisdictions outside of the United Stsitwe face significant risks if we fail to
comply with the FCPA and other laws that prohibiproper payments or offers of payment to foreigmegoments and their officials and
political parties by us and other business entftieshe purpose of obtaining or retaining businesgh as the UK Bribery Act. In many foreign
countries, particularly in countries with develapieaconomies, which represent our principal marketsay be a local custom that businesses
operating in such countries engage in businesgipeachat are prohibited by the FCPA or other lawd regulations. Although we have
implemented a company policy requiring our empleyaed consultants to comply with the FCPA and simidws, we have a limited number
of employees engaged in sales so we have not ceafermal FCPA compliance training. We have najaayed in training of our distributors
and resellers and are in the process of amendindistibutor agreements to provide clear requinetséor our
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distributors’ and resellers’ compliance with U.8wk, including the FCPA, therefore there can bassurance that all of our employees, and
agents, as well as those companies to which weonas certain of our business operations, willtake actions in violation of our policies, for
which we may be ultimately held responsible. Anglaiion of FCPA and related policies could resumlsévere criminal or civil sanctions and
suspension or debarment from U.S. government attiticg which could have a material and adverseceffa our reputation, business,
operating results and financial condition.

Our products rely on the availability of unlicensd®ladio Frequency ("RF") spectrum and if such specim were to become unavailable
through overuse or licensing, the performance ofrquroducts could suffer and our revenues from theiales could decrease.

Our products operate in unlicensed RF spectrunciwisi used by a wide range of consumer devices asiclordless phones, baby monitors,
and microwave ovens, and is becoming increasingiwded. If such spectrum usage continues to inerdasugh the proliferation of
consumer electronics and products competitive wifts, the resultant higher levels of clutter artdriierence in the bands of operation our
products use could decrease the effectivenessragfroducts, which could adversely affect our apild sell our products and our business
could be further harmed if currently unlicensed$pectrum becomes licensed in the United Statelsewbere. Network operators and service
providers that use our products may be unable taimklicenses for RF spectrum at reasonable pdces all. Even if the unlicensed spectrum
remains unlicensed, existing and new governmentiaigns may require we make changes in our prediicr example, to provide products
for network operators and service providers whiizetunlicensed RF spectrum, we may be requirduinio their ability to use our products in
licensed RF spectrum. The operation of our prodogtsetwork operators or service providers in tmétéd States or elsewhere in a mannel

in compliance with local law could result in finegerational disruption, or harm to our reputation.

The complexity of our products could result in urieseen delays or expenses caused by undetectedtdefiebugs, which could reduce the
market acceptance of our new products, damage aputation with current or prospective customers aadversely affect our operating
costs.

Our products may contain defects and bugs whenahejirst introduced or as new versions are reldad/e have focused, and intend to focus
in the future, on getting our new products to maguckly. Due to our rapid product introductiodgfects and bugs that may be contained in
our products may not yet have manifested. We hated past experienced, and may in the future épee, defects and bugs. For example
announced a recall of our Titanium Rocket prodirctbe quarter ended March 31, 2013. If any ofgneducts contains material defects or
bugs, or has reliability, quality or compatibilipyoblems, we may not be able to successfully cothexse problems. Consequently, our
reputation may be damaged and network operatasroice providers may be reluctant to buy our petg&luvhich could materially and
adversely affect our ability to retain existingwetk operators or service providers and attract network operators or service providers. In
addition, these defects or bugs could interrugteday sales to our distributors. If any of thesgbpegms is not found until after we have
commenced commercial production and distributioa oBw product, we may be required to incur additialevelopment costs and product
recall, repair or replacement costs. These problemsalso result in claims against us by our nétveerators, service providers or others. A
a result, our operating costs could be adversébcsd.

Confidentiality agreements with employees and otharay not adequately prevent disclosure of our &amkcrets and other proprietary
information.

We have devoted substantial resources to the dawelot of our proprietary technology and trade gscte order to protect our proprietary
technology and trade secrets, we rely in part aridentiality agreements with our employees, li@®ss independent contractors and other
advisors. These agreements may not effectivelygmiedisclosure of our trade secrets and may nofige@n adequate remedy in the event of
unauthorized disclosure of our trade secrets. dlitiat, others may independently discover or obteade secrets and proprietary information,
and in such cases we could not assert any tradet sigghts against such parties. Costly and timesuaming litigation could be necessary to
determine and enforce the scope of our proprigtghts, and failure to obtain or maintain traderseprotection could adversely affect our
competitive business position.

Although we primarily rely on confidentiality agments to protect our trade secrets, we have fail@dtain such agreements from certain of
our employees and third parties due to adminisgatversights, including those who participatethimdevelopment of certain of our products.
Our employment policies require these former emgésyto continue to protect our trade secrets aadsign to us any intellectual property
related to their activities on our behalf. Howewee, may have difficulty enforcing these rights, aihcould reduce our competitive
differentiation and result in lost sales and custooonfusion.
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We use open source software in our products thatyrsabject our firmware to general release or reqgiius to re-engineer our products and
the firmware contained therein, which may cause hato our business.

We use open source software in our products, ifefuich connection with our proprietary softwaregdanay use more open source software in
the future. From time to time, there have beemwdathallenging the ownership of open source soévagainst companies that incorporate
open source software into their products. As altese could be subject to suits by parties clagninvnership of what we believe to be open
source software. Some open source licenses caetgiirements that we make available source codeéalifications or derivative works we
create based upon the open source software andéhatense such modifications or derivative wanksler the terms of a particular open
source license or other license granting thirdipartertain rights of further use. If we combine proprietary firmware or other software with
open source software in a certain manner, we coulder certain of the open source licenses, bareztto release our proprietary source code
publicly or license such source code on unfavorgdsi@s or at no cost. In addition to risks reldteticense requirements, usage of open sourc
software can lead to greater risks than use dof {hérty commercial software, as open source liasngenerally do not provide warranties or
controls on origin of the software. Open sourcerlge terms relating to the disclosure of source @oanodifications or derivative works to the
open source software are often ambiguous and fawyifcourts in jurisdictions applicable to us hanterpreted such terms. As a result, many
of the risks associated with usage of open sowfte&are cannot be eliminated, and could, if notgenty addressed, negatively affect our
business. We currently disclose or plan to disctbeesource code for certain of our proprietaryvgaie in an effort to comply with the terms
the licenses applicable to the open source softthateve use, and we believe that such disclogpesents the entirety of our source code
disclosure obligations under these licenses. Howdéfwere were found to have inappropriately usedropource software, we may be required
to release our proprietary source code, re-engimgefirmware or other software, discontinue thie €d our products in the event re-
engineering cannot be accomplished on a timelysharsiake other remedial action that may diverbueses away from our development
efforts, any of which could adversely increase expenses and delay our ability to release our mtsdor sale.

Our business is susceptible to risks associateth wjierations outside of the United States.

As of June 30, 201®e had international operations in Hong Kong, Taiw@hina, Lithuania and Russia. We also sell ttridistors outside th
United States and for fiscal 2013 , fiscal 2012 fischl 2011 , our revenues from sales outsidedJthiged States were 75% , 76% and 70% ,
respectively. Our operations outside the UnitedeStaubject us to risks that we have not genefadlyd in the United States. These include:

» the burdens of complying with a wide varietylbfs. laws applicable to export controls, foreigmigtions, foreign laws and different
legal standards;

» fluctuations in currency exchange ra

» unexpected changes in foreign regulatory requirés,

« counterfeiting of our products or infringement am mtellectual property rights by third parti

« difficulties in managing the staffing of remote ogi@ons

» potentially adverse tax consequences, inclutiegcomplexities of foreign value added tax systaestrictions on the repatriation of
earnings and changes in tax rates;

» dependence on distributors in various countrieh different pricing policies, inventory managemant forecasting practict

» reduced or varied protection for intellectual pndpeights in some countrie

» demand for reliable wireless broadband networkbhase countrie

* requirements that we comply with local telecommatian regulations in those countri

» increased financial accounting and reporting busderd complexit

» political, social and economic instability in sojoesdictions; an

« terrorist attacks and security concerns in ger

If any of these risks were to come to fruitiongdtuld negatively affect our business outside thagddrStates and, consequently, our operating
results. Additionally, operating in markets outsile United States requires significant managemtt@intion and financial resources. We
cannot be certain that the investment and additi@saurces required to establish, acquire or natiegoperations in other countries will
produce desired levels of revenues or profitability

Our contract manufacturers, shipping points and ¢ain administrative and research and developmenergtions are located in areas likely
to be subject to natural disasters or other evethiat could stop us from having our products madeshipped or could result in a substantial
delay in our production or development activities.

Our manufacturing capacity may be reduced or ebiteith at one or more facilities because our manufiact, assembly, testing and shipping
contractors are all located in southern Chinantlagrity of our products are shipped from China eed
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have research and development offices in TaiwamaChithuania, Russia, New York, Illinois and Gathnia. Our principal executive offices
are also located in California. The risk of eartdkpgs, typhoons and other natural disasters in tpesgraphic areas is significant due to the
proximity of major earthquake fault lines. South&@imina and Taiwan are also subject to typhoonsoéimetr Pacific storms. Earthquakes, fire,
flooding or other natural disasters in Califorrégauthern China or Taiwan, or political unrest, Walpor strikes, work stoppages or public he
crises, in countries where our or our contracttasilities are located could result in the disraptbf our development, manufacturing,
assembly, testing or shipping capacity. Any disarptesulting from these events could cause sicanifi delays in product development or
shipments of our products until we are able totghif development, manufacturing, assembly orrtigdtiom the affected contractor to another
third party vendor or our research and developraetitities to another location. We cannot assuretpat alternative capacity could be
obtained on favorable terms, if at all.

New regulations or changes in existing regulationsated to our products may result in unanticipatedsts or liabilities, which could have
material adverse effect on our business, operatiegults, financial condition and future sales, armbuld place additional burdens on the
operations of our business.

Products that involve electromagnetic emissionssabgect to regulation in the United States andother countries in which we do busines:
the United States, various federal agencies inctuthie Center for Devices and Radiological Healtthe Food and Drug Administration, the
Federal Communications Commission, the OccupatiSagdty and Health Administration and various stajencies have promulgated
regulations that concern the use of electromageatissions standards. Member countries of the ElUo#imer countries have enacted similar
standards concerning electrical safety and eleagoratic compatibility and emissions standardsnyf@f our products becomes subject to nev
regulations or if any of our products becomes dSmadly regulated by additional government entitieempliance with such regulations could
become more burdensome, and we may be unablep@shproducts or they may cost substantially niongroduce, which would reduce our
revenues and increase our cost of revenues.

Government regulations designed to protect consumevacy may make it difficult for us to sell ourpducts.

Our products may transmit and store personal indion. This information is increasingly subjeciégislation and regulations in numerous
jurisdictions around the world. This governmeniatis typically intended to protect the privacydasecurity of personal information that
collected, stored and transmitted in or from theegoing jurisdiction. In addition, because varidoieign jurisdictions have different laws and
regulations concerning the storage and transmissgipersonal information, we may face unknown regmients that pose compliance
challenges in new geographic markets that we seekter. Such variation could subject us to catyed product launches, liabilities or
negative publicity that could impair our ability éxpand our operations into some countries anéfitver limit our future growth.

As privacy and data protection have become morsitbanissues, we may also become exposed to paitéabilities as a result of differing
views on the privacy of personal information. Thasd other privacy concerns could adversely impacbusiness, results of operations and
financial condition. In addition, our attempts t@tect the privacy of customer data may fail if eacryption is inadequate or fails to operate 8
expected.

We cannot predict our future capital needs and waymot be able to obtain additional financing torid our operations.

We may need to raise additional funds in the futirey required additional financing may not be #afalie on terms acceptable to us, or at all.
If we raise additional funds by issuing equity s&@@s or convertible debt, investors may experésignificant dilution of their ownership
interest, and the newly issued securities may higis senior to those of the holders of our comrsimek. If we raise additional funds by
obtaining loans from third parties, we will incuntérest expense and may have to comply with coveraard secure that debt obligation with
our assets. If additional financing is not avaiéabihen required or on acceptable terms, we may twaseale back our operations or limit our
production activities. As a result, we may not bkedo expand our business, develop or enhancproducts, take advantage of business
opportunities or respond to competitive pressusdich could result in lower revenues and reducectimapetitiveness of our products.

Our existing credit facilities preclude us fromenmg into additional credit agreements, other timdimited circumstances, and, as a result, we
may be required to issue equity securities rathem pbtain additional debt financing.

If we are unable to integrate future acquisitionsiscessfully, our operating results and prospectsikcbbe harmed

We have not made any acquisitions to date. Inuhed, we may make acquisitions to improve or egpaur product offerings. Our future
acquisition strategy will depend on our abilityidentify, negotiate, complete and integrate actjoiss.
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Mergers and acquisitions are inherently risky amgraergers and acquisitions we complete may nsubeessful. Any mergers and
acquisitions we may pursue would involve numerasisst including the following:

- difficulties in integrating and managing the og@ns, technologies and products of the compaméacquire, particularly in light of
our lean organizational structure;

« diversion of our managemesitattention from normal daily operation of our Imesis

e our inability to maintain the key business relasibips and the brand equity of the businesses wra

* our inability to retain key personnel of the acgdicompany, particularly in light of the demandsphaee on individual contributol

* uncertainty of entry into markets in which wevbdimited or no prior experience and in which catifors have stronger market
positions;

» our dependence on unfamiliar affiliates and pagméthe companies we acqu

» insufficient revenues to offset our increased egpsrassociated with acquisitic

» our responsibility for the liabilities of the busises we acquire, including those which we mayntitipate; an

e our inability to maintain internal standards, coigr procedures and policies, particularly in lighbur lean organizational structt

We may be unable to secure the equity or debt figndecessary to finance future acquisitions ondelrat are acceptable to us. Completing
acquisitions could consume significant amountsashc If we finance acquisitions by issuing equitganvertible debt securities, our existing
stockholders will likely experience dilution, arfdrie finance future acquisitions with debt fundimge will incur interest expense and may h
to comply with covenants and secure that debt abbg with our assets.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties

Our corporate headquarters are located in San Gadiégrnia under a building lease which we entardd in December 2011. The lease terr
from April 1, 2012 through June 30, 2017. The prasiconsist of 64,512 rentable square feet of spéeencur costs related to additional
properties around the world and within the faahtiof certain suppliers for use as research anelaf@went facilities, sales and support offices.
warehouses and logistics centers and test fasilifibe size and location of these properties chémgetime to time based on business
requirements. We do not own any manufacturing ifas| and we contract and license to third pattiesproduction and distribution of our
hardware. For our research and development angd aatesupport personnel, we also have leased fficaipei, Tai wan, Shanghai, China,
Ka unas, Lithuania, Moscow, Rus sia, New York, Néavk, Barrington, lllinois and Los Angeles, Califoa. We believe our current facilities
will be adequate or that additional space will Bailable on commercially reasonable terms for tireseeable future.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Intellectual Property

We are subject to, and may in the future be sulbjeleigal proceedings and claims in the ordinamyrse of business regarding the rights and
use of our intellectual property. We have receiad] may in the future receive, claims from thiadtigs alleging infringement of their
intellectual property rights and requests for indéioation from our business partners or purchasémur products arising out of third-party
infringement claims. Future litigation may be nexaey to defend ourselves, our partners and custoamet our wireless carriers by determir
the scope, enforceability and validity of third tygoroprietary rights or to establish our proprigteghts.

Anti-Counterfeiting Litigation

In May 2012, we filed a lawsuit in the U.S. federalurt for the Northern District of California agat Kozumi USA Corp. and its owner Shao
Wei (William) Hsu. The lawsuit alleged that Kozuarid Mr. Hsu have engaged in intellectual propdréftt and illegal manufacturing and s
of counterfeit Ubiquiti products. In June 2012, dwairt granted our application for a temporaryragsing order enjoining Kozumi and Mr. H
and anyone in active concert or participation wlam from using our trademarks, destroying evidedi@dunterfeiting and infringement, or
assisting, aiding or abetting any other personusiness entity in engaging in or performing anguéh activities. In July 2012, the court iss
a preliminary injunction against Kozumi and Mr. Heuthe same effect and froze Mr. Hsu’s real estagets in the U.S. We intend to
vigorously pursue this and other legal actionsregahe counterfeiters in the U.S. and other caestr
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Export Compliance

In January 2011, OEE contacted us to request thgiravide information related to our relationshighva logistics company in the UAE and
with a company in Iran, as well as information ba &xport classification of our products. As a ltesithis inquiry we, assisted by outside
counsel, conducted a review of our export transastfrom 2008 through March 2011 to not only gathfarmation responsive to OEE’s
request but also to review our overall compliandé wxport control and sanctions laws. We believegroducts have been sold into Iran by
third parties. We do not believe that we directids exported or shipped our products into lraamy other country subject to a U.S. embargo
However, until early 2010, we did not prohibit aistributors from selling our products into Iranasty other country subject to a U.S.
embargo. It was in the course of this review thatidentified the Iranian sales of Distributor leaffebruary 2010 and the Iranian sales of
Distributor 2. Our review also found that while Wwad obtained required Commodity Classification Rysifor our products in June 2010 and
November 2010, we did not advise our shipping perebto change the export authorizations used osluipping documents until Februe
2011. During the course of our export control reyiere also determined that we had failed to mainggiequate records for the five year pe
required by the EAR and the sanctions regulatiarestd our lack of infrastructure and because it pré& to our transition to our current
system of record, NetSuite. S#sk Factors—We are subject to numerous U.S. exgaontrol and economic sanctions laws and a suliistin
majority of our sales are into countries outsideh# United States. Sales outside of the UnitettStapresented 75% , 76% and 70% of our
revenues in fiscal 2013, fiscal 2012 and fiscal RQrespectively. Although we did not intend tesdpwe have violated certain of these laws i
the past, and we cannot currently assess the natudeextent of any fines or other penalties, if,ahgt U.S. governmental agencies may
impose against us or our employees for any sudhtidns. Any fines, if materially different fromraestimates, or other penalties, could ha\
material adverse effect on our business and firdmesults.”

In May 2011, we filed a self-disclosure statemeitbhthe BIS and OEE. In June 2011 we filed a s&dldsure statement with OFAC,
regarding the compliance issues noted above. Huotodures address the above described findingthengmedial actions we have taken to
date. However, the findings also indicate that labsitributors continued to sell, directly or inditly, our products into Iran during the period
from February 2010 through March 2011 and thateeeived various communications from them indicativag they were continuing to do so.
Since January 2011, we have cooperated with OEEpaiud to our disclosure filing, we informally steal with the OEE the substance of our
findings with respect to both distributors. Fromyv2011 to August 2011, we provided additional infiation regarding our review and our
findings to OEE to facilitate its investigation a®éE advised us in August 2011 that it had comglégeinvestigation of us. In August 2011,
we received a warning letter from OEE stating tBhBE had not referred the findings of our reviewdominal or administrative prosecution of
us and closed the investigation without penalty.

OFAC is still reviewing our voluntary disclosur@. dur submission, we have provided OFAC with anlaxtion of the activities that led to 1
sales of our products in Iran and the failure tmply with the EAR and OFAC sanctions. Although QFAC and OEE voluntary disclosures
covered similar sets of facts that led the OEEesmive the case with the issuance of a warningr|éfFAC may conclude that our actions
resulted in violations of U.S. export control armeomic sanctions laws and warrant the impositiopemalties that could include fines,
termination of our ability to export our producasid/or referral for criminal prosecution. The masimcivil monetary penalty for the violatio
is up to $250,000 or twice the value of the tratisacwhichever is greater, per violation. The gges may be imposed against us and/or our
management. Any such fines or restrictions may agerial to our financial results in the period ihieh they are imposed. Also, disclosure of
our conduct and any fines or other action relatinthis conduct could harm our reputation and heweaterial adverse effect on our business,
operating results and financial condition. We campredict when OFAC will complete its review or dupon the imposition of possible
penalties.

We have taken actions designed to ensure that esjassification information is distributed to tappropriate personnel in a timely manner
have adopted policies and procedures to promotearapliance with applicable export laws and redofe, including obtaining written
distribution agreements with substantially all af distributors that contain covenants requiringnpbance with U.S. export control and
economic sanctions law; notifying all of our dibtrtors of their obligations and obtaining updatedribution agreements from distributors that
account for approximately 99%6 our distributor revenue in fiscal 2012. Howewar cannot be sure such actions will be effectivedifionally,
our failure to amend all our distribution agreensesmid to implement more robust compliance contnotsediately after the discovery of Iran-
related sales activity in early 2010 may be aggmgdactors that could impact the imposition ohpkies imposed on us or our management.
Further, should our efforts to ensure our compkanwith applicable export laws and regulations reosbfficient in preventing our distributors
from distributing our products into a country sudj® a U.S. embargo or otherwise violating apfieaxport laws and regulations in the
future, we could be subject to government invesitiga or penalties in the future. Any such pensgltithey occur, may be more severe in i
of our prior violations discussed above. Basedhenfacts known to us to date, we recorded an expei$1.6 million for this export
compliance matter in fiscal 2010, which represemmagement’s estimated exposure for fines in aeomelwith applicable accounting
literature. This amount was calculated from infotiora
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discovered through our internal review and we dd@mloss to be probable and reasonably estimélaeever, we believe that it is reasonably
possible that the loss may be higher, but we car@astonably estimate the range of any further pialdosses. Should additional facts be
discovered in the future and/or should actual fiokesther penalties substantially differ from ostimates, our business, financial condition,
cash flows and results of operations would be riadhginegatively impacted.

Shareholder Class Action Lawsuits

Beginning on September 7, 2012, two shareholdssaation complaints were filed against us, cexéiour officers and directors and the
underwriters of our initial public offering in thénited States District Court for the Northern Digtof California. On January 30, 2013, the
plaintiffs filed an Amended Consolidated Complaimhich alleges claims under the Securities Act283, the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 and SEC Rule 10b-5 on behalf of a purportasiscbf those who purchased our common stock bet@etber 14, 2011 and August 9,
2012 and/or acquired our stock pursuant to or &fleeto the registration statement for the inpiablic offering. The Amended Consolidated
Complaint alleges that the defendants violatedederal securities laws by issuing false or misiegdtatements regarding the sale of
counterfeit versions of our products. The consedidaomplaint seeks, among other things, damagestarest, rescission, and attorneys’ fee
and costs. On March 26, 2013 we filed a motionismiss the complaint. On April 30, 2013, the pldistfiled an opposition to our motion to
dismiss. On August 27, 2013, the court held a hgasih the motion to dismiss.

We believe that the allegations in the consolidamuplaint are without merit and intend to vigodgusontest the litigation. However, there
can be no assurance that we will be successfuliinlefense. Because the case is at a very eagg,stee cannot currently estimate the loss or
the range of possible losses we may experiencerinaction with this litigation.

Other

From time to time, we may be subject to legal pedldegs and claims in the ordinary course of businEgcept as described above, we are no
currently party to any litigation that we expect® material; however, litigation is inherently vegictable. Therefore, we could incur
judgments or enter into settlements of claimspdemnify third parties, any of which could matdyiampact our results

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Sktwmlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities

Market Information

Our shares of common stock are traded on the NASDA®Dal Select Market under the symbol “UBNT.” Quammon stock began trading on
October 14, 2011, upon our initial public offerifighe following table shows, for the periods indexhtthe high and low intrday sale prices fi

our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Select Market

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Low

High
First Quarter $ 15.2¢
Second Quarter $ 13.1¢
Third Quarter $ 16.6¢€
Fourth Quarter $ 20.8¢

&8 H P

$

7.8C
9.97
11.3¢
12.81

As of September 9, 2013, the number of recorddrsldf our common stock was 15. B ecause mostratmares are held by brokers and othe
institutions on behalf of stockholders, we are u@ab estimate the total number of beneficial statélers represented by these record holders
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares, for the period betw@etober 14, 2011 (the date of our initial puloiifering) and June 30, 2013 , the
cumulative total stockholder return for our comnstock, the NASDAQ Composite Index and the NASDAQrpater Index. The graph
assumes that $100 was invested on October 14,ia@lr common stock, the NASDAQ Composite Index tr@elNASDAQ Computer Index
and assumes reinvestment of any dividends. Thé& giooe performance on the following graph is netessarily indicative of future stock
price performance. This performance graph shalbeadeemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 &f 8ecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”), or incorporated bgnence into any of our filings under the Secusittet of 1933, as amended, or the
Exchange Act, except as shall be expressly sét fiyrtspecific reference in such filing.

COMPARISON OF 20 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Ubiquiti Networks, Inc., the NASDAQ Compositelex, and the NASDAQ Computer Index
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*$100 invested on 10/14/11in stock or 9/30/11 in index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending June 30.

Dividends

On December 14, 2012, the Company announced shBbdrd of Directors had authorized a special dagbend of $0.18 per share for each
share of common stock outstanding on December@.2The aggregate dividend payment of $15.7 miNias paid on December 28, 201

stockholders of record on December 24, 2012. Howewe do not anticipate paying any cash dividendsié foreseeable future. Any future

determination with respect to the declaration aaghpent of dividends will be at the discretion of &oard of Directors.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans

Information regarding the securities authorizedigsuance under our equity compensation plans edound under Iltem 12 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated statement of operatiatesfdr the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2682011 and the consolidated balance
sheet data as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 are déroracbur audited consolidated financial statemémtkided elsewhere in this report. The
selected consolidated statement of operations amgpihensive income data for the fiscal years eddad 30, 2010 and 2009 and the
consolidated balance sheet data as of June 30,, 2D and 2008re derived from our audited consolidated finansiatements which are |
included in this report. Historical results are netessarily indicative of future results and stidag read in conjunction with the section titled
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€@ahdition and Results of Operations” and the cadated financial statements, related
notes, and other financial information includedtiis report.

Years Ended June 30,

In thousands, except per share data 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income Data:

Revenues $ 320,820 % 35351 $ 197,87:  $ 136,95. $ 63,12:
Cost of revenue® 185,48t 202,51 117,06: 82,40 37,18:
Gross profit 135,33 151,00: 80,81 54,54 25,94(
Operating expenses:

Research and developm(® 20,95t 16,69¢ 11,37: 31,70 5,16¢

Sales, general and administrat®@® 21,77¢ 9,01: 7,35¢ 18,16: 2,94¢
Total operating expenses 42,73( 25,71: 18,73: 49,86¢ 8,11:
Income from operations 92,60+ 125,29; 62,08( 4,68: 17,82
Interest income (expense) and other, net (851) (1,269 79 581 11€
Income before provision for income taxes 91,75: 124,02: 62,15¢ 5,26: 17,94¢
Provision for income taxes 11,26: 21,43: 12,43: 10,71¢ 8,057
Net income and comprehensive income (loss) 80,49( 102,58 49,72; (5,456) 9,88¢
Preferred stock cumulative dividend and accretiocost of
preferred stock — (112,43) (42,06%) (1,436 —
Less allocation of net income to participating pregd
stockholders — — (2,789 — _
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhsldédasic 80,49( (9,842 4,87" (6,892) 9,88¢
Undistributed earnings re-allocated to common stotders — — 10z — —

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhigde
diluted $ 80,49( $ (9,849 $ 497¢ $ (6,897 $ 9,88¢

Net income (loss) per share of common stock:

Basic $ 091 $ 0.1 % 0.0¢ $ 0.08) $ 0.1¢
Diluted $ 08 $ 0.1 $ 007 $ 0.08) $ 0.0¢

Weighted average shares used in computing net ia¢twss)
per share of common stock:

Basic 88,31« 83,46( 63,09: 88,97: 101,68
Diluted 90,25¢ 83,46( 66,90° 88,97: 105,58!
Cash dividends declared per common share $ 0.1 $ — B — 3 — 3 —
@ Includes stoc-based compensation as follow
Cost of revenues $ 44 $ 17 $ 30 $ 124 % 5
Research and development 1,43: 5472 28E 26,22: 31E
Sales, general and administrative 1,497 834 637 9,81« 18¢
Total stock-based compensation $ 3,37¢ $ 1,49  $ 95 % 36,15¢ % 50t
@ Includes a charge for an export compliance mater
follows: $ —  $ — $ — $ 162t $ =
® Includes gain from a trademark coexistence agratase
follows: $ — % (1,500 $ — 8 —  $ —
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June 30,

In thousands 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 227,82t $ 122,06 $ 76,360 $ 28,41F  $ 13,67
Working capital 224,05: 155,46: 90,30: 55,00 20,72
Total assets 292,34( 213,73 131,67¢ 82,09( 26,67:
Debt — long-term 71,11¢ 22,62: — —_ —_
Redeemable convertible preferred stock — — 145,84 106,78: —
Common stock and additional paid-in capital 135,06¢ 129,07: 60€ 2,057 1,58¢
Treasury stock (123,869 (69,515) (69,51 (62,26¢) —
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) 147,43 130,95! (53,877) (52,83 18,11¢

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

Overview

Ubiquiti Networks develops high performance netvilmgktechnology for service providers and entergrisdur technology platforms focus on
delivering highly-advanced and easily deployabletians that appeal to a global customer base derserved and underpenetrated markets.
Our differentiated business model has enabled bseimk down traditional barriers such as high pevdnd network deployment costs and ¢
solutions with disruptive price-performance chagsstics. This differentiated business model, caradiwith our innovative proprietary
technologies, has resulted in an attractive alter@ao traditional high touch, higbest providers, allowing us to advance the marepton o
our platforms for ubiquitous connectivity.

We offer a broad and expanding portfolio of netviregkproducts and solutions for service providerd enterprises. Our service provider
product platforms provide carrier-class networkasfructure for fixed wireless broadband, wireleaskhaul systems and routing. Our
enterprise product platforms provide wireless LA astructure, video surveillance products, andhireeto-machine communication
components. We believe that our products are hidiflgrentiated due to our proprietary softwaretpool innovation, firmware expertise, and
hardware design capabilities. This differentiatadlows our portfolio to meet the demanding perfanggrequirements of video, voice and dat:
applications at prices that are a fraction of thaféered by our competitors.

As a core part of our strategy, we have developdifferentiated business model for marketing aritingehigh volumes of carrier and
enterprise-class communications platforms. Ourrtassi model is driven by a large, growing and higingaged community of service
providers, distributors, value added resellersiesys integrators and corporate IT professionalschwve refer to as the Ubiquiti Community.
The Ubiquiti Community is a critical element of dusiness strategy as it enables us to drive:

* Rapid customer and community driven product devetamt.We have an active, loyal community built from oustomers that we
believe is a sustainable competitive advantage.sOlutions benefit from the active engagement beitbe Ubiquiti Community and
our development engineers throughout the produatldpment cycle, which eliminates long and expemsiultistep internal processes
and results in rapid introduction and adoption af products. This approach significantly reducesdayelopment costs and time to
market.

» Scalable sales and marketing modWe do not currently have, nor do we plan to hirdiract sales force, but instead utilize the
Ubiquiti Community to drive market awareness anchded for our products and solutions. This commupitypagated viral marketing
enables us to reach underserved and underpenetnat&éts far more efficiently and cost-effectivéian is possible through traditional
sales models. Leveraging the information transparefithe Internet allows customers to researchluate and validate our solutions
with the Ubiquiti Community and via third party weltes. This allows us to operate a scalable saidsnarketing model and
effectively create awareness of our brand and mtsdiVord of mouth referrals from the Ubiquiti Comnmity generate high quality
leads for our distributors at relatively little ¢os

* Selfsustaining product supportThe engaged members of the Ubiquiti Community henabled us to foster a large, cost efficient,
highly-scalable and, we believe, self-sustainingima@ism for rapid product support and disseminatfanformation.
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By reducing the cost of development, sales, margeind support we are able to eliminate tradititmainess model inefficiencies and offer
innovative solutions with disruptive price performea characteristics to our customers.

For the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2@irlrevenue was $320.8 million , $353.5 milliord&197.9 million , respectively. In the
same periods, we generated a net income of $80li6rmi$102.6 million and $49.7 million , respaatly. In this Annual Report on Form 10-K
we refer to the fiscal years ended June 30, 2@D32 and 2011 as fiscal 2013 , fiscal 2012 andlfi2g011 , respectively.

Key Components of Our Results of Operations and Fencial Condition
Revenue:

Our revenues are derived principally from the sdleetworking hardware and management tools. litiatd while we do not sell maintenan
and support separately, because we have histgrioallded it free of charge in many of our arramgeats, we attribute a portion of our
systems revenues to this implied post-contracioecost support (“PCS”).

We classify our revenues into three product caiegosystems, embedded radios and antennas/other.
e Systems consists of three product categc

= Our proprietary airMAX platform products for netwaoperators and service providi

= Our new platform products which include significgfatforms introduced in late fiscal 2011 and dgr&®12 which include
the UniFi, airVision and airFiber, mFi and EdgeMAtforms; and

= Other 802.11 standard products including bag®set radios, backhaul equipment and Customer BeeBEquipment
(“CPE").

* Embedded radios consist of more than 25 radio mtsdurimarily for OEMSs, including both point to mbiand point to multipoint radic
in the 2.0 to 6.0GHz spectrum, that are offeredhait/ariety of features.

» Antennas/other consist of antenna productserth to 6.0GHz spectrum, as well as miscellanpoaducts such as mounting brackets,
cables and power over Ethernet adapters. Theseg@moithclude both high performance sector and tiaeal antennas. This category
also includes our allocation of revenues to PCS.

We sell substantially all of our products througlm@ited number of distributors and other chanratipers, such as resellers and OEMs. Sales
to distributors accounted for 98% , 98% and 97%.wfrevenues in the years ended June 30, 2012,&td 2011 respectively. Other chanr
partners, such as resellers and OEMs, largely ateddor the balance of our revenues. We sell codycts without any right of return.

Cost of Revenues

Our cost of revenues is comprised primarily of¢bsets of procuring finished goods from our contraenufacturers and chipsets that we
consign to certain of our contract manufactureraddition, cost of revenues includes tooling, fadood other costs associated with enginee
testing and quality assurance, warranty costskdtased compensation, logistics related fees anessxand obsolete inventory.

In addition to utilizing contract manufacturers, agsource our logistics warehousing and ordeillfuént functions, which are located
primarily in China, and to a lesser extent, Taiwafe also evaluate and utilize other vendors foiouer portions of our supply chain from time
to time. Our operations organization consists opleyees and consultants engaged in the managereunt contract manufacturers, new
product introduction activities, logistical suppartd engineering.

Gross Profit

Our gross profit has been, and may in the futurérifirenced by several factors including changegsroduct mix, target end markets for our
products, pricing due to competitive pressure, petidn costs, foreign exchange rates and globabdenfor electronic components. Although
we procure and sell our products in U.S. dollaws,amntract manufacturers incur many costs, inclgdabor costs, in other currencies. To the
extent that the exchange rates move unfavorablgdocontract manufacturers, they may try to passd additional costs on to us, which cc
have a material impact on our future average sgfitces and unit costs.
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Operating Expenses

We classify our operating expenses as researcdearelopment and sales, general and administratippenses.

» Research and development expeiconsist primarily of salary and benefit expensesiuiding stockbased compensation, for employ
and costs for contractors engaged in researclgrasid development activities, as well as costpifototypes, facilities and travel.
Over time, we expect our research and developnoats ¢o increase as we continue making significargstments in developing new
products and developing new versions of our exdgpiroducts.

e Sales, general and administrative expensekide salary and benefit expenses, includingkstised compensation, for employees anc
costs for contractors engaged in sales, marketidgganeral and administrative activities, as wellree costs of legal expenses, trade
shows, marketing programs, promotional materiasl, tlebt expense, professional services, faciligieseral liability insurance and
travel. As our product portfolio and targeted méslexpand, we may need to employ different saledefspsuch as building a direct
sales force. These sales models would likely irseaur costs. Over time, we expect our sales, geard administrative expenses to
increase in absolute dollars due to continued drowheadcount, expansion of our efforts to regiatel defend trademarks and patent:
and to support our business and operations.

Deferred Revenues and Cos

In the event that collectability of a receivablerfr products we have shipped is not probable, wasiflathose amounts as deferred revenues ¢
our balance sheet until such time as we receivepay of the accounts receivable. We classify thst abproducts associated with these
deferred revenues as deferred costs of revenues. Ame 30, 2013, $2.2 million of revenue wasded for transactions where we lacked
evidence that collectability of the receivablesoréed was reasonably assured. The related defevstaf revenues balance was $1.2 milkan
of June 30, 2013 . At June 30, 2012, we did netlany revenue deferred for transactions whereasleed evidence that collectability of the
receivables recorded was reasonably assured.

Also included in our deferred revenues is a portaated to PCS obligations that we estimate wepeitform in the future. As afune 30, 201
and 2012 , we had deferred revenues of $1.0 mitiwh $805,000 respectively, related to these diidigs

Critical Accounting Policies

We prepare our consolidated financial statemenée@ordance with accounting principles generallyeated in the United States of America
(“GAAP”). In many cases, the accounting treatmdrd particular transaction is specifically dictatedGAAP and does not require
management’s judgment in its application. In otteses, management’s judgment is required in setpathong available alternative
accounting standards that provide for differenoanting treatment for similar transactions. Thepgration of consolidated financial statem
also requires us to make estimates and assumptianaffect the amounts we report as assets, itiebjlrevenues, costs and expenses and
the related disclosures. We base our estimatesstoribal experience and other assumptions thabelieve are reasonable under the
circumstances. In many instances, we could rea$puoab different accounting estimates, and in sorsgnces changes in the accounting
estimates are reasonably likely to occur from metoperiod. Accordingly, our actual results codiffer significantly from the estimates made
by our management. To the extent that there aferdifces between our estimates and actual result§ture financial statement presentation
financial condition, results of operations and cielvs will be affected. We believe that the acciingp policies discussed below are critical to
understanding our historical and future performaasahese policies relate to the more signifieaeas involving managemesjudgments ar
estimates.

Recognition of Revenue

Revenues consist primarily of revenues from the eihardware and management tools, as well aztated implied PCS. We recognize
revenues when persuasive evidence of an arrangexisig, delivery has occurred, the sales pri¢eésl or determinable and the collectabi
of the resulting receivable is reasonably assuredases where we lack evidence that collectallitthe resulting receivable is reasonably
assured, we defer recognition of revenue untiréoeipt of cash.

For our sales, evidence of the arrangement corwdists order from a customer. We consider deliteryave occurred once our products have
been shipped and title and risk of loss have beasterred. For our sales, these criteria are ttbeaime the products are transferred to the
customer's shipping agent. Our arrangements wittooers do not include provisions for cancellatietuyrns, inventory swaps or refunds that
would significantly impact recognized revenues.
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We record amounts billed to distributors for shigpand handling costs as revenues. We classifpsig@and handling costs incurred by us as
cost of revenues. Deposit payments received fratniblitors in advance of recognition of revenuesiacluded in current liabilities on our
balance sheet and are recognized as revenues Witem eriteria for recognition of revenues are met

Our multi-element arrangements generally include deliverables. The first deliverable is the harand software essential to the
functionality of the hardware device deliveredra time of sale. The second deliverable is theigdpight to PCS included with the purchase
of certain products. PCS is the right to receiveaavhen and if available basis, future unspec#ieftivare upgrades and features relating tc
product’s essential software as well as bug firesail and telephone support.

We use a hierarchy to determine the allocatioreeénues to the deliverables. The hierarchy is l&mafs: (i) vendorspecific objective evidens
of fair value (“VSOE"), (ii) third-party evidence selling price (“TPE”), and (iii) best estimate thie selling price (‘BESP”).

(i) VSOE generally exists only when a companyssiile deliverable separately and is the price Hgtolaarged by the company for that
deliverable. Generally we do not sell the delivégalseparately and, as such, do not have VSOE.

(i) TPE can be substantiated by determining tieegthat other parties sell similar or substahtisimilar offerings. We do not believe that
there is accessible TPE evidence for similar dedibles.

(iii) BESP reflects our best estimates of what the gefiiices of elements would be if they were soldifady on a stand-alone basis. We
believe that BESP is the most appropriate methagolor determining the allocation of revenues amtirggmultiple elements.

We have allocated revenues between these two dalhiles using the relative selling price method Wh&cbased on the BESP for all
deliverables. Revenues allocated to the deliveegdviiare and the related essential software argynézed at the time of sale provided the o
conditions for recognition of revenues have beeh Revenues allocated to the PCS are deferredemmudjnized on a straight-line basis over
the estimated life of each of these devices whighently is two years. All costs of revenues, inlthg estimated warranty costs, are recogn
at the time of sale. Costs for research and dewatop and sales and marketing are expensed asedclirthe estimated life of the hardware
product should change, the future rate of amoitimaif the revenues allocated to PCS would alsagba

Our process for determining BESP for deliverabfe®ives multiple factors that may vary dependingrutghe unique facts and circumstances
related to each deliverable. For PCS, we believenetwork operators and service providers woulddhgctant to pay for such services
separately. This view is primarily based on the that unspecified upgrade rights do not obligat¢ouprovide upgrades at a particular time or
at all, and do not specify to network operators senice providers which upgrades or featuresheltelivered. We believe that the relatively
low prices of our products and our network opegtand service providers’ price sensitivity woutttido their reluctance to pay for PCS.
Therefore, we have concluded that if we were tbREB on a stand-alone basis, the selling pricddvioe relatively low.

Key factors considered by us in developing the BEBRPCS include reviewing the activities of specédmployees engaged in support and
software development to determine the amount of timat is allocated to the development of the uneedd elements, determining the cost of
this development effort, and then adding an appatptevel of gross profit to these costs.

Inventory

Our inventories are primarily raw materials, whigé have consigned to our contract manufacturetst@a lesser extent, finished goods. Our
inventories are stated at the lower of cost or miavklue on a first-in, first-out basis. We redtive value of our inventory for estimated
obsolescence or lack of marketability by the ddfere between the cost of the affected inventorytl@e@stimated market value. Write-downs
are not reversed until the related inventory hantsibsequently sold or scrapped.

Product Warranties

We offer warranties on certain products and reedidbility for the estimated future costs assadawith potential warranty claims. These
warranty costs are reflected in our consolidatatestent of operations and comprehensive incomengthst of revenues. Our warranties are
in effect for 12 months from the distributors’ phase date of the product. Our estimates of futaeamty costs are largely based on historica
experience of product failure rates, material usageservice delivery costs incurred in correcpingduct failures. Our operating results could
be materially and adversely affected if future \aaty claims exceed historical experiences and waar able to recover costs from our
contract manufacturers.
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We record an allowance for doubtful accounts feinested probable losses on uncollectible accowsivable. In estimating the allowance,
management considers, among other factors, thg afitne accounts receivable, our historical woitis, the credit worthiness of each
distributor based on payment history and genem@@mic conditions.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with aathog guidance which requires recognition of defértax assets and liabilities for the
expected future tax consequences of events thatleen included in our financial statements orétnrns. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are determined based on the temporary differentvedas the financial statement carrying amountsatieg assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets antitiexbare measured using enacted tax rates exparegpply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expecte@ tcebovered or settled. We establish valuatiomaiaes when necessary to reduce deferre
tax assets to the amount we expect to realizeasbessment of whether or not a valuation allowaneuired often requires significant
judgment including current operating results, the€ast of future taxable income and ongoing pruded feasible tax planning initiative

In addition, our calculation of our tax liabiliti@svolves dealing with uncertainties in the appiica of complex tax regulations. We may be
subject to income tax audits in each of the jucigdns in which we operate and, as a result, mastassess exposures to any potential issues
arising from current or future audits of currentigmior years’ tax returns. Accordingly, we mussess such potential exposures and, where
necessary, provide a reserve to cover any expéatedTo the extent that we establish a reservepmvision for income taxes would be
increased. We review our potential liabilities pelically and, if necessary, record an additionalrgk in our provision for taxes in the perioc
which we determine that tax liability is greateamhour original estimate. If we ultimately determihat payment of these amounts is
unnecessary, we reverse the liability and recogaitex benefit during the period in which we detemrthat the liability is no longer necess:

Stoclk-based Compensation

We record stock-based awards at fair value aseofjithnt date and recognize expense ratably omiglstiline basis over the requisite service
period, which is generally the vesting term of éveards. We estimate the fair value of stock optisards on the grant date using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model. Restricted stocksuaie valued based on the fair value of our comstack on the date of grant. Since our
initial public offering on October 14, 2011, theérfaalue of our common stock is determined usirgydlosing market price of our common
stock as of the date of grant.
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Results of Operations

Comparison of Years June 30, 2013 and 2012

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012
(In thousands, except percentages)

Revenues $ 320,82 10% $ 353,51 10(%
Cost of revenue® 185,48¢ 58% 202,51« 57%
Gross profit 135,33 42% 151,00: 43%
Operating expenses:

Research and developmént 20,95 6% 16,69¢ 5%

Sales, general and administratiV@ 21,77¢ 7% 9,01: 3%

Total operating expenses 42,73( 13% 25,711 8%

Income from operations 92,60 29% 125,29:. 35%
Interest expense and other, net (851) * (1,269 *
Income before provision for income taxes 91,75 29% 124,02: 35%
Provision for income taxes 11,26: 4% 21,43¢ 6%
Net income and comprehensive income $ 80,49( 25% $ 102,58¢ 29%
* Less than 1%
(1) Includes stock-based compensation as follows

Cost of revenues $ 44¢ $ 117

Research and development 1,43¢ 542

Sales, general and administrative 1,497 834

Total stock-based compensation $ 3,37¢ $ 1,49:

(2) Includes a gain from a trademark coexistergreement as follows: $ — $ (1,500

Revenues

Revenues decreased $32.7 million , or 9% , fron8$&hillion in fiscal 2012 to $320.8 million in fial 2013 . We believe the overall decrease
in revenues in fiscal 2018as primarily driven by lost sales, predominantlyidg the first nine months of fiscal 2013 duehe proliferation o
counterfeit versions of our products, which alseated customer uncertainty regarding the authgnti€itheir potential purchases. We believe
these factors contributed to a buildup in chanmedmntory with our distributors, further impactingraevenues during the first nine months of
fiscal 2013 . This has had the most significantaotmn our airMAX platform which decreased $21.1liom in fiscal 2013 compared to fiscal
2012.

In fiscal 2013 , revenues from Flytec representé df our revenues. In fiscal 2012 , revenues fidyrec and Streakwave represented 16%

and 10% of our revenues, respectively. No othdriligor or customer represented more than 10%uof@venues in fiscal 2013 or fiscal
2012 .
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Revenues by Product Ty

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012
(in thousands, except percentages)
airMAX $ 202,59¢ 63% $ 223,74 63%
New platforms 53,86¢ 17% 29,46¢ 8%
Other systems 18,19( 6% 52,08¢ 15%
Systems 274,65 86% 305,29: 86%
Embedded radio 6,88¢ 2% 10,05¢ 3%
Antennas/other 39,27 12% 38,167 11%
Total revenues $ 320,82: 10% $ 353,51° 100%

Systems revenues decreased $30.6 million , or 1f@8m, $305.3 million in fiscal 2012 to $274.7 milki in fiscal 2013 . As noted above, we
believe the decrease in systems revenues was gyimiaven by lost sales due to the proliferatidrcounterfeit versions of our products, in
particular our airMAX product line. The decreas®im airMAX product line was partially offset bydreased sales in our new platforms
category, which includes platforms introduced silate fiscal 2011. Our new platforms contribute@$6million and $29.5 million of revenue
during fiscal 2013 and 2012 , respectively. Oueottystems revenue decreased $33.9 million duiseglf2013 as compared to fiscal 2@
to our December 2011 quarter including a large oiml@ single direct customer and further adoptibaur airMax solutions in 2013. We
anticipate that our other systems products willidedn future periods as sales of these produgt®atpaced by airMax and new platform

products.

Embedded radio revenues decreased $3.2 milliol31%r, from $10.1 million in fiscal 2012 to $6.9lkoin in fiscal 2013 . We anticipate that
embedded radio products will decline as a percentdigevenues in future periods as sales of trezscl products are outpaced by sales of
systems products.

Antennas/other revenues increased $1.1 millior3%from $38.2 million in fiscal 2012 to $39.3 roh in fiscal 2013 . The increase in
antennas/other revenues during fiscal 2013 wagpdomarily to continued expansion of core infrastuue build-outs in our wireless markets.
We anticipate that antenna/other revenues willinaetto increase in absolute dollars in futurequgibut will decline as a percentage of total
revenues due to more rapid growth of systems reaenu
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Revenues by Geograp

We generally forward products directly from our matturers to our customers via logistics distituhubs in Asia. Beginning in the qual
ended December 31, 2012, our products were predamthjrrouted through a third party logistics praidn China and prior to the quarter
ended December 31, 2012, our products were precariyndelivered to our customers through distriboithubs in Hong Kong. Our logistics
provider, in turn, ships to other locations throoghthe world. We have determined the geograpldiisadibution of our product revenues basec
on our customers' ship-to destinations. A majasftpur sales are to distributors who in turn seltésellers or directly to end customers. We
believe the decline in revenues in all regions, medt significantly in South America, during thedal year ended June 30, 2013 as comparec
to June 30, 2012 was primarily driven by the peshtion of counterfeit versions of our productsjchithas also created customer uncertainty
regarding the authenticity of their potential puases. The following are our revenues by geographfiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 (in
thousands, except percentages):

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012
North America(1) $ 84,82( 26% $ 88,30¢ 25%
South America 65,76¢ 21% 88,32t 25%
Europe, the Middle East and Africa 127,86( 40% 130,49 37%
Asia Pacific 42,37¢ 13% 46,38¢ 13%
Total revenues $ 320,82 10% $ 353,51° 10C%

(1) Revenue for the United States v$80.6 million and $84.3 million in fiscal 2013 afiscal 2012, respectively

Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit

Cost of revenues decreased $17.0 million , or &4m $202.5 million in fiscal 2012 to $185.5 miltian fiscal 2013 . The decreases in cost of
revenues in fiscal 2013 was primarily due to desedaevenues and to a lesser extent, changesdoginmix.

Gross profit as a percentage of revenue decreas&tdt in fiscal 2013 compared to 43% in fiscal 20TRe decrease in gross profit percen
in the fiscal 2013 reflects increases in varialgerating costs and changes in product mix.

Operating Expenses
Research and Developme

Research and development expenses increased $4oB mor 25% , from $16.7 million in fiscal 20%& $21.0 million in fiscal 2013 . As a
percentage of revenues, research and developmeensss increased from 5% in fiscal 2012 to 6%sicefi2013 The increase in research ¢
development expenses in absolute dollars was ladyed to increases in headcount and facilitiegedlaosts as we broadened our research al
development activities to new product areas. Asragntage of revenues, research and developmeshsapincreased in both periods
primarily due to our overall decrease in reven@ser time, we expect our research and developnusts ¢o increase in absolute dollars as wi
continue making significant investments in devehgpnew products and developing new versions ofaisting products.

Sales, General and Administrative

Sales, general and administrative expenses ina&dsz8 million , or 142% , from $9.0 million irsfial 2012 to $21.8 million in fiscal 2013 .
As a percentage of revenues, sales, general anidiattative expenses increased from 3% in fiscdl2® 7% in fiscal 2013 . Sales, general
and administrative expenses increased in absobli@rsland as a percentage of revenue due largéhciteased legal expenses of $4.3 million,
primarily associated with our anti-counterfeititiiggiation, increased professional fees of $2.0iomll primarily related to the ancillary support
of certain management functions, increases in leeadand related salaries of $1.0 million. Additdy, in fiscal 2012 we recorded a gain of
$1.5 million from a trademark coexistence agreemstitin sales, general and administrative exper®gsr time, we expect our sales, genera
and administrative expenses to increase in absdalkars due to growth in headcount to supportbuginess and operations and the need to
build and protect our intellectual property rigtisridwide.

Interest Expense and Other, N

Interest expense and other, net was $851,0005talfR013 , representing a decrease of $418,060$t03 million for fiscal 2012 . The
decrease in fiscal 2013 as compared to fiscal 2<?primarily due to the additional interest couparour
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convertible subordinated promissory notes issugzhasof the repurchase of Series A convertiblégored stock from entities affiliated with
Summit Partners, L.P. in July 2011. The convertiilbordinated promissory notes were repaid inifiulctober 2011. Interest expense during
fiscal 2013 consisted primarily of interest relatesur term loan and credit facility borrowingsthvEast West Bank.

Provision for Income Taxe:

Our provision for income taxes decreased $10.4anill or 47% , from $21.4 million for fiscal 201@ $11.3 million for fiscal 2013 . Our
effective tax rate decreased to 12% for fiscal 284 8ompared to 17% fiscal 2012 . The decreaserieftective tax rate was primarily due to a
larger percentage of our overall profitability ooiog in foreign jurisdictions with lower incomextaates. Additionally, on January 2, 2013, the
American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 ("the Act") svsigned into law. One of the provisions of the pi@vides a retroactive extension of the
research and experimentation tax credit ("R&D df¢diarough December 31, 2013, which had expiredenember 31, 2011. We recogniz¢
tax benefit of $539,000 during the third quartefiefal 2013 as a result of the retroactive examsif the R&D credit.

Comparison of Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

Years Ended June 30,

2012 2011
(In thousands, except percentages)
Revenues $ 353,51° 10(% $ 197,87- 10C%
Cost of revenue® 202,51« 57% 117,06: 59%
Gross profit 151,00: 43% 80,81: 41%
Operating expenses:
Research and developmént 16,69¢ 5% 11,37« 6%
Sales, general and administratiy@ 9,01z 3% 7,35¢ 4%
Total operating expenses 25,71 8% 18,73 10%
Income from operations 125,29:. 35% 62,08( 31%
Interest income (expense) and other, net (1,269 * 79 *
Income before provision for income taxes 124,02: 35% 62,15¢ 31%
Provision for income taxes 21,43 6% 12,43: 6%
Net income and comprehensive income $ 102,58¢ 2%% $ 49,72 25%

* Less than 1%

@ Includes stock-based compensation as follows
Cost of revenues $ 117 $ 30
Research and development 54z 28t
Sales, general and administrative 834 637
Total stock-based compensation $ 1,49: $ 952
@ Includes a gain from a trademark coexistagreement as
follows: $ (1,500 $ —
Revenue:

Revenues increased $155.6 million, or 79%, from7# @nillion in fiscal 2011 to $353.5 million in fial 2012. During fiscal 2012, the increase
in revenues was due to higher unit volumes shippeaharily attributable to the success of our sys@roducts, most notably our airMAX
platform. Although we cannot quantify the impactiwany certainty, during fiscal 2012 we believeexperienced lost sales due to counterfeit
goods.

In fiscal 2012, revenues from Flytec and Streakwapeesented 16% and 10%, respectively, of ounmee® In fiscal 2011, Flytec and
Streakwave represented 20% and 15% of our reveregmctively. No other distributor or customemresgnted more than 10% of our
revenues in fiscal 2012 or fiscal 2011.
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Revenues by Product Ty

Years Ended June 30,

2012 2011
(In thousands, except percentages)
airMAX $ 223,74: 63% $ 113,00: 57%
New platforms 29,46: 8% 2,51 1%
Other systems 52,08t 15% 44,88 23%
Systems 305,29: 86% 160,39¢ 81%
Embedded radio 10,05¢ 3% 14,76: 7%
Antennas/other 38,16" 11% 22,71« 12%
Total revenues $ 353,51° 10(% $ 197,87- 100%

Systems revenues increased $144.9 million, or 9% $160.4 million fiscal 2011 to $305.3 million fiscal 2012. The increase in systems
revenues was primarily driven by rapid adoptiomarf airMAX platform, which we introduced in earlgéal 2010. Our new platforms
category, which includes significant platforms aatuced in late fiscal 2011 and during 2012, conted $29.5 million and $2.5 million of
revenue in fiscal 2012 and 2011, respectively. @hber systems revenue increased $7.2 million ddisogl 2012 as compared to fiscal 2011,
primarily due to a specific customer network expamsluring the quarter ending December 31, 2011.

Embedded radio revenues decreased by $4.7 milioon fiscal 2011 to fiscal 2012. We anticipate thatbedded radio products will decline in
future periods as sales of these products are cedpay sales of systems products.

Antennas/other revenues increased $15.5 millio68é6, from $22.7 million in fiscal 2011 to $38.2lkwn in fiscal 2012. A primary driver of
growth in antennas/other revenues was the broagefiour systems platforms, which drove demandafsociated antennas. Antennas/other
revenues also increased due to the growing salescessories purchased in connection with deployofarew systems, such as cables. Othel
revenues also include revenues that are attribeitaldiPCS.

Revenues by Geograp

During fiscal 2012 and 2011, we generally delivgpeatduct directly from our manufacturers to freigpmpanies in Hong Kong, which have
been retained by our customers and who in turntshipher locations throughout the world. We hagtetmined the geographical distribution
of our product revenues based on ship-to destimatié majority of our sales are to distributors whaurn sell to resellers or directly to end
customers. As a result of these factors, we belieatsales to certain geographic locations mightigher or lower, as the ultimate destinat
are difficult to ascertain. The increase in revenineabsolute dollars across all regions was pilyndriven by the success of our systems
products, most notably our airMAX product line.

The following are our revenues by geography fardi®012 and fiscal 2011:

Years Ended June 30,

2012 2011
(In thousands, except percentages)
North America $ 88,30¢ 25% $ 61,92( 31%
South America 88,32¢ 25% 50,82 26%
Europe, the Middle East and Africa 130,49« 37% 68,29 35%
Asia Pacific 46,38¢ 13% 16,83 8%
Total revenues $ 353,51° 10(% $ 197,87: 100%

Cost of Revenues and Gross Margin

Cost of revenues increased $85.5 million, or 73%mf$117.1 million in fiscal 2011 to $202.5 milliam fiscal 2012. Gross margin increased
from 41% in fiscal 2011 to 43% in fiscal 2012. Tiherease in gross margins reflected a high leveéeénue growth across a non-inventory
cost of sales base that only saw a slight increas®an increased focus on managing supply chaiis.co
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Operating Expenses
Research and Developme

Research and development expenses increased $bo8inoir 47%, from $11.4 million in fiscal 2011 §16.7 million in fiscal 2012. However,
as a percentage of revenues, research and develbprpenses decreased from 6% in fiscal 2011 tinS¥cal 2012. The increase in resea
and development expenses in absolute dollars irdwado increases in headcount and related expansses broadened our research and
development activities to new product areas. Asragntage of revenues research and developmemsegdecreased due to our overall
revenue growth.

Sales, General and Administrative

Sales, general and administrative expenses inaesé million, or 22%, from $7.4 million in fisc2D11 to $9.0 million in fiscal 2012. As a
percentage of revenues, sales, general and adraiivistexpenses decreased from 4% in fiscal 20B%4adn fiscal 2012. Sales, general and
administrative expenses increased slightly duadmeased personnel costs and increased costsaeslowith our being, and the preparation to
be, a public company. However, as a percentageveinues sales, general and administrative expeesesased slightly due to our overall
revenue growth. Additionally, during fiscal 2012 hvad a gain of $1.5 million related to a tradentkxistence agreement which the
Company included as a reduction to its generalaamiinistrative expenses.

Interest Income (Expense) and Other, N

Interest income (expense) and other, net was ($1ilBpn for fiscal 2012, representing a decreas$103 million from interest income
(expense) and other, net of $79,000 for fiscal 20he decrease was primarily due to interest ex@ansrued on our convertible subordinated
promissory notes issued as part of the repurchiaSerces A convertible preferred stock from ensitédffiliated with Summit Partners, L.P. in
July 2011 and interest expense accrued on ourltamagreement with East West Bank which we entiertedn September 2011.

Provision for Income Taxe:

Our provision for income taxes increased $9.0 oillior 72%, from $12.4 million for fiscal 2011 t@%4 million for fiscal 2012 related to
increased levels of profitability. Our effectivetaate decreased to 17% for fiscal 2012 as compar28% for fiscal 2011 primarily due to
increased sales in foreign tax jurisdictions witvér income tax rates.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources and Uses of Cash

Since inception, our operations primarily have bieemled through cash generated by operations. We&sh and cash equivalents of $227.8
million , $122.1 million and $76.4 million at JuB®, 2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

Consolidated Cash Flow Data

The following table sets forth the major componeriteur consolidated statements of cash flows ftatthe periods presented:

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 131,89 $ 81,78t $ 62,84:
Net cash used in investing activities (5,369 (3,310 (479
Net cash used in financing activities (20,767) (32,779 (14,417
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 105,76t $ 45,69¢ $ 47,94¢

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities in tleedi2013 of $131.9 million consisted primarily of netome of $80.5 million and net changes
in operating assets and liabilities that resultedet cash inflows of $45.9 million . These changassisted primarily of a $38.7 million
decrease in accounts receivable due to improveddaakections, a $10.2 million increase in accoy#gable and accrued liabilities due to the
timing of payments with our vendors, a $9.0 millionrease in inventory due to increased inventarjnand as a result of a transition to a third
party logistics provider during December
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2012, a $6.6 million increase in taxes payabletadiming of federal tax payments, a $1.9 millinarease in prepaid expenses and other
current assets due to an increase in overall bssiaetivity and a $1.2 million increase in defemegenues and related costs. Additionally, our
net income included non-cash adjustments due tk4tased compensation, depreciation and amortizdticreases to our provision for
doubtful accounts and write-downs for inventoryabscence and an excess tax benefit from stocldtmsards. The net of these non-cash
adjustments resulted in an increase of our net gashded by operating activities of $5.5 million .

Net cash provided by operating activities in fis2@l2 of $81.8 million consisted primarily of neatome of $102.6 million offset by change:
operating assets and liabilities. These changesisted primarily of a $36.6 million increase in agots receivable due to our overall revenue
growth and slower payment patterns from our custenae$16.5 million increase in accounts payabteautrued liabilities due to increased
overall business activity, a $9.5 million incre&s¢axes payable due to our higher profitabilityh3a7 million decrease in prepaid expenses an
other current assets due primarily to decreasedsitspwvith our vendors and a $2.3 million incre@sgventories related to increases in our
overall business activity. Additionally, our neteme included non-cash adjustments due to stoakdbaempensation, depreciation and
amortization, adjustments to our provisions forlatfwl accounts and inventory obsolescence and eessxax benefit from stock-based
awards. The net of these non-cash adjustmentdedsala reduction of our net cash provided by afieg activities of $11.6 million.

Net cash provided by operating activities in fis2@l1 of $63.0 million increased from cash usedgarating activities of $26.0 million

fiscal 2010. The increase in net cash providedg®rating activities resulted from net income of $4@illion and increases in operating asset:
and liabilities of $13.2 million in fiscal 2011. @hges in operating assets and liabilities consistiedarily of a $20.3 million increase in
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, a $5IBomincrease in accounts receivable, a $1.3 amilincrease in taxes payable, a $1.1 million
increase in inventories, a $715,000 increase ipgideexpenses and other current assets and aareade of $810,000 in deferred revenues
deferred cost of revenues.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Our investing activities consist solely of cap#apenditures and purchases of intangible assepstaCaxpenditures for fiscal 2013 , fis@ 1z
and fiscal 2011 were $4.1 million , $3.3 millionda®479,000, respectively. Additionally, we had castflows related to intangible assets of
$1.2 million during fiscal 2013 , consisting printaof legal costs associated with the applicafion and registrations of, our patents and
trademarks.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

We used $20.8 million of cash in financing actegtiduring fiscal 2013 . On August 7, 2012, we emténto a Loan and Security Agreement
(the “Loan Agreement”) with U.S. Bank, as syndioatagent, and East West Bank, as administrativetdgethe lenders party to the Loan
Agreement. The Loan Agreement replaced the EWB lAgreement discussed below. The Loan Agreementigesvfor (i) a $50.0 million
revolving credit facility, with a $5.0 million subhit for the issuance of letters of credit and a0$&illion sublimit for the making of swingline
loan advances (the “Revolving Credit Facility”) dafii) a $50.0 million term loan facility (the “Ter Loan Facility”). We may request
borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility iitugust 7, 2015. On August 7, 2012, we borrowed.82nillion of term loans under the
Term Loan Facility, bringing the total borrowed®80.0 million, to partially fund our common sto@purchase program. No borrowings
remain available under the Term Loan Facility. GsvBimber 21, 2012, we borrowed $10.0 million untderRevolving Credit Facility. On
December 20, 2012, we borrowed an additional $20ln under the Revolving Credit Facility to furdir special cash dividend. An
additional $20.0 million remains available for mming under the Revolving Credit Facility.

The Loan Agreement contains customary affirmative megative covenants, including covenants that bnrestrict our and our subsidiaries '
ability to, among other things, incur indebtednegant liens, merge or consolidate, dispose oftaspay dividends or make distributions, m
investments, make acquisitions, prepay certainatettness, change the nature of our or its busir&#er into certain transactions with
affiliates, enter into restrictive agreements, arake capital expenditures, in each case subjaxtstomary exceptions for a credit facility of
this size and type. We are also required to mairganinimum debt service coverage ratio, a maxintevarage ratio, and a minimum liquidity
ratio. As of June 30, 2013, we were in compliawdé all affirmative and negative covenants, debt/&e coverage ratio, leverage ratio and
minimum level of liquidity requirements .

On August 9, 2012, we announced that our Boardi@dirs authorized us to repurchase up to $10dl@mof our common stock. The share
repurchase program commenced August 13, 2012. @fisoal 2013 we repurchased 5,159,050 sharestfmiabhcost of $54.4 million.

On December 14, 2012, we announced that our Bddbitectors had authorized a special cash dividefih0.18 per share for each share of
common stock outstanding on December 24, 2012 aglgeegate dividend payment of $15.7 million was
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paid on December 28, 2012 to stockholders of reoarBecember 24, 2012. We do not anticipate pagimgcash dividends in the foreseeable
future.

We used $32.8 million of cash in financing actegtiduring fiscal 2012. In July 2011, we repurchasedggregate of 12,041,700 shares of oui
Series A preferred stock from entities affiliatetfhwSummit Partners, L.P., one of our major stoddters, at a price of $8.97 per share for an
aggregate consideration of $108.0 million. Of thgragate purchase price, $40.0 million was pahsh at the time of closing and the balanc
of the shares were paid for through the issuancewiertible subordinated promissory notes in thgregate principal amount of $68.0 milli
On September 15, 2011, $34.0 million was paid agdive notes reducing the aggregate principal atmmuistanding to $34.0 million.

On September 15, 2011, we entered into a Loan aodriy Agreement with East West Bank, (the “EWBahcAgreement”). The EWB Loan
Agreement consisted of a $35.0 million term loatility and a $5.0 million revolving line of credicility. The term loan was scheduled to
mature on September 15, 2016 with principal aner@st to be repaid in 60 monthly installments. Bgithe three months ended September 3
2011, we used $34.0 million of the term loan tcasep portion of our outstanding convertible suboatiéd promissory notes held by entities
affiliated with Summit Partners, L.P. The EWB Agmeent was replaced by the Loan Agreement on Augud®¥2 as discussed above.

We used $14.4 million of cash in financing actegtiduring fiscal 2011. During fiscal 2011, we eatkinto a stock purchase agreement to
repurchase 2,975,590 shares of common stock froee gtockholders for total consideration of $7.8iom. In fiscal 2011, we also
repurchased and subsequently cancelled optionsrétv@se 420,400 shares of our common stock fronofveair option holders for aggregate
consideration of $2.2 million. Additionally, we jplaa dividend on our Series A convertible prefesttk of $3.0 million and paid $1.8 million
in costs related to third party consulting serviassociated with the offering.

Liquidity

We believe our existing cash and cash equivaleats) provided by operations and the availabilitpaditional funds under our loan
agreements will be sufficient to meet our workimagital and capital expenditure needs for at ldesnhext 12 months. Our future capital
requirements may vary materially from those cufyeplanned and will depend on many factors, inahgdbur rate of revenue growth, the
timing and extent of spending to support developreéforts, the timing of new product introductiomsarket acceptance of our products and
overall economic conditions. As of June 30, 200& held $210.4 million of our $227.8 million of ¢teand cash equivalents in accounts of ou
subsidiaries outside of the United States and vildrnveur significant tax liabilities if we decid® trepatriate those amounts.

On June 18, 2013, we completed a secondary offerfiigd31,464 shares of common stock at an offguice of $16.00 per share, which
included 531,464 shares sold in connection withpmtial exercise of the option to purchase additichares granted to the underwriters. All
of the shares sold in the offering were sold byexisting stockholders, including entities affigdtwith Summit Partners, L.P., and our chief
executive officer, Robert J. Pera. We did not arll shares in the offering, and as such, we didewive any proceeds from the offering.

We believe that the combination of our existing tddiStates cash and cash equivalent balances tamd Einited States operating cash flows
are sufficient to meet our ongoing United Statesraping expenses and debt repayment obligations.

Stock Split

In October 2011, we completed a 2.5 for one forveodk split of our common and preferred stock.shlare and per share information set
forth herein has been retroactively adjusted tlecéthe split.

Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arragements

We lease our headquarters in San Jose, Califontiather locations worldwide under non-cancelalplerating leases that expire at various
dates through fiscal 2017.

In December 2011, we entered into an agreemepaktelapproximately 64,512 square feet of officeraadarch and development space
located in San Jose, California, which we use asorporate headquarters. The lease term is fromi Ap2012, though July 31, 2017. The
lease has been categorized as an operating |e@btheatotal estimated lease obligation is appraxaty $4.9 million.

On August 7, 2012, we entered into the Loan Agregméh U.S. Bank, as syndication agent, and EasstBank, as administrative agent for
the lenders party to the Loan Agreement. The Logre@ément provides for (i) a $50.0 million revolviagdit facility, with a $5.0 million
sublimit for the issuance of letters of credit @#5.0 million sublimit for the making of swinglinean advances, and (ii) a $50.0 million Term
Loan Facility. We may request borrowings under the
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Revolving Credit Facility until August 7, 2015. Guigust 7, 2012, we borrowed $20.8 million of tewwarns under the Term Loan Facility
bringing the total borrowed to $50.0 million, anal Imrrowings remain available thereunder. On Novem2ii, 2012, we borrowed $10.0
million under the Revolving Credit Facility. On De=aber 20, 2012 we borrowed an additional $20.Ganilinder the Revolving Credit
Facility, and $20.0 million remains available fartowing thereunder.

The following table summarizes our contractual gdgions as of June 30, 2013 :

Payments Due by Period

Less Than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 years Over 5 years Total

(In thousands)

Operating leases $ 1,74t $ 3317 % 1,22: $ — $ 6,28
Debt payment obligations 5,00( 46,25( 25,00( — 76,25(
Interest payments on debt payment

obligations 1,85¢ 2,76 657 — 5,281
Total $ 8,60z $ 52,33: $ 26,87¢ % —  $ 87,81

We subcontract with other companies to manufaaturgproducts. During the normal course of businesscontract manufacturers procure
components based upon orders placed by us. If neetall or part of the orders, we may still béoleato the contract manufacturers for the
of the components purchased by the subcontractemahufacture our products. We periodically revibespotential liability and to date no
significant accruals have been recorded. Our cateted financial position and results of operatioasld be negatively impacted if we were
required to compensate the contract manufactuoe@y unrecorded liabilities incurred.

As of June 30, 2013, we had gross unrecognizeldagfits of $11.5 million and an additional $5&®dor gross interest classified as
noncurrent liabilities. At this time, we are unatdemake a reasonably reliable estimate of thentinof payments in individual years in
connection with these tax liabilities; thereforecls amounts are not included in the above contahctuiigation table.

Commitments and Contingencies

In January 2011, the U.S. Department of CommeiBateau of Industry and Security’s Office of ExpBriforcement (“OEE”) contacted us to
request that we provide information related tomlationship with a logistics company in the Unitechb Emirates (“UAE”) and with a
company in Iran, as well as information on the ekptassification of our products. As a resulthiktinquiry we, assisted by outside counsel,
conducted a review of our export transactions faf¥a8 through March 2011 to not only gather infolioratesponsive to the OE&tequest bt
also to review our overall compliance with exparhtrol and sanctions laws. We believe our prodhatse been sold into Iran by third parties.
We do not believe that we directly sold, exporteditpped our products into Iran or any other coustibject to a U.S. embargo. However,
until early 2010, we did not prohibit our distrilbus from selling our products into Iran or any etbeuntry subject to a U.S. embargo. In the
course of this review we identified that two distriors may have sold Ubiquiti products into Iramr @view also found that while we had
obtained required Commodity Classification Rulifigsour products in June 2010 and November 2010didi@ot advise our shipping
personnel to change the export authorizations aeewlir shipping documents until February 2011. Byithe course of our export control
review, we also determined that we had failed tintain adequate records for the five year perigpiired by the EAR and the sanctions
regulations due to our lack of infrastructure ardause it was prior to our transition to our curssistem of record, NetSuite. SeRisk
Factor——\We are subject to numerous U.S. export controleomhomic sanctions laws and a substantial majarfityur sales are into countri
outside of the United States. Although we did migtnid to do so, we have violated certain of thages lin the past, and we cannot currently
assess the nature and extent of any fines or @éealties, if any, that U.S. governmental agengiayg impose against us or our employees fo
any such violations. Any fines, if materially difiet from our estimates, or other penalties, ccdgde a material adverse effect on our busines
and financial results:

In May 2011, we filed a self-disclosure statemeiththe BIS and the OEE and, in June 2011 we files@lf-disclosure statement with the U.S.
Department of the Treasury’s Office of Foreign AgSentrol (“OFAC"), regarding the compliance issureded above. The disclosures addres:
the above described findings and the remedial a€tiee have taken to date. However, the findings ialdicate that both distributors continued
to sell, directly or indirectly, our products intan during the period from February 2010 througaréh 2011 and that we received various
communications from them indicating that they wesatinuing to do so. Since January 2011, we haevp@&mted with OEE and, prior to our
disclosure filing, we informally shared with the BEhe substance of our findings with respect td latistributors. From May 2011 to August
2011, we provided additional information regarding review and our findings to OEE to facilitate itvestigation and OEE advised us in
August 2011 that it had completed its investigatbns. In August 2011, we received a warning fetem OEE
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stating that OEE had not referred the findingswfreview for criminal or administrative prosecutiof us and closed the investigation of us
without penalty.

OFAC is still reviewing our voluntary disclosur@. dur submission, we have provided OFAC with anlaxation of the activities that led to 1
sales of our products in Iran and the failure tmply with the EAR and OFAC sanctions. Although QFAC and OEE voluntary disclosures
covered similar sets of facts, which led OEE tohesthe case with the issuance of a warning |e®@EAC may conclude that our actions
resulted in violations of U.S. export control armeomic sanctions laws and warrant the impositiogpemalties that could include fines,
termination of our ability to export our productsdéor referral for criminal prosecution. The peigagltmay be imposed against us and/or our
management. The maximum civil monetary penaltyttierviolations is up to $250,000 or twice the vadfiehe transaction, whichever is
greater, per violation. Any such fines or restdns may be material to our financial results inghegod in which they are imposed. Also,
disclosure of our conduct and any fines or othéipaaelating to this conduct could harm our refiotaand have a material adverse effect on
our business. We cannot predict when OFAC will clatepits review or decide upon the imposition o$gible penalties.

While we have taken actions designed to ensuresttpadrt classification information is distributexlthe appropriate personnel in a timely
manner and have adopted policies and procedum®maote our compliance with applicable export land regulations, including obtaining
written distribution agreements with substantiallyof our distributors that contain covenants ieqg compliance with U.S. export control ¢
economic sanctions law; notifying all of our dibtrtors of their obligations and obtaining updatedribution agreements from distributors that
account for approximately 99% of our distributoverue in fiscal 2013 . However we cannot be sucé sations will be effective.

Additionally, our failure to amend all our distrifian agreements and to implement more robust campdi controls immediately after the
discovery of Iran-related sales activity in earBl@ may be aggravating factors that could impagirtiposition of penalties imposed on us or
our management. Based on the facts known to uat& de recorded an expense of $1.6 million far éxiport compliance matter in fiscal
2010, which represents management’s estimated esg@&x fines in accordance with applicable accimgnliterature. This amount was
calculated from information discovered through imternal review and we deem this loss to be prabahb reasonably estimable. However,
we believe that it is reasonably possible thatldisse may be higher, but we cannot reasonably etgitha range of any further potential losses.
Should additional facts be discovered in the futaurd/or should actual fines or other penalties tsubislly differ from our estimates, our
business, financial condition, cash flows and ftssofl operations would be materially negatively aoted.

Warranties and Indemnifications

Our products are generally accompanied by a 12 meatranty, which covers both parts and labor. @Galyethe distributor is responsible for
the freight costs associated with warranty retuansl, we absorb the freight costs of replacing itander warranty. In accordance with the
Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB’sAicounting Standards Codification (“ASC”), 450-3@ss Contingencies, we record an
accrual when we believe it is estimable and pradbabked upon historical experience. We recorddgion for estimated future warranty we
in cost of goods sold upon recognition of reverares we review the resulting accrual regularly aedqalically adjust it to reflect changes in
warranty estimates.

We may in the future enter into standard indematfan agreements with many of our distributors @ftMs, as well as certain other business
partners in the ordinary course of business. Thgseements may include provisions for indemnifytimg distributor, OEM or other business
partner against any claim brought by a third ptotthe extent any such claim alleges that a Ukiiguitduct infringes a patent, copyright or
trademark or violates any other proprietary rigsftthat third party. The maximum amount of poteriidure indemnification is unlimited. The
maximum potential amount of future payments we ddod required to make under these indemnificatgree@ments is not estimable.

We have agreed to indemnify our directors, officard certain other employees for certain eventeourrences, subject to certain limits, w
such persons are or were serving at our requesicin capacity. We may terminate the indemnificatigreements with these persons upon th
termination of their services with us but termipativill not affect claims for indemnification reéat to events occurring prior to the effective
date of termination. The maximum amount of potéiititure indemnification is unlimited. We have aeditor and officer insurance policy that
limits our potential exposure. We believe the failue of these indemnification agreements is mihinée had not recorded any liabilities for
these agreements as of June 30, 2013 or 2012 .

Based upon our historical experience and informaitimown as of the date of this report, we do ntiele it is likely that we will have
significant liability for the above indemnities atne 30, 2013 .

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of June 30, 2013 and 2012 , we had no off-ba&laheet arrangements other than those indemnificatireements described above.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardaifiq"FASB") issued a new accounting standard wpdatthe financial statement
presentation of unrecognized tax benefits. The gedance provides that a liability related to anewognized tax benefit would be presented
as a reduction of a deferred tax asset for a nesatipg loss carryforward, a similar tax loss ¢axacredit carryforward if such settlement is
required or expected in the event the uncertaimptesition is disallowed. The new guidance will b@eoeffective for us on July 1, 2014 and it
should be applied prospectively to unrecognizedenefits that exist as of the effective date wattnospective application permitted. We are
currently assessing the impact of this new guidance

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Regulation G, conditions for use of Non-Generallc@pted Accounting Principles (“Non-GAAP”) finankiaeasures, and other SEC
regulations define and prescribe the conditionsifa of certain Non-GAAP financial information. $opplement our consolidated financial
results presented in accordance with GAAP, we use GBAAP financial measures which are adjusted ftbenmost directly comparable
GAAP financial measures to exclude certain iteragjescribed below. Management believes that these®RAP financial measures reflect
an additional and useful way of viewing aspectewfoperations that, when viewed in conjunctiorhvaitir GAAP results, provide a more
comprehensive understanding of the various faendstrends affecting our business and operatioos-GIAAP financial measures used by us
include net income or loss and diluted net incomiss per share.

Our Non-GAAP measures primarily exclude stdidsed compensation, net of taxes and other spEiages and credits. Additionally, in fise
2012 we had a gain of $1.5 million from a tradenmzokxistence agreement. Management believes thas&RNAP financial measures provi
meaningful supplemental information regarding duategic and business decision making, interna@ibtidg, forecasting and resource
allocation processes. In addition, these Non-GAisBrfcial measures facilitate management’s intezoaiparisons to our historical operating
results and comparisons to competitors’ operatisgits.

We use each of these NG@AAP financial measures for internal manageriabpges, when providing our financial results andr®ss outlool

to the public and to facilitate period-to-periodrgmarisons. Management believes that these Non-GiA&sures provide meaningful
supplemental information regarding our operatiamal financial performance of current and historieallts. Management uses these Non-
GAAP measures for strategic and business decisaking, internal budgeting, forecasting and resoatlmeation processes. In addition, these
Non-GAAP financial measures facilitate managementerimal comparisons to our historical operating ltesand comparisons to competitors’
operating results.

The following table shows our Non-GAAP financial aseres:

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Non-GAAP net income and comprehensive income $ 82,51 % 102,58! $ 50,29¢
Non-GAAP diluted net income per share of commouglsto $ 091 $ 1.0¢ $ 0.4¢

We believe that providing these Non-GAAP financieasures, in addition to the GAAP financial resute useful to investors because they
allow investors to see our results “through theséyé management as these Non-GAAP financial meassteflect our internal measurement
processes. Management believes that these Non-GiAARcial measures enable investors to better astesiges in each key element of our
operating results across different reporting peviod a consistent basis and provides investorsamitither method for assessing our operating
results in a manner that is focused on the perfoomaf our ongoing operations.
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The following table shows a reconciliation of GAABt income and comprehensive income to non-GAARNteime and comprehensive
income:

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011

(In thousands, except per
share amounts)

Net income and comprehensive income $ 80,49( $ 102,58¢ $ 49,72;
Stock-based compensation:

Cost of revenues 44¢ 117 30

Research and development 1,43: 542 28t

Sales, general and administrative 1,49 834 637
Gain from a trademark coexistence agreement — (1,500 —
Tax effect of non-GAAP adjustments (1,35)) 3 (381)
Non-GAAP net income and comprehensive income $ 82,51 $ 102,58' $ 50,29¢
Non-GAAP diluted net income per share of commogls(d) $ 091 $ 1.0¢ $ 0.4¢

Weighted-average shares used in computing non-Géilyied net income per share of
common stock (1) 90,25¢ 93,76: 102,94.

(1) Nor-GAAP diluted net income per share of common siedalculated using non-GAAP net income and congmsive income excluding stock-based
compensation and a gain from a trademark coexistagreement, net of taxes and weighted-averagesshatstanding as if Series A preferred stock is
treated as common stock for the periods presented.

The following table shows a reconciliation of weigth-average shares used in computing net incores) (f@r share of common stock-diluted
to weighted-average shares used in computing noAfSdiluted net income per share of common stock:

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Weighted average shares used in computing nepkrsshare of common stock- dilute 90,25¢ 83,46( 66,90°
Weighted average dilutive effect of stock optiond aestricted stock units — 2,69t —
Weighted average shares of Series A preferred stotstanding — 7,601 36,03t
Weighted-average shares used in computing non-Gailied income per share of
common stock 90,25¢ 93,76: 102,94.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk
Interest Rate Sensitivit

We have interest rate risk from the LIBOR index faused to determine the interest rates on oanlAgreement. Interest will accrue on the
outstanding principal amount of the term loan edta per annum equal to an adjusted LIBOR ratestbas one, two or three month interest
periods) plus a spread of either 2.50% or 3.00%glwvbpread shall be determined based on the debiteeatio for the preceding four fiscal
guarter period. The loans bear interest, at oupppat the base rate plus a spread of 1.25% &#4 9t an adjusted LIBOR rate (at our election
for a period of 30, 60, or 90 days) plus a spred2b% to 2.75%, in each case with such spreatgbdtermined based on our debt service
coverage ratio for the most recently ended fiscalrtgr. The base rate is the highest of (i) EasitBank’s prime rate, (ii) the federal funds r
plus a margin equal to 0.50%, or (iii) the LIBORea@lus a margin equal to 1.00%. Based on a seitgiéinalysis, as of June 30, 2013, an
instantaneous and sustained 200-basis-point ireiaasterest rates affecting our floating ratetdsfigations, and assuming that we take no
counteractive measures, would result in a chargeitdncome provision for before income taxes iness of $1.0 million over the next 12
months.

We had cash and cash equivalents of $227.8 miélimh$122.1 million as of June 30, 2013 and 20&28pectively. These amounts were held
primarily in cash deposit accounts. The fair vadfieur cash equivalents would not be significaaffiected by either a 10% increase or
decrease in interest rates due mainly to the ghort-nature of these instruments.
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Foreign Currency Risk

Most of our sales are denominated in U.S. dolknsl, therefore, our revenues are not currently subgesignificant foreign currency risk. Our
operating expenses are denominated in the cursentitte countries in which our operations aretledaand may be subject to fluctuations
to changes in foreign currency exchange ratesicptatly changes in the Chinese Yuan, Lithuaniata kind Taiwan Dollar. During the fiscal
year endedJune 30, 2013, a 10% appreciation or depreciatitime value of the U.S. dollar relative to theestburrencies in which our
expenses are denominated would not have had aiat@tgpact on our financial position or resultsogferations.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The response to this Item is submitted as a sepsaeation of this Form 10-K. See Item 15.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur

Our management, with the participation of our Clagécutive Officer and our Chief Financial Officeyaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of June(®@® 2The term “disclosure controls and procedusdefined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934naanded (the “Exchange Act”), means controls dhdrgprocedures of a company that are
designed to ensure that information required tdibelosed by a company in the reports that it filesubmits under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported nvtftbitime periods specified in the SEC's rules famchs. Disclosure controls and
procedures include, without limitation, controlsigarocedures designed to ensure that informatiguired to be disclosed by a company in the
reports that it files or submits under the Exchafigeis accumulated and communicated to the compangnagement, including its principal
executive and principal financial officers, as agprate to allow timely decisions regarding reqdidésclosure. Management recognizes that
any controls and procedures, no matter how welgdesl and operated, can provide only reasonableasse of achieving their objectives and
management necessarily applies its judgment iruatiag the cost-benefit relationship of possiblatoals and procedures. Based on the
evaluation of our disclosure controls and proceslaeof June 30, 2013, our Chief Executive Offagadt Chief Financial Officer concluded
that, as of such date, our disclosure controlspradedures were effective at the reasonable assutavel.

Managemen's Report on Internal Control over Financial Repdrtg

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Manag@mwith the participation of our principal exegetofficer and principal financial
officer, has conducted an evaluation of the effectess of our internal control over financial rejpgr based on the framework set forth

in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issuedtiy Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thea@liivay Commission. Based on our
evaluation under the framework set forth in Inté@antrol—Integrated Framework, our management kated that our internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of June 30,20

The effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting as of June 30, 2013 has been alibifd’ricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,tated in their report which appears herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportn

There were no changes in our internal control éwancial reporting that occurred during the quaeteded June 30, 2013 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeef, our internal control over financial reporting

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Contro

Control systems, no matter how well conceived gperated, are designed to provide a reasonabl@dba@n absolute, level of assurance that
the objectives of the control system are met. Faurttihe design of a control system must reflecfaloethat there are resource constraints, and
the benefits of controls must be considered redativtheir costs. Because of the inherent limitetim all control systems, no evaluation of
controls can provide absolute assurance that attalissues and instances of fraud, if any, haaentdetected. Because of the inherent
limitations in any control system, misstatements ttuerror or fraud may occur and not be detected.
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Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable
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PART III
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers and Corporate Gowance

The information required by this Item 10 is incagted by reference to our Proxy Statement for 8E82Annual Meeting of Stockholders (to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiithin 120 days of our June 30, 2013 fiscal yerad) under the headings “Election of
Directors — Executive Officers and Directors,” “@orate Governance,” and “Section 16(a) Beneficiah@rship Reporting Compliance.”

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 is incagted by reference to our Proxy Statement for 882Annual Meeting of Stockholders (to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissgiithin 120 days of our June 30, 2013 fiscal yaad) under the headings “Executive
Compensation,” “Election of Directors—Directors’ @pensation” and “Election of Directors—Compensat@mmmittee Interlocks and
Insider Participation.”

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ainagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this Item 12 with resp® security ownership of certain beneficial onmand management is incorporated by
reference to our Proxy Statement for the 28h&ual Meeting of Stockholders (to be filed wittketS8ecurities and Exchange Commission wi
120 days of our June 30, 2013 fiscal year end) utideheadings “Security Ownership of Certain BanafOwners and Management Related
Stockholder Matters.”

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence

The information required by this Iltem 13 is incagted by reference to our Proxy Statement for B82Annual Meeting of Stockholders (to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissgiithin 120 days of our June 30, 2013 fiscal yaad) under the headings “Certain
Relationships and Related Party Transactions” &tection of Directors—Committees of the Board ofdaiors.”

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 is incagted by reference to our Proxy Statement for 882Annual Meeting of Stockholders (to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisgiithin 120 days of our June 30, 2013 fiscal yeadf) under the headings “Ratification of

the Appointment of Independent Registered Publicodating Firm—Audit and Non-Audit Fees” and “—Audibmmittee Pre-Approval
Policies.”
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(& 1. Financial Statements

The financial statements filed as part of this repee identified in the Index to Consolidated Ficial Statements on page 63 of this Form 10-
K.

2. Financial Statement Schedules
See Item 15(c) below.

3. Exhibits
See Item 15(b) below.

(b) Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed herewith or arearporated by reference to exhibits previouslydfieth the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. (the “Registtgrshall furnish copies of exhibits for a reasoleatee (covering the expense of furnishing
copies) upon request.



Incorporated by

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference from
Number Description Reference from Form Exhibit Number Date Filed

3.1 Form of Third Amended and Restated Certificate of S-1 3.2 June 17, 2011
Incorporation of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.

3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of Ubiquiti S-1 3.4 June 17, 2011
Networks, Inc.

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Ubiquiti S-1 4.1 October 3, 2011
Networks, Inc.

4.2 Registration Agreement, dated March 2, 2010, betwee S-1 4.2 June 17, 2011
Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and certain holders of Ulpik
Networks, Inc.’s capital stock named therein.

4.3 Investor Rights Agreement, dated as of March 20201 S-1 4.3 June 17, 2011
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and certain holdgrs
Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.’s capital stock named thare

10.1 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Ubiquiti S-1 10.1 October 3, 2011
Networks, Inc. and its directors and officers.

10.2# Amended and Restated 2005 Equity Incentive Plan and S-1 10.2 June 17, 2011
forms of agreement thereunder.

10.3# Amended and Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan and S-1 10.3 June 17, 2011
forms of agreement thereunder.

10.4# Employment Agreement, dated as of February 10, 2011 S-1 10.5 June 17, 2011
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Benjamin Moore.

10.5# Executive Employment Agreement between the 8-K 10.1 March 8, 2013
Company and Craig Foster, effective March 4, 2013.

10.6# Employment Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2010, S-1 10.7 June 17, 2011

between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and John Sanford.
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Incorporated by

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference from
Number Description Reference from Form Exhibit Number Date Filed

10.7# Employment Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2012, 10-K 10.8 September 28, 2012
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Jessica Zhou.

10.8 Non-Residential Property Lease Agreement, datexf as S-1 10.9 June 17, 2011
May 28, 2009, between UAB “Devint” and Tomas
Grébliunas, Tomas Skas, and Vygante Skiené.

10.9 Jinyong Ji Investment Taiwan Lease, dated as oEMar S-1 10.10 June 17, 2011
16, 2010, between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Jimyo
Ji Investment Co., Ltd.

10.10 Lease, dated as of July 9, 2010, between Ubiquiti S-1 10.11 June 17, 2011
Networks, Inc. and The Welsh Office Center LLC.

10.11% Amended Technology License Agreement, dated as of S-1 10.12 June 17, 2011
September 1, 2010, between Ubiquiti Networks, amal
Atheros Communications, Inc.

10.12 Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of Septef) S-1 10.14 September 16, 2011
2011, between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and East West
Bank.

10.13 Taiwan Lease, dated as of July 20, 2011, between Ji 10-Q 10.15 November 14, 2011
Yeoung Ji Co., Ltd. and Ubiquiti Networks Intericaual
Limited, Taiwan Branch.

10.14 Office Lease, dated as of December 8, 2011 and 10-Q/A 10.16 March 20, 2012
executed on December 22, 2011, by and between
Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Carr NP Properties, ICL

10.15 Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of August 7, 8-K 10.1 August 13, 2012
2012, by and among Ubiquiti Networks, Inc., theders
from time to time party thereto, U.S. Bank, as
Syndication Agent, and East West Bank, as
Administrative Agent

10.16 Non-Residential Premises Lease Agreement, datefl as
July 10, 2013, between Ubiquiti Networks Europe and
BUAB Apskaitos etika.

10.17 Retention Agreement by and between the Registraht a 10-Q 10.1 February 8, 2013
John Ritchie dated December 21, 2012.

21.1 List of subsidiaries of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.

23.1 Consent of independent registered public accounting
firm

24.1 Power of Attorney (contained in the signature page
this Form 10-K)

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive OfficBequired

Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Secaritie



31.2

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Reqait
Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Secaritie
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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Incorporated by

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference from
Number Description Reference from Form Exhibit Number Date Filed
32.1~ Certification of Principal Executive Officer andifgipal
Financial Officer Required Under Rule 13a-14(bjtaf
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18
U.S.C. §1350.
101.INS(*) XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH(*) XBRL Taxonomy Schema Linkbase Document
101.CAL(*¥) XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF(*) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
Document
101.LAB(*) XBRL Taxonomy Labels Linkbase Document
101.PRE(®) XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document

# Management contracts or compensation plang@ngements in which directors or executive offiaes eligible to participate.

T Portions of the exhibit have been omitted purstmian order granted by the Securities and Exch@ugemission for confidential treatment.

~ In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Regida S-K and SEC Release No. 33-8238 and 34-47086) Rule: Management's Reports on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting and CertificatmirDisclosure in Exchange Act Periodic Reports,dbsifications furnished in Exhibit 32.1 herete
deemed to accompany this Form 10-K and will notd&emed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of theliange Act. Such certifications will not be
deemed to be incorporated by reference into amg§lunder the Securities Act or the Exchange éxtept to the extent that the registrant speciical
incorporates it by reference.

(*) XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Languaiddrmation is furnished and not filed or a partofegistration statement or prospectus for puipoe
Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 193%raended, is deemed not filed for purposes of @edi8 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and is not otherwise subject to liabilitder these Sections.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules.

Schedules not listed above have been omitted betheayg are not applicable or required, or the imi@tion required to be set forth therein is
included in the Consolidated Financial Statementdaies thereto.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

Date: September 13, 2013

Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.

/s/ Robert J. Pera

Robert J. Pera
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

/sl Craig L. Foster

Craig L. Foster
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each persornoat signature appears below constitutes and aggdeotiert J. Pera and Craig
L. Foster and each of them, his true and lawfarattys-in-fact and agents, each with full poweswstitution and resubstitution, for him and
in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacto sign any and all amendments to this AnRegdort on Form 10-K, and to file the same
with exhibits thereto and other documents in cotinedherewith, with the Securities and Exchangen@ission granting unto said attorneys-
in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power auldagity to do and perform each and every act aimjtrequisite and necessary to be di
as fully to all intents and purposes as he mightoad do in person, hereby ratifying and confirghall that each of said attorneys-in-fact and
agents, or his substitute or substitutes may ldyfld or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of 1
registrant and in the capacities and on the datlisdted.

Signature Title Date
[s/__Robert J. Pera Chief Executive Officer and Director
Robert J. Pera (Principal Executive Officer) September 13,201
[s/ _Craig L. Foster Chief Financial Officer
Craig L. Foster (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) mBember 13, 2013

[s|__Peter Y. Chung
Peter Y. Chung Director September 13, 2013

[s/__Charles J. Fitzgerald
Charles J. Fitzgerald Director September 13, 2013

[s/ __John L. Ocampo
John L. Ocampo Director September 13, 2013

[s/__Robert M. Van Buskirk
Robert M. Van Buskirk Director September 13, 2013

/s/__Ronald A. Sege
Ronald A. Sege Director September 13, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statenfeopei@ations and comprehensive income,
stockholders' equity (deficit) and cash flows preégairly, in all material respects, the finangialsition of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and its
subsidiaries at June 30, 2013 and June 30, 201 the results of their operations and their cishid for each of the three years in the period
ended June 30, 2013 in conformity with accountiriggiples generally accepted in the United StafeSnoerica. Also in our opinion, the
Company maintained, in all material respects, éffednternal control over financial reporting &sJane 30, 2013, based on criteria
established ifnternal Control - Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifriee Treadway Commission
(COSO0). The Company's management is responsibtédse financial statements, for maintaining efiecinternal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectigerd internal control over financial reportingglided in Management's Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting appearing undeml©A. Our responsibility is to express opiniongloese financial statements and on the
Company's internal control over financial reportbaged on our audits (which was an integrated &u@®13). We conducted our audits in
accordance with the standards of the Public Compacypunting Oversight Board (United States). Thetsendards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurdomet avhether the financial statements are freeatenal misstatement and whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. Our audits of tharicial statements included examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts actbdiges in the financial statements, assessingdbeunting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating #ralbfinancial statement presentation. Our aufiibt@rnal control over financial reportil
included obtaining an understanding of internaltcmrover financial reporting, assessing the risktta material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectisgé internal control based on the assessedQiskaudits also included performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary girthenstances. We believe that our audits provideaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonableasassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statets:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (fapeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readnaassurance regarding prevention or timely detectf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could hawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
September 13, 2013
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UBIQUITI NETWORKS, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except share data)

June 30,
2013 2012
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 227,82t 122,06(
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubdfttounts of $2,200 and $1,266,
respectively 35,88¢ 75,64«
Inventories 15,88( 7,73¢
Current deferred tax asset 732 882
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,151 1,57
Total current assets 283,47- 207,89
Property and equipment, net 5,97¢ 4,471
Long-term deferred tax asset 4 232
Other long—term assets 2,88¢ 1,13¢
Total assets $ 292,34( 213,73t
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 36,18’ 26,45(
Customer deposits 5,12 23t
Deferred revenues - short-term 691 80t
Income taxes payable 1,257 94¢€
Debt - short-term 5,01: 6,96¢
Other current liabilities 11,15( 17,03:
Total current liabilities 59,42: 52,43t
Long-term taxes payable 11,857 7,721
Debt - long-term 71,11¢ 22,62:
Deferred revenues - long-term 2,51( —
Total liabilities 144,90: 82,78t
Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock—$0.001 par value; 50,000,000 stearé®rized; none issued — —
Common stock—$0.001 par value; 500,000,000 shartb®azed:
87,213,803 and 92,049,978 outstanding at June®® and June 30, 2012,
respectively 87 92
Additional paid—in capital 134,98. 128,98:
Treasury stock—44,238,960 and 39,079,910 shardsméleasury at June 30, 2013 ant
June 30, 2012, respectively (123,86¢) (69,515
Retained earnings 136,23: 71,39:
Total stockholders’ equity 147,43t 130,95:
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 292,34( % 213,73t

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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UBIQUITI NETWORKS, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehsive Income
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011

Revenues $ 320,820 % 35351° $ 197,87:
Cost of revenues 185,48 202,51 117,06.
Gross profit 135,33« 151,00¢ 80,81:
Operating expenses:

Research and development 20,95¢ 16,69¢ 11,37

Sales, general and administrative 21,77¢ 9,012 7,35¢
Total operating expenses 42,73( 25,71 18,73:
Income from operations 92,60: 125,29:. 62,08(
Interest income (expense) and other, net (851) (1,269 79
Income before provision for income taxes 91,75: 124,02: 62,15¢
Provision for income taxes 11,26: 21,434 12,43:
Net income and comprehensive income $ 80,49( $ 102,58¢ $ 49,72
Preferred stock cumulative dividend and accretibcost of preferred stock — (112,43) (42,06%)
Less allocation of net income to participating pregd stockholders — — (2,789
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhadebasic $ 80,49( $ (9,842 $ 4,87¢
Undistributed earnings re-allocated to common siotders — — 10¢
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhdediluted $ 80,49( $ (9,842) $ 4,97¢
Net income (loss) per share of common stock:

Basic $ 091 $ (019 % 0.0¢

Diluted $ 08¢ $ (019 $ 0.07
Weighted average shares used in computing net ia¢toss) per share of common stock:

Basic 88,31« 83,46( 63,09:

Diluted 90,25¢ 83,46( 66,90°
Cash dividends declared per common share $ 0.1¢ $ — % —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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UBIQUITI NETWORKS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DE FICIT)

In thousands

Additional |
Convertible Paid-In -ll—<ct)1ta|d ,
Preferred Stock Common Stock Capital Treasury Stock . Stockholders
Retained Equity
Shares Amount Shares Amount Amount Shares Amount Earnings (Deficit)

Balances at June 30, 2010 36,034,63 $106,78. 6558568 $ 66 $ 1,991 (36,104,32) $ (62,269 $ 7,37¢ $ (52,83Y
Net income and comprehensive income — _ — — — — _ 49,72; 49,72;
Accretion of costs of Series A convertible
preferred stock — 37,73t — — — — — (37,73Y) (37,73Y)
Repurchase of common stock _ —  (2,975,59) €) _ (2,975,59) (7,249 _ (7,250
Preferred stock cumulative dividend — 4,33: — — — — — (4,339 (4,339
Payment of preferred stock cumulative
dividend — (3,007) — — — — — — —
Restricted stock units issued, net of tax
withholdings — — 75,86¢ — (252) — — — (252
Option cancellations and repurchases — _ — — (2,146) — — _ (2,146
Stock-based compensation expense — _ — — 957 — _ _ 957
Balances at June 30, 2011 36,034,63 14584  62,685,95 63 545 (39,079,91)  (69,51%) 15,03 (53,872
Net income and comprehensive income — — — — — — — 102,58t 102,58t
Accretion of costs of Series A convertible
preferred stock — 111,53 — — (65,637) — — (45,907) (111,53Y)
Repurchase of Series A convertible preferred
stock (12,041,70) (108,001 — — — — — — —
Preferred stock cumulative dividend _ 89¢ _ _ (56€) _ _ (328) (896)
Conversion of preferred stock into common
stock in conjunction with initial public offering (23,992,92)  (150,27¢) 23,992,92 24 150,25« — — — 150,27¢
Issuance of common stock pursuant to initia
public offering, net of offering expenses — — 2,395,32i 30,45( — — — 30,45
Stock options exercised — _ 2,885,47 80€ — _ _ 811
Restricted stock units issued, net of tax
withholdings — — 90,29¢ — (1,390 — — — (1,390
Stock-based compensation expense — _ — — 1,497 — — — 1,497
Tax impact of employee stock transactions — _ — — 13,02: — — _ 13,02:
Balances at June 30, 2012 — — 92,049,97 92 128,98. (39,079,91) (69,51 71,39 130,95:
Net income and comprehensive income — _ — — — — — 80,49( 80,49(
Stock options exercised — _ 266,55¢ — 63t — — _ 63E
Restricted stock units issued, net of tax
withholdings — — 56,31° — (214) — — — (219
Common stock repurchased - —  (5,159,05) ©) —  (5159,05) (54,349 — (54,359
Dividends paid on common stock — _ — — — — _ (15,65:) (15,657
Tax impact of employee stock transactions — — — — 2.20¢ — — — 2.20¢
Stock-based compensation expense — _ — — 3,37¢ — _ _ 3,37¢
Balances at June 30, 2013 — 3 — 87,21380 $ 87 $134,98. (44,238,96) $(123,869) $136,23: $ 147,43t

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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UBIQUITI NETWORKS, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income and comprehensive income $ 80,49( $ 102,58¢ $ 49,72°
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigea by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,96° 602 21¢
Provision for inventory obsolescence 85( 19t 19¢
Deferred taxes 371 (897) (1,169
Excess tax benefit from employee stock-based awards (2,329) (13,799 —
Stock-based compensation 3,37¢ 1,49¢ 952
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 15(C — —
Provision for doubtful accounts 1,09¢ 81t (200)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 38,66¢ (36,649 (5,864
Inventories (8,996 (2,266 (1,05¢)
Deferred cost of revenues (1,185 881 5,02t
Prepaid expenses and other assets (1,859 3,66( (715)
Accounts payable 9,72¢ 11,69: 9,071
Taxes payable 6,64¢ 9,53¢ 1,29:
Deferred revenues 2,39¢ (929) (5,839
Accrued liabilities and other 521 4,85¢ 11,19:
Net cash provided by operating activities 131,89: 81,78¢ 62,84
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of property and equipment and other leng-assets (5,369 (3,310 (479
Net cash used in investing activities (5,369 (3,310 479
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from term loan, net 20,83 34,81 —
Repayments on term loan balance (4,339 (5,250) —
Proceeds from credit facility 30,00( — —
Repurchases of common stock and outstanding awards (54,359 — (9,64¢)
Payment of special common stock dividend (15,657) — —
Repurchase of Series A convertible preferred stock — (108,001 —
Issuance of convertible subordinated promissorgsot — 68,00( —
Payment of convertible subordinated promissorysiote — (68,000 —
Proceeds from shares issued in initial public affgrnet of offering costs — 32,44 —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 63E 811 _
Payment of deemed dividend on Series A convertitééerred stock — — (3,002
Excess tax benefit from employee stock-based awards 2,32: 13,79¢ —
Tax withholdings related to net share settlemehtesiricted stock units (214 (1,390 _
Payment of deferred offering costs — — (1,767
Net cash used in financing activities (20,76) (32,779 (14,417
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 105,76t 45,69¢ 47 ,94¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 122,06( 76,36 28,41*
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 227,82 $ 122,060 $ 76,36
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Income Taxes paid $ 4,09 $ 6,211 $ 12,14:
Interest paid $ 1,69¢ $ 68 $ —

Conversion of preferred stock into common stockanjunction with initial public offering $ — % 150,27 $ —



See notes to consolidated financial statements.

68




Table of Contents

UBIQUITI NETWORKS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1—BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Business— Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. was incorporated in th&at® of California in 2003 as Pera Networks, Imc2005 the Company changed
its name to Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and commendsdurrent operations. In June 2010, the Comparsyreséncorporated in Delaware.

Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and its wholly owned sulisides (collectively, “Ubiquiti” or the “Company’is a product driven company that
leverages innovative proprietary technologies fivdenetworking solutions to both startup and bkshed network operators and service
providers.

On October 13, 2011, the Company entered into demnriting agreement for its initial public offegrof common stock at $15.00 per share.
The Company's initial public offering closed on @axtr 19, 2011. Immediately prior to the closinghef initial public offering, all outstanding
shares of the Company’s preferred stock convedemimon stock on a one for one basis.

On June 18, 2013, the Company completed a seconéfaring of 7,031,464 shares of common stock abféering price of $16.00 per share,
which included 531,464 shares sold in connectidh thie partial exercise of the option to purchadditional shares granted to the
underwriters. All of the shares sold in the offgrimere sold by existing stockholders of the Compamgiuding entities affiliated with Summit
Partners, L.P., and the Company's chief execufifieeo, Robert J. Pera. No shares were sold byCiiapany in the offering, and as such, the
Company did not receive any proceeds from the ioffier

The Company operates on a fiscal year ending Jonk 3hese notes, Ubiquiti refers to the fiscadngeended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011
fiscal 2013 , fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 , respety.

Basis of Presentation— The Companys consolidated financial statements and accompgmgies are prepared in accordance with accot
principles generally accepted in the United Stafedmerica (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of dbiti and its wholly owned subsidiaries.
The Company has wholly owned subsidiaries in Lithaa@and Hong Kong. The Company’s Hong Kong subsjdidgso operates a branch office
in Taiwan. All intercompany transactions and batmicave been eliminated.

NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires management to make estimabesjudgments that affect the repol
amounts of assets and liabilities and the discsiicontingent assets and liabilities at the datae financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the negqririod. On an ongoing basis, the Company eweduthese estimates, including those
related to allowance for doubtful accounts, invept@luation, warranty costs, stock-based comp@rsahcome taxes, and commitments and
contingencies, among others. The Company bas@satst on historical experience and on various @ksumptions that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual resaysdiffer from these estimates.

Segment:

Management has determined that it operates asepoetable and operating segment as it only refiimascial information on an aggregate
consolidated basis to its chief executive offizenp is the Company’s chief operating decision ma&ee Note 13.

Recognition of Revenue

Revenues consist primarily of revenues from the eéhardware and management tools, as well aethted implied post contract customer
support (“PCS”)The Company recognizes revenues when persuasidersd of an arrangement exists, delivery has cedutine sales price
fixed or determinable and the collectability of tiesulting receivable is reasonably assured. laxadere the Company lacks evidence that
collectability of the resulting receivable is reaably assured, it defers recognition of revenud the receipt of cash. At June 30, 2013 and
2012, $3.2 million and $805,000 , respectivelyrenfenues were deferred. The related deferredofwstenues balance was $1.2 million as of
June 30, 2013 .

For the Company'’s sales, evidence of the arrangecoesists of an order from a customer. The Compgamgiders delivery to have occurred
once its products have been shipped and title iskadf loss have been transferred. For the Comassfes,
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these criteria are met at the time the productsransferred to the customer. The Company’s arraegés with customers do not include
provisions for cancellation, returns, inventory pwar refunds that would significantly impact rexizgd revenues.

The Company records amounts billed to distributorshipping and handling costs as revenues. Thep@ay classifies shipping and handling
costs incurred by it as cost of revenues.

Deposit payments received from distributors in abeaof recognition of revenues are included inenrfiabilities on the Company’s balance
sheet and are recognized as revenues when allitbeacfor recognition of revenues are met.

The Company’s multi-element arrangements geneiradlyde two deliverables. The first deliverablétie hardware and software essential to
the functionality of the hardware device deliveaedhe time of sale. The second deliverable igrtipied right to PCS included with the
purchase of certain products. PCS is this rigmeteive, on a when and if available basis, futurgpecified software upgrades and features
relating to the product’s essential software ad agbug fixes, email and telephone support.

The Company uses a hierarchy to determine theaditotof revenues to the deliverables. The hiesarglas follows: (i) vendor-specific
objective evidence of fair value (“VSOE"), (ii) thi-party evidence of selling price (“TPE"), and)(bhest estimate of the selling price
("BESP”).
(i) VSOE generally exists only when a companyssiile deliverable separately and is the price Hgtolaarged by the company for that
deliverable. Generally the Company does not selldtliverables separately and, as such, does net\ffaOE.
(i) TPE can be substantiated by determining theegthat other parties sell similar or substahtiaimilar offerings. The Company does not
believe that there is accessible TPE evidenceifiuifes deliverables.
(iiiy BESP reflects the Company'’s best estimates of wigaselling prices of elements would be if theyeveold regularly on a stand-alone
basis. The Company believes that BESP is the nppsbpriate methodology for determining the allogatof revenue among the
multiple elements.

The Company has allocated revenues between thesgetiverables using the relative selling price metwhich is based on the estimated
selling price for all deliverables. Revenues altedao the delivered hardware and the related &atenftware are recognized at the time of
sale provided the other conditions for recognitidmevenues have been met. Revenues allocated Q% are deferred and recognized on a
straight-line basis over the estimated life of eafcthese devices, which currently is two years Jéne 30, 2013, $1.0 million of revenue was
deferred in this way, of which $691,000 was clasdifis a current liability on the Company's balastueet with the remainder classified as a
long-term liability. At June 30, 2012 , $805,000refenue was deferred in this way as a curreniitiabAll cost of revenues, including
estimated warranty costs, are recognized at the ¢ihsale. Costs for research and developmentalad and marketing are expensed as
incurred. If the estimated life of the hardwaredarat should change, the future rate of amortizadiotie revenues allocated to PCS would als
change.

The Company’s process for determining BESP fovéedibles involves multiple factors that may varpeteding upon the unique facts and
circumstances related to each deliverable. For B&SCompany believes its network operators andaeproviders would be reluctant to pay
for such services separately. This view is prinydvdsed on the fact that unspecified upgrade rigbtsot obligate the Company to provide
upgrades at a particular time or at all, and dospetify to network operators and service provigdriEh upgrades or features will be delive
The Company believes that the relatively low priokis products and its network operators’ andriserproviders’ price sensitivity would add
to their reluctance to pay for PCS. Therefore,Gbenpany has concluded that if it were to sell P@% standalone basis, the selling price
would be relatively low.

Key factors considered by the Company in developfiegBESP for PCS include reviewing the activitéspecific employees engaged in
support and software development to determine iin@uat of time that is allocated to the developn@#rihe undelivered elements, determin
the cost of this development effort, and then agl@din appropriate level of gross profit to thesdscos

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers investments purchased withtarity period of three months or less at the dafgurchase to be cash equivalents. As
of June 30, 2013 and 2012 , the Company had cakhamh equivalents of $227.8 million and $122.1iomil, respectively. Cash and cash
equivalents are stated at cost which approximatesélue. The Company deposits cash and casha&guaie with financial institutions that
management believes are of high credit quality. Chepany’s cash and cash equivalents consist ghintdrcash deposited in U.S. dollar
denominated inter-bearing deposit accounts.
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Concentration of Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@npany to concentrations of credit risk consistash and cash equivalents and accounts
receivable. The Company primarily places its terapprash investments in interest-bearing depositwats with high credit quality financial
institutions. Deposits of cash outside the Unit&ates totaled $210.4 million and $102.8 milliordahe 30, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

The Company derives its accounts receivable fraramees earned from customers located worldwide Qdrapany bases credit decisions
primarily upon a customer’s past credit historyeT®ompany’s standard credit terms are net 30 wa§8.

The Company subcontracts with other companies twifaature most of its products. The Company radieghe ability of these contract
manufacturers to produce the products sold toistsiblutors and original equipment manufacture@HEMs”). A significant portion of the
Company’s products are manufactured by a few contnanufacturers. If the Company’s contract martufeecs were to lose production
capabilities, the Company would experience delaygeiivering products to its distributors and OENMke Company does not maintain long-
term agreements with its contract manufacturersciwbould lead to an inability of the Company tdaib its products in a timely fashion at
prices consistent with those previously charged.

Inventory

Inventories consist primarily of finished goodsdato a lesser extent, raw materials that the Compansigns to its contract manufactures.
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or rtavklue on a first-in, first-out basis. The Compaeduces the value of its inventory for
estimated obsolescence or lack of marketabilityhieydifference between the cost of the affecteéntary and the estimated market value and
establishes a new cost basis.

Deferred Cost of Revenue

Deferred cost of revenues consist of the cost@dpet shipped to distributors for which the rigatsl obligations of ownership have passed to
the distributor but revenues have not yet beengmized primarily because the collectability criberifor revenue recognition has not been
fulfilled. The Company classifies these amountdeferred cost of revenues. All deferred costs vémees are stated at cost. The Company
periodically assesses the recoverability of deteomst of revenues and writes down the deferretlafagvenues balances to establish a new
cost basis when recovery of deferred cost of regsminot reasonably assured. The Company evalustegerability based on various factors
including the length of time the product has beeld lat the distributor’s site and the financialbiidy of the distributor.

Product Warranties

The Company offers warranties on certain prodygaegrally for a period of one year , and recortistality for the estimated future costs
associated with potential warranty claims. The aaty costs are reflected in the Company’s conswitlatatement of operations and
comprehensive income within cost of revenues. Tagamties are typically in effect for 12 monthsnfr¢he distributor’s purchase date of the
product. The Company’s estimate of future warramists is largely based on historical experienctfadncluding product failure rates,
material usage, and service delivery cost incuimembrrecting product failures. In certain circuargtes, the Company may have recourse fror
its contract manufacturers for replacement costedéctive products, which it also factors intovitarranty liability assessment.

Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stc

On October 19, 2011, the Company'’s outstandingeS&ipreferred stock converted to common stock idiately prior to the closing of the
Companys initial public offering and no additional accmatiwas recorded. Prior to the conversion, uporsikth anniversary of the issuance
Series A preferred stock, the holders of Serieseffigored stock could require the Company to redsech preferred stock out of legally
available funds at the greater of (i) the LiquidatiValue of $2.95 per share plus all accrued amaigndividends or (ii) the market price of the
common stock issuable upon conversion of each sif&eries A preferred stock into common stockspli accrued and unpaid dividends.
Since the maximum redemption amount was contingerthe fair value of the equity security at theemagtion date, the Company calculated
the accretion based on the fair value as of thental sheet date prorated over the contractualllife.Company recorded $111.5 million and
$37.7 million of accretion in fiscal 2012 and 20#dspectively. Subsequent to the conversion imntelgtiarior to the closing of the Compasy’
initial public offering, no additional accretion$ibeen recorded.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company records an allowance for doubtful antofor estimated probable losses on uncollecibtmunts receivable. In estimating the
allowance, management considers, among other fa¢tpthe aging of the accounts receivable, (i® €Company’s historical write offs, (iii) the
credit worthiness of each distributor based on gaytrhistory and (iv) general
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economic conditions. In cases where the Compaawé#se of circumstances that may impair a specifittidutor’s ability to meet its
obligations to the Company, the Company recordseaific allowance against amounts due from theitligor, and thereby reduces the net
recognized receivable to the amounts it reasonaddigves will be collected.

The allowance for doubtful accounts activity wagalews (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011
Beginning balance $ 1,266 $ 50¢ $ 80C
Charged to or released from expenses 1,09¢ 81t (200
Bad debt write-offs (162) (14%) 4
Ending Balance $ 2200 $ 1,266 $ 59¢

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s cash equivalestcounts receivable, accounts payable and otinemnt liabilities approximate fair value
due to their short maturities. The fair value af tbompany's cash equivalents and debt are discio$¢ate 3.

Long Lived Asset:

The Company evaluates its long lived assets inatugroperty and equipment for impairment whenevents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of these assetsmabe recoverable. An impairment loss is recogghiwhen the net book value of such asset
exceeds the estimated future undiscounted casls tttibutable to the assets or asset group. laimpent is indicated, the asset is written
down to its estimated fair value. The Company ditirecognize any impairment losses for fiscal 202812 and 2011 .

Property and Equipmen

Furniture, fixtures and equipment are recordedat.cThe Company computes depreciation or amaidizaising the straight line method over
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Estimated Useful Life

Testing equipment 3to 5 years

Computer and other equipment 3to 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 3 years

Leasehold improvements shorter of lease term or useful |

Upon retirement or disposition, the asset costratated accumulated depreciation are removed wighgain or loss recognized in the
statement of operations. Expenditures for mainte@amd repairs are charged to operations as imturre

Depreciation expense was $1.8 million , $602,000$21.3,000 for fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , rethypely.

Intangible Asset:

The Company’s intangible assets consist primafilegal costs associated with application for aggistration of the Company’s patents and
trademarks. The Company amortizes all acquisitedated intangible assets that are subject to apabidin over the estimated useful life based
on economic benefit, which ranges from 5 to 10 year

Leases

The Company leases its facilities under cancelabtenoncancelable operating leases. For leasesahi#in rent escalation or rent concess
provisions, the Company records the total rent egpaluring the lease term on a straight line liags the term of the lease. The Company
records the difference between the rent paid aadtitaight line rent as a deferred rent liabilitthe accompanying consolidated balance st
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Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeaccounting guidance which requires recognitd deferred tax assets and liabilit
for the expected future tax consequences of evkat$ave been included in its financial statementsix returns. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are determined based on the temporé#fgrénce between the financial statement carrgingunts of existing assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax aasetfiabilities are measured using enacted ta@sraxpected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are eepleto be recovered or settled. The Company ésftiisl valuation allowances wh
necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to theruih@xpects to realize. The assessment of whetheot a valuation allowance is required
often requires significant judgment including cutreperating results, the forecast of future tagahtome and ongoing prudent and feasible
tax planning initiatives. In addition, the Compasgalculation of its tax liabilities involves deadi with uncertainties in the application of
complex tax regulations. The Company may be suljeicicome tax audits in all of the jurisdictiomswhich it operates and, as a result, must
also assess exposures to any potential issuesgafiein current or future audits of current andpyiears’ tax returns. Accordingly, the
Company must assess such potential exposures et wecessary, provide a reserve to cover anycegss. To the extent that the
Company establishes a reserve, its provision f@orite taxes would be increased. If the Company atgfg determines that payment of these
amounts is unnecessary, it reverses the liabilityr@cognizes a tax benefit during the period iictvit determines that the liability is no lon
necessary. The Company records an additional claitgeprovision for taxes in the period in whithiletermines that tax liability is greater
than its original estimate.

Stoclk-based Compensation

The Company records stock-based awards at faie\adwof the grant date and recognizes expensdyratab straight-line basis over the
requisite service period, which is generally thetivgy term of the awards. The Company estimatefaih@alue of stock option awards on the
grant date using the Black-Scholes option priciragiel. Restricted stock units (“RSUs”) are valueddahon the fair value of the Company’s
common stock on the date of grant.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model used to meiee the fair value of the Company’s stock optvards requires a number of estimates
and assumptions. In valuing share-based awards timeléair value accounting method, significantgotent is required in determining the
expected volatility of the Company’s common stooll ¢he expected term individuals will hold theiastbased awards prior to exercising.
The expected volatility of the Company’s commorcktis based on the volatility of a group of comeacompanies, as the Company does
not have sufficient historical data with regards$he volatility of its stock. The expected termopftions granted represents the period of time
that the Company expects the options granted twistanding. The Company calculates the expectatdds the average of the option vesting
and contractual terms. In the future, as the Compains sufficient historical data for volatility its common stock and the actual term for
which its options are held, the expected volat#ihd expected term may change, which could sulisligrthange the grant date fair value of
future awards of stock options and ultimately thpense it records. In addition, the estimationtotls awards that will ultimately vest requires
judgment and to the extent actual results diffemfithe Compar’s estimates, these amounts will be recorded aslprstment in the period
estimates are revised.

For stock option awards granted to nonemployeeshandmployee directors, the fair value of the stmgtion awards is estimated using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model. This modelingis the estimated fair value of the Company’s dgilg) common stock at each
measurement date, the contractual term of the mpthe expected volatility of the price of the Canp’s common stock, risk free interest re
and expected dividend yields of the Company’s comstock.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company periodically evaluates all pendinchoedtened contingencies and any commitments, ifthay are reasonably likely to have a
material adverse effect on its results of operatidéinancial position or cash flows. The Compargeases the probability of an adverse outc
and determines if it is remote, reasonably possiblerobable. If information available prior to tissuance of the Company’s financial
statements indicates that it is probable that aatdsad been impaired or a liability had been ireziat the date of the Company’s financial
statements, and the amount of the loss, or theerahgrobable loss can be reasonably estimated,siheh loss is accrued and charged to
operating expenses. If no accrual is made for @adostingency because one or both of the condifoinsuant to the accounting guidance are
not met, but the probability of an adverse outcisret least reasonably possible, the Company disslthe nature of the contingency and
provides an estimate of the possible loss or rafidess, or states that such an estimate cannotdake.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Company and its &liasges is the U.S. dollar. For foreign operatigiegal currency denominated assets and
liabilities are remeasured at the period end exgbaates, and revenues, costs and expenses are
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remeasured at the average exchange rates durifigeakyear. Foreign exchange gains and losses baen immaterial to the Company’s
results of operations to date.

Other Comprehensive Income

In accordance with the guidance in the Financialodmting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Stadd2odification ("ASC") 220-10, an
entity has the option to present the total of cahpnsive income, the components of net incomettedomponents of other comprehensive
income either in a single continuous statemenbaffrehensive income or in two separate but conisecstiatements. In both choices, an el
is required to present each component of net incaloregg with total net income, each component oéottomprehensive income along with a
total for other comprehensive income, and a tata@uant for comprehensive income. Given that the Camyhas no items of other
comprehensive income in any period presented, celngmsive income is the same as net income and tem@ompany is exempt from the
requirement to separately report other compreheristome or comprehensive income.

Deferred Offering Cost:

Deferred offering costs, consisting of legal, acttng and other fees and costs relating to the Gayig initial public offering were
capitalized. Deferred offering costs of $3.1 milliwere offset against initial public offering proceagbon the closing of the offering in Octo
2011.

Research and Development Costs and Capitalizedvgo® Development Cos

Research and development expenses consist prinbdsbiary and benefit expenses, including stodetdaompensation, for employees and
contractors engaged in research, design and dewelupactivities, as well as costs for prototypesilities and travel costs.

Software development costs, including costs incutoepurchase third party software, begin to betakped when the Company has
determined that certain factors are present, ifefycimong others, that technology exists to achthe performance requirements. The
accumulation of software costs to be capitalizextee when the software is substantially developddsaready for its intended use.
Capitalized costs are amortized on a straightbimss over the estimated useful life of the sofea@nce it is available for use. To date, the
Company has not capitalized research and develdprosts associated with software development adugts and enhancements have reache
technological feasibility and have been releasexligtomers at substantially the same time.

Earnings Per Share

The Company applies the two-class method for catimg and presenting earnings per share (“EPS"jledthe two-class method, net income
is allocated between shares of common stock arat ptrticipating securities based on their paréiting rights. Participating securities are
defined as securities that participate in dividewith common stock according to a pre-determingthtda or a contractual obligation to share
in the income of the entity. Basic EPS is computedlividing net income available to common stockleos by the weighted average numb
shares of common stock outstanding during the gebBduted EPS is computed by dividing the amoumet income available to common
stockholders outstanding plus income allocableattigipating securities, to the extent they aretdie, by the weighted average number of
shares of common stock and potential dilutive shatdstanding during the period if the effect isitilie. The Company’s potentially dilutive
common securities include outstanding stock opticestricted stock units and preferred stock.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In July 2013, the FASB issued a new accountingdstachupdate on the financial statement presentafiomrecognized tax benefits. The new
guidance provides that a liability related to amewognized tax benefit would be presented as actiethuof a deferred tax asset for a new
operating loss carryforward, a similar tax lossdax credit carryforward if such settlement isuieed or expected in the event the uncertair
position is disallowed. The new guidance will beeoeffective for the Company on July 1, 2014 arshduld be applied prospectively to
unrecognized tax benefits that exist as of thectffe date with retrospective application permitt€de Company is currently assessing the
impact of this new guidance.

NOTE 3—FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Pursuant to the accounting guidance for fair vahgasurements and its subsequent updates, fair igadiedined as the price that would be
received from selling an asset or paid to transfibility in an orderly transaction between manbarticipants at the measurement date. As
such, fair value is a market-based measuremensitioaild be determined based on assumptions th&etqzarticipants would use in pricing an
asset or liability. The accounting guidance esshlgls a three-tier fair value hierarchy that reguihe Company to use observable market data
when available, and to minimize the use of unoledges
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inputs when determining fair value. The fair vahierarchy prioritizes the inputs into three levitlat may be used in measuring fair value as
follows:

Level 1—observable inputs which include quoted pricesctiva markets for identical assets of liabilities.

Level 2—inputs which include observable inputs other thawel 1, such as quoted prices for similar asselisloilities, quoted prices for
identical or similar assets or liabilities in matkéhat are not active, or other inputs that aeolmble or can be corroborated by observable
market data for substantially the full term of tsset or liability.

Level 3—inputs which include unobservable inputs thatsangported by little or no market activity and the significant to the fair value of
the underlying asset or liability. Level 3 assetd abilities include those whose fair value measuents are determined using pricing models
discounted cash flow methodologies or similar viduatechniques, as well as significant managerjusigment or estimation.

The Company did not have any financial assets decbat fair value at June 30, 2013 or 2012 . ARGy 2013 and 2012 the Company had
debt associated with its Loan and Security Agreeémith East West Bank (See Note 7). The fair valtithe Company’s debt was estimated
based on the current rates offered to the Compamgebt with similar terms and remaining maturitiesl was Level 2 measurement.

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012 , the fair value hodrafor the Company’s financial liabilities wasfafiows (in thousands):

June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012
Fair Fair
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Liabilities:
Debt® $ 76,12¢ % — $ 76,12¢ % — $ 2959 % — $ 2959 % —

(1) Debt is carried at historical cost on the Cony@consolidated balance sheet.

NOTE 4—EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per share for the periatisated (in thousands, except per share
data):

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011

Numerator:
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhddeasic $ 80,49( $ (9,842) $ 4,87¢
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhaailuted $ 80,49( $ (9,842 $ 4,97¢
Denominator:
Weighted-average shares used in computing basiacmne (loss) per shart 88,31« 83,46( 63,09:
Add—dilutive potential common shares:

Stock options 1,80: — 3,68(

Restricted stock units 14z — 13t
Weighted-average shares used in computing dilutéihoome (loss) per
share 90,25¢ 83,46( 66,90°
Net income (loss) per share of common stock:

Basic $ 091 % (0.12) $ 0.0¢

Diluted $ 08¢ $ (0.12) $ 0.07

The following table summarizes the total poterdizres of common stock that were excluded frondilaéed per share calculation, because f
include them would have been anti-dilutive for gfregiod (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011
Stock options 65€ 3,34¢ 36C
Restricted stock units 364 454 10C
Convertible preferred stock — — 36,03t
1,02 3,80z 36,49¢
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NOTE 5—BALANCE SHEET COMPONENTS
Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following (in thousand

June 30,
2013 2012
Finished goods $ 15,61¢ $ 3,06¢
Raw materials 262 4,66¢
$ 15,88( $ 7,73¢
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Ass
Prepaid expenses and other current assets consfdteglfollowing (in thousands):
June 30,
2013 2012
Non-trade receivables $ 2,20 $ 1,01¢
Other current assets 94¢ 55¢
$ 3,151 $ 1,571
Property and Equipment, Ne
Property and equipment, net consisted of the fatigwin thousands):
June 30,
2013 2012
Testing equipment $ 3,30¢ % 2,29¢
Computer and other equipment 841 57¢
Tooling equipment 1,735 532
Furniture and fixtures 652 59t
Leasehold improvements 1,85¢ 1,42¢
Software 24t 77
8,64: 5,49¢
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,66€) (1,02¢)
$ 597¢ $ 4,471
Other Long-term Assets
Other long-term assets consisted of the followingi{ousands):
June 30,
2013 2012
Intangible assets, net $ 1,02¢ $ 74¢
Long-term deferred cost of revenues 1,18¢ —
Other long-term assets 672 38¢
$ 2,88¢ $ 1,13¢

The Company's intangible assets consist primafilggal costs associated with the application fud eegistration of the Company’s patents
and trademarks. The Company recorded $200,000 oftemation of intangible assets during fiscal 2@t@l the balance of accumulated
amortization was $200,000 at June 30, 2013 . Thagany did not record any amortization of intangidsets during fiscal 2012 . As of
June 30, 2013, the Company cannot reasonably astifmture amortization expense by year due tortaiogtiming of patent and trademark
registrations; however, the Company expects to tredthe remaining balance of its intangible aseets their estimated useful lives.
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Other Current Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consisted of the following (inousands):

June 30,
2013 2012
Accrued compensation and benefits $ 2,712 % 2,651
Accrued accounts payable 323 6,63¢
Accrual for an export compliance matter 1,62¢ 1,62t
Warranty accrual 2,91¢ 1,381
Other accruals 3,57 4,73:
$ 11,15 % 17,03:

NOTE 6—ACCRUED WARRANTY

The Company offers warranties on certain prodggaegrally for a period of one year , and recortiatality for the estimated future costs
associated with potential warranty claims. The waty costs are reflected in the Company’s consiitiatatement of operations and
comprehensive income within cost of revenues. Thgamties are typically in effect for 12 monthsnfrthe distributor’s purchase date of the
product. The Company'’s estimate of future warrausts is largely based on historical experiencefadncluding product failure rates,
material usage, and service delivery cost incuimembrrecting product failures. In certain circuargtes, the Company may have recourse fror
its contract manufacturers for replacement costedéctive products, which it also factors intovitsrranty liability assessment.

Warranty obligations, included in other currenbliies, were as follows (in thousands):

Balance at June 30, 2011 $ 80€
Accruals for warranties issued during the period 1,89t
Settlements made during the period (1,320

Balance at June 30, 2012 1,381
Accruals for warranties issued during the period 4,07¢
Settlements made during the period (2,547%)

Balance at June 30, 2013 $ 2,91

NOTE 7—DEBT

In July 2011, the Company repurchased an aggreddt2,041,700 shares of the Company’s Series Aediie preferred stock from entities
affiliated with Summit Partners, L.P., one of then@pany’s major stockholders, at a price of $8.97spare for an aggregate consideration of
$108.0 million . Of the aggregate purchase prid®,& millionwas paid in cash at the time of closing and tharia of the shares were paid
through the issuance of convertible subordinatednssory notes in the aggregate principal amou®68t0 million . On September 15, 2011,
$34.0 million was paid against the notes and weanited through the Company's EWB Loan Agreemerfu(tter described below) reducing
the aggregate principal amount outstanding to $84llibn . The remainder of the notes were retire@ctober 2011 with the proceeds of the
Company’s initial public offering and existing cas@lances. The interest rate on the notes start&¥h aper annum and increased by two
percentage points every three months until it waalde reached 9% in January 2012. The notes wepayable without penalty prior to

April 21, 2012, and were required to be paid inglkient of the Compang'initial public offering or third party financingyior to April 21, 2012
The notes mature on July 21, 2021. The unpaid jp@hon the notes was convertible into shares oES&\ preferred stock at $8.97 per share
at any point after July 21, 2012. The differenceMeen the repurchase price and the carrying vdltieearepurchased preferred stock on
June 30, 2011 was $59.0 million . The differencs debited to available retained earnings with &@meaining amount debited to additional
paiddin capital and reduced the net income attributédlEommon stock shareholders resulting in a redonadf basic and diluted net income
share.

On September 15, 2011, the Company entered inttaa nd Security Agreement with East West Bank, {#WB Loan Agreement”), which
was replaced by the Loan Agreement as discussedb&he credit facilities available under the EW8&aln Agreement consist of a $35.0
million term loan facility and a $5.0 million rewahg line of credit facility. The term loan matures September 15, 2016 with principal and
interest to be repaid in 60 monthly installmentse Tompany used $34.0 million of the term loarefmay a portion of the outstanding
convertible subordinated promissory notes heldriities affiliated with Summit Partners, L.P leayiil.0 million available for borrowing
under the term loan facility.
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On August 7, 2012, the Company entered into a lasahSecurity Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) witls. Bank, as syndication agent,
and East West Bank, as administrative agent foletheéers party to the Loan Agreement. The Loan Agrent replaced the EWB Loan
Agreement discussed above. The Loan Agreementgesyor (i) a $50.0 million revolving credit fa¢ylj with a $5.0 million sublimit for the
issuance of letters of credit and a $5.0 millioblsnit for the making of swingline loan advancdsgt'Revolving Credit Facility”), and (ii) a
$50.0 million term loan facility (the “Term Loan €ility”). The Company may request borrowings untler Revolving Credit Facility until
August 7, 2015. On August 7, 2012, the Companydyeed $20.8 million under the Term Loan Facilitydaroborrowings remain available 1
borrowing thereunder. On November 21, 2012, the @om borrowed $10.0 million under the Revolving @r&acility. On December 20,
2012, the Company borrowed an additional $20.0anilunder the Revolving Credit Facility, and $2tlion remains available for
borrowing thereunder.

The loans bear interest, at the Company’s optibtheabase rate plus a spread of 1.25% to 1.758f adjusted LIBOR rate (at the Company’s
election, for a period of 30, 60, or 90 days)phuspread of 2.25% to 2.75% , in each case with spread being determined based on the de
service coverage ratio for its most recently erfilezhl quarter. The base rate is the highest d&dpt West Bank’s prime rate, (ii) the federal
funds rate plus a margin equal to 0.50% , or i@ LIBOR rate plus a margin equal to 1.00% . ThenBany is also obligated to pay other
customary closing fees, arrangement fees, adnatimtr fees, commitment fees and letter of credisflor a credit facility of this size and type.

Interest is due and payable monthly in arrearhéncise of loans bearing interest at the basandtat the end of an interest period in the case
of loans bearing interest at the adjusted LIBOR.rBtincipal payments under the Term Loan Faailitiybe made in quarterly installments on
the first day of each calendar quarter, and each quarterly installment shall be equal to $1.28iom through July 1, 2014, then equal to
$1.875 million from October 1, 2014 through Julgd15, and then equal to $2.5 million from Octobe2d15 through July 1, 2017, with the
remaining outstanding principal balance and altaed and unpaid interest due on August 7, 2017odttanding loans under the Revolving
Credit Facility, together with all accrued and uidpaterest, are due on August 7, 2015.

The Company may prepay the loans, in whole or i paany time without premium or penalty, subjectertain conditions including
minimum amounts and reimbursement of certain dostse case of prepayments of LIBOR loans. In agidjtthe Company is required to
prepay the loan under the Term Loan Facility withiie proceeds from certain financing transactionasset sales (subject, in the case of ass
sales, to reinvestment rights) and (ii) 25.0% ef @ompany’s excess cash flow in the U.S., as dé@tedrafter each fiscal year and in
accordance with the Loan Agreement, provided theiGompany shall not be required to prepay the dnarf its excess cash flow if its
leverage ratio is greater than 1.50 : 1.00 ondkeday of such fiscal year.

All of the obligations of the Company under the hasgreement are collateralized by substantiallyoAthe Company’s assets, including all of
the capital stock of the Company’s future domestiissidiaries and 65% of the capital stock of then@any’s existing and future foreign
subsidiaries, but excluding the Company’s intellatproperty, which is subject to a negative pledgeeement. All of the Company’s future
domestic subsidiaries are required to guarantylitigations under the Loan Agreement. Such guaearity future subsidiaries will be
collateralized by substantially all of the propesfysuch subsidiaries, excluding intellectual prtype

The Loan Agreement contains customary affirmative megative covenants, including covenants that bnrestrict the Company and its
subsidiaries’ ability to, among other things, inudebtedness, grant liens, merge or consolidégppde of assets, pay dividends or make
distributions, make investments, make acquisitipnspay certain indebtedness, change the natite lmfisiness, enter into certain transaction:
with affiliates, enter into restrictive agreemerasd make capital expenditures, in each case gubjeastomary exceptions for a credit facility
of this size and type. The Company is also requivedaintain a minimum debt service coverage ratimaximum leverage ratio, and a
minimum liquidity ratio. As of June 30, 2013, tBempany was in compliance with all affirmative arabative covenants, debt service
coverage ratio, leverage ratio and liquidity ragquirements.

The Loan Agreement includes customary events afudethat, include among other things, defaultstiierfailure to timely pay principal,
interest, or other amounts due, defaults due tanhecuracy of representations and warranties, @viedefaults, a cross default to material
indebtedness, bankruptcy and insolvency defaultderial judgment defaults, defaults due to the forerability of a guaranty, and defaults
due to circumstances that have or could reasormbxpected to have a material adverse effect@@tmpany's business, operations or
financial condition, its ability to pay or perforumder the Loan Agreement, or on the lenders' sgaaterests. The occurrence of an event of
default could result in the acceleration of thagdtions under the Loan Agreement. During the eris¢ of an event of default, interest on the
obligations under the Loan Agreement could be imseed by 2.00% above the otherwise applicable istteate.
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During the fiscal years 2013 and 2012 , the Compaagie aggregate payments of $4.3 million and $3llibm, respectively, against the loan
balance. As of June 30, 2013, the Company hasifitas$5.0 million and $71.1 million in short-teramd long-term debt, respectively, on its
consolidated balance sheet related to the Loanehgeet.

The following table summarizes our estimated debitiaterest payment obligations as of June 30, Zblthousands):

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter Total
Debt payment obligations $ 5,00 $ 6,878 $ 39,37t $ 10,00 $ 15,000 $ — $ 76,25(
Interest payments on debt
payment obligations 1,85¢ 1,72 1,04z 532 12t — 5,281
Total $ 6,85¢ $ 859¢ $ 40417 $ 10,537 $ 15,12 $ — $ 81,53

NOTE 8—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating Leases

Certain facilities and equipment are leased undacancelable operating leases. The Company geneeslk taxes, insurance and mainten:
costs on leased facilities and equipment. The Compeases office space in San Jose, Californiaotimel locations under various non-
cancelable operating leases that expire at vadates through 2018 .

In July 2011, the Company entered into an agreetodetise additional office space for its reseath development offices in Taiwan. The
lease term is from July 14, 2011 through July TH,&. The premises consist of approximately 10j@d8able square feet of space. The lease
has been categorized as an operating lease, atatdhestimated rent expense to be recognized.&illion .

In December 2011, the Company entered into an aggeeto lease approximately 64,512 square feeffisecand research and development
space located in San Jose, California, which tha@2my uses as its corporate headquarters. Thetlrasés from April 1, 2012 , through July
31, 2017 . The lease has been categorized as agtiogdease, and the total estimated rent expnle recognized is $4.9 million .

At June 30, 2013, future minimum annual paymenteun operating leases are as follows (in thousands)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter Total
Operating leases $ 174 $ 167¢ $ 163t $ 1128 $ 94 $ — % 6,282

Rent expense under operating leases was $1.7 mjlfi¢.6 million and $751,000 for fiscal 2013 c52012 and fiscal 2011 , respectively.

Purchase Commitment

The Company subcontracts with other companies twufaature its products. During the normal coursbusfiness, the Company’s contract
manufacturers procure components based upon gtdaed by the Company. If the Company cancelsrglbaot of the orders, it may still be
liable to the contract manufacturers for the céshe components purchased by them to manufadter€obmpany’s products. The Company
periodically reviews the potential liability and date no significant accruals have been recorded.Jompanys consolidated financial positi
and results of operations could be negatively irtgzhif it were required to compensate the contmaaufacturers for any liabilities incurred.

Indemnification Obligations

The Company enters into standard indemnificatioe@ments with many of its business partners irotb@ary course of business. These
agreements include provisions for indemnifying blisiness partner against any claim brought byrd trarty to the extent any such claim
alleges that a Ubiquiti product infringes a pateopyright or trademark, or violates any other pietary rights of that third party. The
maximum potential amount of future payments the Gamy could be required to make under these indératidn agreements is not estimable
and the Company has not incurred any material ¢ostefend lawsuits or settle claims related ta¢h@demnification agreements to date.

Legal Matters

The Company may be involved, from time to timeaiwariety of claims, lawsuits, investigations, gmdceedings relating to contractual
disputes, intellectual property rights, employmematiters, regulatory compliance matters and othigation
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matters relating to various claims that arise artbrmal course of business. The Company determihether an estimated loss from a
contingency should be accrued by assessing whatless is deemed probable and can be reasonalmhatst. The Company assesses its
potential liability by analyzing specific litigatioand regulatory matters using available infornmatithe Company develops its views on
estimated losses in consultation with inside artdida counsel, which involves a subjective analg$igotential results and outcomes,
assuming various combinations of appropriate litayaand settlement strategies. Taking all of theva factors into account, the Company
records an amount where it is probable that the 2oy will incur a loss and where that loss candasonably estimated. However, the
Company’s estimates may be incorrect and the Coyngaumld ultimately incur more or less than the anteunitially recorded. Litigation can
be costly, diverting management’s attention andd;arpon resolution, have a material adverse etiadhe Company’s business, results of
operations, financial condition, and cash flowse TBompany may also incur significant legal feesctvlare expensed as incurred, in defen
against these claims.

Export Compliance Matter:

In January 2011, the U.S. Commerce Department,aBuoé Industry and Security’s (“BIS”) Office of Eap Enforcement (“OEE”) contacted
the Company to request that the Company providermdtion related to its relationship with a logistcompany in the United Arab Emirates
(“UAE") and with a company in Iran, as well as infation on the export classification of its produds a result of this inquiry the Company,
assisted by outside counsel, conducted a revigheo€ompany's export transactions from 2008 thrddgich 2011 to not only gather
information responsive to the OEE's request but tigeview the Company's overall compliance withat control and sanctions laws. The
Company believes its products have been sold ratohy third parties. The Company does not belthaeit directly sold, exported or shipped
its products into Iran or any other country subjec U.S. embargo. However, until early 2010,Gloenpany did not prohibit its distributors
from selling its products into Iran or any otheuntry subject to a U.S. embargo. In the courséisfreview the Company identified that two
distributors may have sold the Company's produnttslran. The Company's review also found that evliihad obtained required Commodity
Classification Rulings for its products in June @@&hd November 2010, the Company did not advisghifging personnel to change the ex
authorizations used on its shipping documents &etilruary 2011. During the course of the Compaxp®rt control review, the Company &
determined that it had failed to maintain adequaterds for the five year period required by theRE#nd the sanctions regulations due to its
lack of infrastructure and because it was pridtgdransition to its current system of record, Slete.

In May 2011, the Company filed a self-disclosuatesthent with the BIS and OEE. In June 2011, the iy filed a self-disclosure statement
with the U.S. Department of the Treasury’s Offiéd-oreign Asset Control (“OFAC”) regarding the cdimpce issues noted above. The
disclosures address the above described findindish@nremedial actions the Company had taken ® tdwever, the findings also indicate
that both distributors continued to sell, direaihyindirectly, the Company’s products into Iranidgrthe period from February 2010 through
March 2011 and that the Company received variousnmonications from them indicating that they weratguiing to do so. Since January
2011, the Company has cooperated with OEE and, forits disclosure filing, the Company informadiijared with the OEE the substance ¢
findings with respect to both distributors. Fromyv2011 to August 2011, the Company provided add#ianformation regarding its review
and its findings to OEE to facilitate its investiga and OEE advised the Company in August 2011lithead completed its investigation of the
Company. In August 2011, the Company received awwgretter from OEE stating that OEE had not neféithe findings of the Company’s
review for criminal or administrative prosecutiomdaclosed the investigation of the Company withmenalty.

OFAC is still reviewing the Company’s voluntary dissure. In the Company’s submission, the Compaayiged OFAC with an explanation
of the activities that led to the sales of its pretd in Iran and the failure to comply with the BrpAdministration Regulations (the “EAR&nd
OFAC sanctions. Although the Compas¥DFAC and OEE voluntary disclosures covered simsias of facts, which led the OEE to resolve
case with the issuance of a warning letter, OFA@ omaclude that the Company’s actions resultedatations of U.S. export control and
economic sanctions laws and warrant the imposiifqrenalties that could include fines, terminatidrthe Company’s ability to export its
products, and/or referral for criminal prosecuti®he penalties may be imposed against the Compaaipraits management. The maximum
civil monetary penalty for the violations is up3250,000 or twice the value of the transaction,civbver is greater, per violation. Any such
fines or restrictions may be material to the Conyfmfinancial results in the period in which theygamposed. The Company cannot predict
when OFAC will complete its review or decide upbe tmposition of possible penalties.

While the Company has taken actions designed torernbkat export classification information is distited to the appropriate personnel in a
timely manner and has adopted policies and proesdorpromote its compliance with applicable exposs and regulations, including
obtaining written distribution agreements with gabgally all of its distributors that contain caants requiring compliance with U.S. export
control and economic sanctions law; notifying dlits distributors of their obligations and obtaigiupdated distribution agreements from
distributors that accounted for approximately 990
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distributor revenue in fiscal 2013 . However therpany cannot be sure such actions will be effecthlitionally, the Company's failure to
amend all its distribution agreements and to imglermore robust compliance controls immediatelgrafie discovery of Iran-related sales
activity in early 2010 may be aggravating facttrsttcould impact the imposition of penalties imgbea the Company or its management.
Based on the facts known to the Company to dageCthmpany recorded an expense of $1.6 millionHisréxport compliance matter in fiscal
2010, which represents management'’s estimated esg@é&x fines in accordance with applicable accimgnliterature. This amount was
calculated from information discovered through @@mpany’s internal review and this loss is deenodukt probable and reasonably estimable
However, the Company also believes that it is nealsty possible that the loss may be higher, buCibpany cannot reasonably estimate the
range of any further potential losses. Should &fthl facts be discovered in the future and/or &haatual fines or other penalties substant
differ from the Company’s estimates, its businéissncial condition, cash flows and results of @iens would be materially negatively
impacted.

Shareholder Class Action Lawsui

Beginning on September 7, 2012, two shareholdssaation complaints were filed against the Compeestain of its officers and directors
and the underwriters of the Company's initial publifering in the United States District Court fbe Northern District of California. On
January 30, 2013, the plaintiffs filed an Amendexhéblidated Complaint, which alleges claims unterSecurities Act of 1933, the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and SEC Rule 10b-5 on beliafpurported class of those who purchased the @ogp common stock between
October 14, 2011 and August 9, 2012 and/or acqtive@ompany's stock pursuant to or traceablegodbistration statement for the initial
public offering. The Amended Consolidated Complaiifeges that the defendants violated the fede@lrities laws by issuing false or
misleading statements regarding the sale of cofgitt€ompany products. The consolidated complsétks, among other things, damages ar
interest, rescission, and attorneys' fees and.dostdlarch 26, 2013, the Company filed a motioditmiss the complaint. On April 30, 2013,
the plaintiffs filed an opposition to the Companyistion to dismiss. On August 27, 2013, the costftlla hearing on the motion to dismiss.

The Company believes that the allegations in tisalidated complaint are without merit and intemdigorously contest the litigation.
However, there can be no assurance that the Convpiilye successful in its defense. Because the isaat a very early stage, the Company
cannot say that a loss is probable and cannotrdiymreasonably estimate the loss or the rang®ss$iple losses that may be experienced in
connection with this litigation.

NOTE 9—PREFERRED STOCK

In July 2011, the Company repurchased an aggreddt2,041,700 shares of the Company’s Series Aediie preferred stock from entities
affiliated with Summit Partners, L.P., one of then@pany’s major stockholders, at a price of $8.97spare for an aggregate consideration of
$108.0 million . Of the aggregate purchase prid®,& millionwas paid in cash at the time of closing and tharza of the shares were paid
through the issuance of convertible subordinatedssory notes in the aggregate principal amou®68t0 million . The $68.0 million was
paid down primarily using proceeds from the EWB h@greement and the remaining balance was substygpan down by funds raised
upon the completion of the Company’s initial puldiering on October 19, 2011 and the Company’steg cash balances as discussed in
Note 7.

NOTE 10—COMMON STOCK AND TREASURY STOCK

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012 , the authorized &apithe Company included 500,000,000 shares wingcon stock. As of June 30, 2013,
131,452,763 shares of common stock were issue@82d3,803 were outstanding. As of June 30, 201,129,888 shares of common stock
were issued and 92,049,978 were outstanding.

Common Stock Repurchases

On August 9, 2012, the Company announced thatagsdof Directors authorized the Company to repaselup to $100 millioof its commol
stock. The share repurchase program commenced gusAl3, 2012. The share repurchase program hadimeged from proceeds from the
Loan Agreement as discussed in Note 8 and frontiegisash on hand. All repurchased shares arededas treasury stock at cost.

Common stock repurchase activity during the yededrnJune 30, 2013 was as follows (in thousandgptahare and per share amounts):
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Total Number Dollar Value of

of Shares Average Price Shares that May
Period Purchased Paid per Share Yet Be Purchased
August 13, 2012 — August 31, 2012 2,179,900 $ 8.8t $ 80,59¢
September 1, 2012 — September 30, 2012 992,01 $ 119 $ 68,74
October 1, 2012 - October 31, 2012 371,66 $ 1172 $ 64,37
November 1, 2012 - November 30, 2012 657,70C $ 11.1¢  $ 57,02¢
December 1, 2012 - December 31, 2012 957,77.  $ 11.8¢ $ 45,64¢
Total 5,159,051 g 105: $ 45,64¢

Special Dividend

On December 14, 2012, the Company announced shBbérd of Directors had authorized a special dagbdend of $0.18 per share for each
share of common stock outstanding on December@.2rhe aggregate dividend payment of $15.7 millvas paid on December 28, 201.
stockholders of record on December 24, 2012. Thielelhd payment was funded using proceeds from tdanlAgreement as discussed in Note
8.

Common Stock Offering

On June 18, 2013, the Company completed a seconéfaring of 7,031,464 shares of common stock abféering price of $16.00 per share,
which included 531,464 shares sold in connectidh thie partial exercise of the option to purchatditional shares granted to the
underwriters. All of the shares sold in the offgrimere sold by existing stockholders of the Compamgiuding entities affiliated with Summit
Partners, L.P., and the Company's chief execufifieeo, Robert J. Pera. No shares were sold byCiiapany in the offering, and as such, the
Company did not receive any proceeds from the ioffier

NOTE 11—STOCK BASED COMPENSATION
Stock-Based Compensation Plans
2010 Equity Incentive Plan

In March 2010, the Company’s board of directors stodkholders approved the 2010 Equity IncentianRihe “2010 Plan”). The 2010 Plan
replaced the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2B0&n”), and no further awards will be granted parguo the 2005 Plan. Under the terms of
the 2010 Plan, nonstatutory stock options, stogkeation rights, restricted stock, and restrictemtk units (“RSUs”) may be granted to
employees or non-employee service providers. Imngestock options may be granted only to employees.

The maximum aggregate number of shares that mayvheded under the 2010 Plan as of June 30, 2018 @&6,000 shares, plus any shares
subject to stock options or similar awards granteder the 2005 Plan that expire or otherwise teateinvithout having been exercised in full
and shares issued pursuant to awards granted thed2005 Plan that are forfeited to (but not repased by) the Company.

The 2010 Plan is administered by the board of thremr a committee of the Company’s board of dimex Subject to the terms and conditions
of the 2010 Plan, the administrator has the authtwiselect the persons to whom awards are todmento determine the number of shares to
be subject to awards and the terms and conditibawards, and to make all other determinationstartdke all other actions necessary or
advisable for the administration of the 2010 PiEme administrator is also authorized to adopt, ahwnrescind rules relating to administration
of the 2010 Plan. Options and RSUs generally vest a four year period from the date of grant aadegally expire five to ten years from the
date of grant. The terms of the 2010 Plan providé &n option price shall not be less than 100%aiofmarket value on the date of grant.

2005 Equity Incentive Plan

With the adoption of the 2010 Plan, no additionededs may be granted under the 2005 Plan. In FepA@®D5, the Company’s board of
directors and the stockholders approved the 2086, Rthich was amended and restated in March 20062005 Plan provided for the issuz
of stock options, restricted stock and stock bostsemployees, consultants, advisors, directalsoéficers of the Company. The 2005 Plan
was administered by the Company'’s board of diregtoho determined the terms and conditions for gaght. The terms of the options
granted under the 2005 Plan were determined dirtleeof grant. The Company made use of differesting schedules through fiscal 2009,
subsequent new grants generally vested as to 25%edirst anniversary of the date of grant and thigrthereafter over the next three years
and

82




Table of Contents

generally have a term of 10 years from the datganft. The option prices were determined by the @mg’'s board of directors.
As of June 30, 2013 , the Company had 5,370,81waaed shares available for future issuance ualiler its stock incentive plans.

Stoclk-based Compensation

The following table shows total stock-based comptos expense included in the Consolidated State&svarOperations and Comprehensive
Income for fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011 (in thousand

Years Ended Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011
Cost of sales $ 44€¢ % 117 $ 3C
Research and development 1,43: 54z 28t
Sales, general and administrative 1,497 834 637
$ 3,37¢  $ 1,49: $ 952

Stock Options
The following is a summary of option activity fdree Company’s stock incentive plans for fiscal 202812 and 2011 :

Common Stock Options Outstanding

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
of Shares Price Life (Years) Value
(In thousands)
Balance, June 30, 2010 5,796,171 $ 0.2¢ 6.92 $ 12,64
Granted 1,149,06: 3.4z
Forfeitures and cancellations (773,52 1.0
Balance, June 30, 2011 6,171,700 $ 0.7z 6.44 43,13t
Granted 161,00( 10.4¢
Exercised (2,885,471 0.2¢
Forfeitures and cancellations (99,797 4.71
Balance, June 30, 2012 3,347,441 % 1.4¢ 6.62 42,92(
Granted 683,50( 11.2¢
Exercised (266,55) 2.3¢
Forfeitures and cancellations (150,12 5.6¢
Balance, June 30, 2013 3,614,26. $ 3.07 6.17 52,33(
Vested and expected to vest as of June 30, 2013 3,550,72. $ 2.9¢ 6.12 51,85¢
Vested and exercisable as of June 30, 2013 261831 $ 0.8t 5.20 43,70¢
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Additional information regarding options outstarglas of June 30, 2013 is as follows (in thousaexisept weighted average exercise price
amounts and contractual life):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Number of Contractual Exercise Number of Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Options Life (Years) Price Options Price
$0.01 — $0.04 253,68( 341 $ 0.01 253,68( $ 0.01
$0.05 — $0.39 1,764,899 4.78 0.0t 1,764,899 0.0t
$0.40 — $2.89 206,37" 6.52 1.41 150,12: 1.22
$2.90 — $4.07 383,26¢ 7.25 2.9C 264,71 2.9
$4.08 — $10.76 348,39: 7.82 5.67 171,99¢ 5.6t
$10.77 - $11.74 472,50( 9.37 10.7 — —
$11.75 — $26.28 185,15¢ 9.32 13.6¢ 12,91 16.4(
$0.01 — $26.28 3,614,26: 6.17 $ 3.07 2,618,331 $ 0.8t

During fiscal 2013 and 2012 , the aggregate intiaalue of options exercised under the Compangsksincentive plans was $3.4 milli@md
$48.6 million , respectively, as determined ashefdate of option exercise. The Company had n@omxercises during fiscal 2011.

As of June 30, 2013, the Company had unrecogrmuaethensation cost of $3.7 million related to stopkons which the Company expects to
recognize over a weighted-average period of 3.2sy€aiture option grants will increase the amodiioonpensation expense to be recorded il
these periods.

The Company estimates the fair value of employeeksbptions using the Black-Scholes option priaimgdel. The fair value of employee
stock options is being amortized on a straight-basis over the requisite service period of therdsia-or fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011 the fair
value of employee stock options was estimated usiadollowing weighted average assumptions:

Years Ended Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011
Expected term 6.1 year 6.1 year 6.1 year
Expected volatility 52% 49% 65%
Risk-free interest rate 0.2% 1.6% 4.2%
Expected dividend yield — — —
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 557 % 50t $ 2.1C

Expected termr Expected term represents the period that the Coy'gpatock-based awards are expected to be outstanils the Company
has limited historical option exercise data, thpested term of the stock options granted to em@syeas calculated based on the simplified
method. Under the simplified method, the expectehtis equal to the average of an option’s weiglategtage vesting period and its
contractual term. The Company is permitted to caiusing the simplified method until sufficientdmation regarding exercise behavior,
such as historical exercise data or exercise irdéion from external sources, becomes available.

Expected volatility The expected volatility was based on the histbstack volatilities of a group of publicly listesbmparable companies o
a period equal to the expected terms of the optamthe Company does not have any trading histouge the volatility of its common stock.

Expected dividend yiell The Company has never paid dividends on the Coypanmmon stock and does not expect to pay dividem its
common stock.

Risk-free interest rate.The risk-free interest rate is based on the Ur8adury yield curve in effect at the time of griamtzero coupon U.S.
Treasury notes with maturities approximately eqoahe option’s expected term.

Fair value of common stoc The Company’s common stock began trading on th8 NAQ Global Select Market on October 14, 2011, upon
its initial public offering. The fair value of tHeompany’s common stock is determined using the atgkice of the Company’s common stock
as of the date of grant. Prior to October 14, 2@14 fair value of the shares of
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common stock underlying the stock options has titsttly been the responsibility of and determingdte Company’s board of directors.
Because there had been no public market for thep@ags common stock, its board of directors has detexthfair value of the common stc
at the time of grant of the option by consideringuanber of objective and subjective factors inahgdindependent third-party valuations of its
common stock, operating and financial performattoe Jack of liquidity of capital stock and genesald industry specific economic outlook,
amongst other factors.

Forfeiture rate. The Company estimates its forfeiture rate baseanoanalysis of its actual forfeitures and will tone to evaluate the
adequacy of the forfeiture rate based on actuéitare experience, analysis of employee turnowdralvior and other factors. The impact from
a forfeiture rate adjustment will be recognizeduilhin the period of adjustment, and if the actnamber of future forfeitures differs from that
estimated, the Company may be required to recqugstdents to stock-based compensation expenseéurefperiods.

Cash received from stock option exercises duriedfittal 2013 , 2012 and 2011 was $635,000 , $801a0d zero , respectively.

Restricted Stock Unit¥RSUSs")

The following table summarizes the activity of R8Us made by the Company:

Weighted

Average Grant

Number of Shares Date Fair Value
Non-vested RSUs, June 30, 2010 501,18( $ 1.92
RSUs granted 112,501 5.14
RSUs vested (125,29) 1.92
Non-vested RSUs, June 30, 2011 488,38' $ 2.6€
RSUs granted 169,71( 22.3:
RSUs vested (146,47 2.31
RSUs cancelled (58,000 8.0
Non-vested RSUs, June 30, 2012 453,62( % 9.4z
RSUs granted 656,50( 14.11
RSUs vested (70,517 14.1¢
RSUs cancelled (294,70:) 5.2¢
Non-vested RSUs, June 30, 2013 744,90t $ 14.7¢

The intrinsic value of RSUs vested in fiscal 202812 and 2011 was $1.0 million , $3.5 million &&#0,000 , respectively. The total intrinsic
value of all outstanding RSUs was $13.1 millioro&gune 30, 2013 .

As of June 30, 2013 , there was unrecognized cosgpem costs related to RSUs of $8.7 million whith Company expects to recognize ove
a weighted average period of 3.6 years.

NOTE 12—INCOME TAXES
For financial reporting purposes, the componeniaaime before provision for income taxes wereodlews (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011
Domestic $ 17,86( $ 41,49C $ 24,48¢
Foreign 73,89: 82,53 37,67t
$ 91,75 $ 124,02 $ 62,15¢
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The components of the Company’s provision for inedaxes consisted of the following (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011
Current
Foreign $ 1,79C $ 2,04C $ 97¢
Federal 8,51¢ 17,43: 11,00¢
State 581 2,85¢ 1,61z
Current tax expense 10,88¢ 22,33: 13,59¢
Deferred
Foreign — — —
Federal (130 (217) (912)
State 507 (680) (2517)
Deferred tax expense 377 (897) (1,169)
Provision for income taxes $ 11,26 $ 21,43  $ 12,43:

Significant components of the Company’s deferredassets and liabilities consisted of the follow{imgthousands):

June 30,
2013 2012

Deferred tax assets
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 337 % 23¢
Stock-based compensation 83: 1,01¢
Accrued expenses 191 25¢€
Research and development credits — 46¢
Other 328 18€

Total deferred tax assets 1,68¢ 2,16¢
Deferred tax liabilities

Basis difference for fixed assets (829) (784)
Other (11¢) (266€)

Total deferred tax liabilities (947) (1,050
Net deferred tax assets $ 737 % 1,11«
The effective tax rate differs from the applicabl&. statutory federal income tax rate as follows:

Years Ended June 30,
2013 2012 2011

Statutory rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
Stock-based compensation 0.t — —
State tax expense 0.7 1.C 1.C
Tax rate differential, foreign income (24.2) (23.0 (20.0
Foreign credits — — —
Federal research and development credits (0.9 — (1.0
Other permanent items 0.4 4.3 5.C
Non-deductible penalties — — —
Effective tax rate 12.2% 17.2% 20.C%

The Company had increased foreign operations ¢alfd013 as compared to fiscal 2012 and in fisbaP2as compared to fiscal 2011,
generating more income on a comparative year ox@r pasis in foreign jurisdictions that have loteerrates than the U.S.
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It is the practice and intention of the Companyeiovest the earnings of its non-U.S. subsidiarig¢bhose operations. As of June 30, 2013, the
Company has not made a provision for U.S. or amlukti foreign withholding taxes on approximately @&Lmillion of the excess of the amol
for financial reporting over the tax basis of intresnts in foreign subsidiaries that are essentgdlynanent in duration. Generally, such
amounts become subject to U.S. taxation upon tinéteence of dividends and under certain other eirsiances. It is not practicable to estin
the amount of deferred tax liability related to@stments in these foreign subsidiaries.

While management believes that the Company hasuatidy provided for all tax positions, amounts aggkby tax authorities could be greatel
or less than the recorded position. Accordinglg, @ompany's provisions on federal, state and foreig-related matters to be recorded in the
future may change as revised estimates are matie anderlying matters are settled or otherwiselvesl.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending bakmof the unrecognized tax benefits during thesyeaded June 30, 2013 2012 and 2011
consists of the following (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Unrecognized benefit—beginning of period $ 7,828 % 2,020 $ 762
Gross increases—current year tax positions 3,80¢ 4,69 1,25¢
Gross increases—prior year tax positions (17¢) 1,10¢ —
Unrecognized benefit—end of period $ 11,45 % 782t % 2,02(

Included in the gross unrecognized tax benefitarad as of June 30, 2013 are $11.5 million of @sitipns which would affect income tax
expense if recognized. The Company recognizesaisitand penalties related to unrecognized tax liemgthin the income tax expense line in
the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Op&imaod Comprehensive Income. Accrued interest andlfpes are included within the
related tax liability line in the Consolidated Ba¢e Sheet. As of June 30, 2013 , the Company h&d,@30accrued interest related to uncer
tax matters. The Company does not expect its ugreped tax benefits as of June 30, 2013 will matgrchange within the next 12 months.
The Company files income tax returns in the UnBéakes, various states and certain foreign jutigeiis. Tax years 2010 through 2013 are
subject to examination by the U.S. federal tax auitles. Tax years 2009 through 2013 are subjeek#mmination by the state tax authorities.
There are no income tax examinations currentlyrat@ss.

NOTE 13—SEGMENT INFORMATION, REVENUES BY GEOGRAPHY AND SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS

Revenues by product type were as follows (in thodsaexcept percentages):

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011

airMAX $ 202,59¢ 63% $ 223,74 63% $ 113,00: 57%
New platforms 53,86¢ 17% 29,46: 8% 2,51z 1%
Other systems 18,19( 6% 52,08t 15% 44,88 23%
Systems 274,65’ 86% 305,29: 86% 160,39¢ 81%
Embedded radio 6,88¢ 2% 10,05¢ 3% 14,76 7%
Antennas/other 39,27 12% 38,167 11% 22,71« 12%
Total revenues $ 320,82 10(% $ 353,51 10% $ 197,87: 10C%

The Company generally forwards products directyrfiits manufacturers to its customers via logiddistribution hubs in Asia. Beginning in
the quarter ended December 31, 2012, the Compprodsicts were predominantly routed through a thady logistics provider in China and
prior to the quarter ended December 31, 2012, tragany's products were predominantly deliveredutocastomers through distribution hubs
in Hong Kong. The Company's logistics providertum, ships to other locations throughout the dioflhe Company has determined the
geographical distribution of product revenues bagmth the customer's ship-to destinations.
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Revenues by geography were as follows (in thousand®pt percentages):

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011

North America(1) $ 84,82( 26% $ 88,30¢ 25% $ 61,92( 31%
South America 65,76¢ 21% 88,32¢ 25% 50,82« 26%
Europe, the Middle East and Africa 127,86( 40% 130,49« 37% 68,297 35%
Asia Pacific 42,37¢ 13% 46,38¢ 13% 16,83: 8%
Total revenues $ 320,82: 10(% $ 353,51 10C% $ 197,87: 10C%

(1) Revenue for the United States \v$80.6 million , $84.3 million and $60.0 million féscal 2013 , 2012 and 201 Xespectively

Customers with an accounts receivable balance %f di0greater of total accounts receivable and oosts with net revenues of 1086 greate
of total revenues are presented below for the geriledicated:

Percentage of Revenues Percentage of Accounts Receivable
Years Ended June 30, June 30,
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012
Flytec Computers, Inc. 13% 16% 20% 12% 19%
P.W. Batna Magdalena Mucha * * * 11% *
Streakwave Wireless, Inc. * 10% 15% 15% 11%
* * * * 12%

Discomp
* denotes less than 10%

NOTE 14—401(k) BENEFIT PLAN

The Company sponsors a 401(k) defined contribygian. It matches 1% of the first 4% of an emplogemmpensation contributed to the p
The Company’s contributions to the plan were $58,0847,000 and $28,000 for fiscal 2013 , 20122011 , respectively.

NOTE 15—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events aisddtans through September 13, 20%#ich is the date the annual consolidated firel
statements set forth herein were issued, howeeeCtimpany did not have any material subsequenteeéer June 30, 2013 .
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NOTE 16—SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following table presents the Company’s unaudditensolidated statements of operations data fr ehthe eight quarters during fiscal
2013 and 2012 . In management’s opinion, this infdion has been presented on the same basis asdited consolidated financial
statements included in a separate section of ¢pisrt, and all necessary adjustments, consistiiygadmormal recurring adjustments, have
been included in the amounts below to state faliyunaudited quarterly results when read in cartjon with the audited consolidated
financial statements and related notes. The operatisults for any quarter should not be reliednup® necessarily indicative of results for any
future period.

Fiscal 2013
First Second Third Fourth
In thousands, except per share data Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net revenue 61,53¢ 74,90 $ 83,15¢ 101,23:
Gross profit 25,02( 30,48t 35,46 44,36«
Income from operations 15,77* 20,11¢ 23,50: 33,20"
Net income and comprehensive income 13,17¢ 17,80: 20,66 28,84
Net income per share of common stock:
Basic 0.14 02 $ 0.24 0.3¢
Diluted 0.14 02C $ 0.2: 0.32
Fiscal 2012
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net revenue 79,167 87,817 $ 91,66¢ 94,86¢
Gross profit 33,01 37,29( 39,65¢ 41,04
Income from operations 27,50( 31,17¢ 32,55¢ 34,06(
Net income and comprehensive income 21,49: 24,69 27,92( 28,48t
Net income (loss) attributable to common
stockholders—basic (81,239 14,42¢ 27,92( 28,48t
Net income (loss) attributable to common
stockholders—diluted (81,239 14,44: 27,92( 28,48t
Net income (loss) per share of common stock:
Basic (2.30 0.1€ $ 0.3C 0.31
Diluted (2.30 0.1€ $ 0.3C 0.3C
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Exhibit Index

The following exhibits are filed herewith or arearporated by reference to exhibits previouslydfiéth the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. (the “Registtgrshall furnish copies of exhibits for a reasoleatee (covering the expense of furnishing
copies) upon request.

Incorporated by

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference from
Number Description Reference from Form Exhibit Number Date Filed
3.1 Form of Third Amended and Restated Certificate of S-1 3.2 June 17, 2011

Incorporation of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.

3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of Ubiquiti S-1 3.4 June 17, 2011
Networks, Inc.

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Ubiquiti S-1 4.1 October 3, 2011
Networks, Inc.

4.2 Registration Agreement, dated March 2, 2010, betwee S-1 4.2 June 17, 2011

Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and certain holders of Ulpik)
Networks, Inc.’s capital stock named therein.

4.3 Investor Rights Agreement, dated as of March 20201 S-1 4.3 June 17, 2011
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and certain holdgfrs
Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.’s capital stock named thiare

10.1 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Ubiquiti S-1 10.1 October 3, 2011
Networks, Inc. and its directors and officers.

10.2# Amended and Restated 2005 Equity Incentive Plan and S-1 10.2 June 17, 2011
forms of agreement thereunder.

10.3# Amended and Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan and S-1 10.3 June 17, 2011
forms of agreement thereunder.

10.4# Employment Agreement, dated as of February 10, 2011 S-1 10.5 June 17, 2011
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Benjamin Moore.

10.5# Executive Employment Agreement between the 8-K 10.1 March 8, 2013
Company and Craig Foster, effective March 4, 2013.

10.6# Employment Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2010, S-1 10.7 June 17, 2011
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and John Sanford.

10.7# Employment Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2012, 10-K 10.8 September 28, 2012
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Jessica Zhou.

10.8 Non-Residential Property Lease Agreement, datexf as S-1 10.9 June 17, 2011
May 28, 2009, between UAB “Devint” and Tomas
Gréblitnas, Tomas Skas, and Vygante Skiené.

10.9 Jinyong Ji Investment Taiwan Lease, dated as oEMar S-1 10.10 June 17, 2011
16, 2010, between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Jimyo
Ji Investment Co., Ltd.

10.10 Lease, dated as of July 9, 2010, between Ubiquiti S-1 10.11 June 17, 2011
Networks, Inc. and The Welsh Office Center LLC.



10.11% Amended Technology License Agreement, dated as of S-1 10.12 June 17, 2011
September 1, 2010, between Ubiquiti Networks, amal
Atheros Communications, Inc.
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Incorporated by

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference from
Number Description Reference from Form Exhibit Number Date Filed
10.12 Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of Septef) S-1 10.14 September 16, 2011
2011, between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and East West
Bank.
10.13 Taiwan Lease, dated as of July 20, 2011, between Ji 10-Q 10.15 November 14, 2011
Yeoung Ji Co., Ltd. and Ubiquiti Networks Intericaual
Limited, Taiwan Branch.
10.14 Office Lease, dated as of December 8, 2011 and 10-Q/A 10.16 March 20, 2012
executed on December 22, 2011, by and between
Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Carr NP Properties, ICL
10.15 Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of August 7, 8-K 10.1 August 13, 2012
2012, by and among Ubiquiti Networks, Inc., theders
from time to time party thereto, U.S. Bank, as
Syndication Agent, and East West Bank, as
Administrative Agent
10.16 Non-Residential Premises Lease Agreement, datefl as
July 10, 2013, between Ubiquiti Networks Europe and
BUAB Apskaitos etika.
10.17 Retention Agreement by and between the Registraht a 10-Q 10.1 February 8, 2013
John Ritchie dated December 21, 2012.
21.1 List of subsidiaries of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.
23.1 Consent of independent registered public accounting
firm
24.1 Power of Attorney (contained in the signature page
this Form 10-K)
31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Reged
Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Secaritie
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Reqait
Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Secaritie
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
32.1~ Certification of Principal Executive Officer andifgipal
Financial Officer Required Under Rule 13a-14(bjtaf
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18
U.S.C. §1350.
101.INS(*) XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH(*) XBRL Taxonomy Schema Linkbase Document
101.CAL(*¥) XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF(*)  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase

Document



101.LAB(*) XBRL Taxonomy Labels Linkbase Document

101.PRE(*) XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document

# Management contracts or compensation plang@n@ements in which directors or executive offiaes eligible to participate.
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T Portions of the exhibit have been omitted purstman order granted by the Securities and Exch@ugemission for confidential treatment.

~ In accordance with Iltem 601(b)(32)(ii) of Redida S-K and SEC Release No. 33-8238 and 34-47986) Rule: Management's Reports on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting and CertificatminDisclosure in Exchange Act Periodic Reports,dbsifications furnished in Exhibit 32.1 herete
deemed to accompany this Form 10-K and will nod&emed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of theliange Act. Such certifications will not be
deemed to be incorporated by reference into amgglunder the Securities Act or the Exchange éxtept to the extent that the registrant specijical
incorporates it by reference.

(*) XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Languagddrmation is furnished and not filed or a parafegistration statement or prospectus for purpoe
Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933%ragnded, is deemed not filed for purposes of @ed8 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and is not otherwise subject to liabilitder these Sections.
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Exhibit 10.16

NON-RESIDENTIAL PREMISES LEASE AGREEMENT

Kaunas 1/ 1013

BUAB Apskaitos etika, company number 1117 75915, legal address 50 WirRkio Str., Kaunas, represented by

administrator UABImoniy bankroto administravimo ir teisipipaslaug biuro (Company Bankruptcy Administration and L
Services Bureau), number of legal person 235238dy¢Qauthorized persongstutis Stankus (basis for authorization is thi
March 2012 Resolution of Kaunas Regional Courttied30 April 2012 Power of Attorney No. @44/1), hereinafter referred to

the
and

‘Lessor’ on one side

UAB Ubiquiti Networks Europe , number of legal person 300633724, address ofdapistered office 221 Savanwri

Ave., Kaunas, represented by Rasa JuodiSibe director, hereinafter referred to as thesseeon the other side,

into

The Lessor and the Lessee hereinafter may be edféoras the Parties’ and each individually as theParty’ , entere:
this Lease Agreement (hereinafter — thgteement’) and have agreed:

l. SUBJECT MATTER OF THE AGREEMENT

1.1.According to the terms and conditions as well as@dure set forth herein the Lessor shall leasiect.essee (i.e. provi
for temporal possession and use for a lease fad)the latter shall lease from the Lessor the imatbte/ property owne
by the Lessor, i.e. premises of administrative paepthe total area of which is 477 sg.m., locatethe third floor of th
building, the uniqgue number of which is 4400-06EB0, owned by the Lessor and located at 50 V.Rskio Str
(hereinafter — the ‘Property@nd shall undertake to pay to the Lessor the laadeother fees pursuant to the terms
procedure set forth herein. During entire term gfé@ement validity the Lessee shall be entitleds® the yard and gare
in this yard of the Building wherein the Premisesbe leased are located and that is included heddase price. Tl
Parties agree that based on this paragraph, tree¢eés entitled to park the road motor vehiclesraployees and clier
(light motor vehicles, motorcycles and bikes).

1.2.The Lessee confirms that he inspected the Propadyit is completely satisfied with condition oktRroperty and oth
terms.

1.3.The Lessee shall undertake to use the Propertany out the economic activity, hereinafter refdrte as the Least
Purpose’.Hereby the lease purpose of use of the premisestablished, i.e. to carry out administrative aistiof the
company of the Lessee. The company of the Lessabmbvide the creation of information technologigd consultin
services. The Lessee may change the Lease Purtdsetls herein only with prior written consenttbé Lessor.

1.4.During entire Agreement validity period the Lesstmall undertake to maintain the Premises at theedawel as tr
Premises are on the day of Premises delivery ateptance by the Lessee.

1.5.The Lessor shall undertake to assure that on &Pdayises delivery to the Lessee, the Premises teased should |
empty, ordered and clean and also free of any garties or their property.

1.6.This Agreement shall entitle the Lessee to regidteraddress of registered office of the Lessathataddress of tl
Premises.

2. EQUIPMENT AND ADJUSTMENT OF PREMISES FOR ACTIVIT IES OF THE LESSEE AND TERMS OF
PROPERTY DELIVERY. REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE OF PREMIS ES

2.1. The Premises shall be leased as of existingiton and the Lessor shall not perform any addal repairs with €
exception of arrangements and modifications of memwhich must be made by the Lessor until 1 $epte 2012
namely:




2.1.1 Install the measuring apparatus;
2.1.2 Install shower cabin.

2.2. The Lessor shall undertake to deliver the Resnto the Lessee and the latter shall undertakedept the Premises fr
the Lessor on a day of signing of this Agreemeht delivery of the Premises must be executed byrgighe Premist
Delivery and Acceptance Certificate by the Partidsch having it signed and approved by stamps efRharties she
become integral part of this Agreement and in whachactual condition of the Premises and readinghefsurin
apparatus located in the Premises are to be stated.

2.3. Having the Premises delivered to the Lessee/atter shall be entitled to use the Premisebouit any restrictions
accordance with the terms and purposes set fortihencluding, but not limited to free accesshe Premises during t
day and night time (2#ours) 7 days a week, with an exception of tempastrictions of access to the Premises be:
of emergencies, disturbances in the Premises aiidiiduor engineering systems installed thereimhgvitions or othe
actions established by the sate and/or municighlbaities which are beyond the will of the Lessor.

2.4. During the time of transfer of the PremisethtoLessee, the Lessor must deliver to the Labseregulations applicable
the common use premises of the Building (if anyd also other documents (their copies), if any, Whdce necessary
order for the Lessee to use the Premises for th@opas set forth herein.

2.5. The Lessee shall be entitled to perform theravements and/or rearrangements of the Premigbspwor consent of tt
Lessor. If the Lessee performs the improvementaan@arrangements of the Premises, after expitpisfAgreement «
its termination prior to the term, the Lessee shallentitled to take the devices, systems and ateipment as well
performed improvements and/or rearrangements wiagle been performed at its expense, if they catetahed withol
damaging the Premises and if the Parties fail t@eaghat the Lessor shall reimburse the value oh smprovemen
and/or rearrangements to the Lessee.

2.6. The Property must be returned to the Lessdeast within 30 (thirty) calendar days as of timel ef this Agreemer
Within this period the Lessee shall pay the le@sednd other fees (payments) set forth herein.LBssee shall retu
cleaned, ordered Property and with all the keydualing those manufactured by the Lessee in the sthich is not wors
than the one which was present on a day of theegPyodelivery to the Lessee, taking into accougutar wear and te:
Having the Agreement ended or terminated priotsddarm the Lessee shall deliver the Property ¢oLiiissor by signir
the bilateral Property Delivery and Acceptance iieste. In case of failure to deliver the Propeudythe Lessor within tt
term specified herein, the Lessor shall pay toLigsee the default interest in the sum of LTL 50@e hundred Litas
for each day of delay to vacate and deliver thep&nty.

2.7. During this Agreement validity period the Lesshall undertake to arrange and perform the aénepair works of tt
Premises, provided such repairs are necessarynanddiate. The Lessor shall undertake to notifylibgsee in advan
about the overhaul repair works intended to beycaut by the Lessor and also the repair works, Wwivitpede the activi
of the Lessee, of engineering networks or systehitheo Building wherein the leased Premises aretéotaHaving th
Lessor notified the Lessee of Premisagrhaul repair works intended to be carry out,ltbesee must facilitate the pro
performance of such works, including without lintiba, refrain from temporarily using the Premises part of themr
upon request of the Lessor (for the term specliigethe Lessor). The Lessee shall not pay the Liesstor the days durit
which it could not properly use the leased Premises

2.8. The Lessor shall undertake not to preventdssee from using the Premises during the Lease téthe Lessor wants
inspect the terms of operational use of the Presmigd during the business hours or wants to shewPiiemises to
potential lessee not during the business houshall be entitled to enter the Premises only witsspnce of the Lessae’
representative. In the event of emergency which daayage the Building and cause harm to the peoptease workin
therein, the Lessor shall be entitled to enterRfemises at any time, however, must notify the éess such entry and
the event there is no possibility to notify the $@s prior to the entry, it must notify the Lessaenediately after the ent
Without breaching the rights of the Lessee the deshall be entitled to verify whether the Lesssesuthe Premis

properly.




2.9. If the meeting of creditors of the Lessor tattee decision to assign the Premises to thirdgsathe Lessor shall underti
to notify the Lessee of such circumstances at bihin 5 (five) calendar days as of a day of tgkthe decision of tt
meeting of creditors and provide information onegmbial acquirer of the Premises by furnishing ksads in order tr
Lessee could start negotiations with new ownehefRremises regarding the execution of new Prehtesese agreement.

2.10. The Lessor must deliver to the Lessee thegeplp (according to applicable legislation) instdll engineerir
communications (electricity, water-supply, sewage heating supply) of the Premises.

2.11. The Lessor must assure the proper operatig@abf engineering communications of the Buildiviterein the Premis
are located within the limits of responsibilitythie Lessor up to inlets into the Premises.

2.12. The Lessor shall undertake to assure the(appointment) of administrator of the Building whauld maintain th
Building and leased Premises and administer alfébe, organize security of the Building and thenfses, collection
garbage, cleaning and lighting works of common sau@fathe building, yard and streets, lightning afilBing’'s facade
maintenance of equipment in the Building and Premiscluding without limitation maintenance angaie of sanitar
equipment, electrical, heating and other netwosk@ell as equipment.

2.13. The Parties agree that the costs of operdtime specified in Paragraph 2.12 hereof shatlabauilated in proportion
the area of the leased Premises to general ardse dduilding taking into account actual costs imedrby the Lessc
furnishing by the Lessor to the Lessee the codié®ouments justifying such costs.

3. LEASE TERM

3.1. The Premises shall be leased for the perid@l(ttiree) years, but for the period which is motger than until the day
Property sale, delivery or return in accordancdhie procedure established by the Law on Bankyupit¢che Entities ¢
the Republic of Lithuania. The calculation of thefises lease term shall commence as of the dsigrhg the Premis
Delivery and Acceptance Certificate.

3.2. Having this Agreement ended, the Lessee wterlyrfulfilled the undertaken obligations hereunsdkeall have the priori
with respect to other persons to renew this Agrerrimeaccordance with the procedure set forth ira§aph 3.3 hereof.

3.3. If having this Agreement ended the Lessornii¢eto further lease the Premises, the Lessor muifyy the Lessee
writing of that in advance, but no later than 3€#) months prior to the end of the lease termgegi§ying the Premis:
lease term and the fee as well as other substdatiak and conditions of lease. In this case thesé® must furnish
written reply to the Lessor no later than withifohe) month as form receipt of notice of the Lesaut state whether
not the Lessee agrees to renew this Agreement uhdderms and conditions specified in the notitcthe Lessor. If th
Lessee agrees to enter into the Premises leasenagme under the terms and conditions specifiechénrotice of th
Lessor, the Parties shall agree to take all thersunder their control in order the new Premlisases agreement to
signed as soon as possible.

4. PAYMENTS AND SETTLEMENTS

4.1. The calculation of the lease fee and othemgas hereunder shall commence as of 1 Septembar 20

4.2. The Lessee shall undertake to pay to the kdesahe Property specified in Paragraph 1.1 heeagh month the Lea
Fee in the sum dfTL 31,50 for 1 sg.m. plus VAT which amounts in totalL 15 000,00 (fifteen thousand Litas, 00
per month. In case the law and/or regulations gilation establishes other amount of VAT and/treotfees and/or otk
equivalent payments related to the subject matfténi® Agreement, the Lessee shall have to pay ynestablished VA
and/or other fees and payments. The lease feefispelserein is established based on the providian dfficial Litas an
Euro exchange rate amounts to LTL 3,4528 for EUsh A day of signing of this Agreement. If mandatoitas and Eur
exchange rate established by the Bank of Lithuborithe commercial banks on a day of payment diffeom the one
of the day of signing of this Agreement, on a dagayment the said lease fee shall be paid of anobunt that having it




converted to Euros on that day the amount in Ewmdd be the same as the lease fee converted osEacording to tt
exchange rate of the day of signing of this Agrestim&he Parties agree that the Lessee shall p#yethessol TL 30
000,00 (thirty thousand Litas)plus VAT of the lease fee advance payment withirddys as of the day of signing of
Agreement. The paid advance payment shall be ceregidas the lease fee for the last months of dsele

4.3. The Parties agree that if the consumer pnidex established and published by the Departme8tatistics of the Repub
of Lithuania, hereinafter CPI, increases by morantl3 (three) percentage points from the day of @@t of this
Agreement or the last recalculation of such indive lease fee shall be recalculated in proportmnCPI chang
percentage. Recalculated fee amount shall be appdias from the beginning of the calendar yedoviohg the year o
which such recalculation was performed.

4.4. The lease fee shall be paid for the past montihthe 10"day of the following month against an invoice fstréd by th
Lessor.

4.5. The Parties agree that the Lessee shall rtet &ro the direct services agreements with thaepanies providing utilit
services (heating, electricity, water, gas, etad andertake to pay directly to the Lessor all fibes for actually ust
heating, electricity, water, gas in the Premisabaso for communication services and other ut8gyvices that have be
actually provided in the Premises. The fees forutil¢y services provided in the Premises, eledyiand heating must
calculated in accordance with the readings of nmaagwapparatus (utility meters) installed in theefarses and if tf
individual measuring appratus (utility meters) act installed in the Premises, such fees shallabaulated according
the documents (invoices) on actually provided tytikervices in the Premises issued by the orgaoimatproviding
respective utility services. The Lessee shall uadterto make the payment for the services spedifiedis Paragraph f
the current month at least within 5 (fifth) day tbie current month against the VAT invoice furnishgdthe Lessc
according to the resources used during the lastimdinthe amount paid by the Lessee in accordavite the procedul
established herein is smaller than the monetaryessmn of amount specified in the invoices debdeby the servic
providers for heating, electricity, water, commuation services as well as utility services providextually in th:
Premises which have been used by the Lessee dhengurrent month, the Lessee must pay the acqriee differenc
within 3 (three) business days as of the additiaffal invoice delivered by the Lessor. If the paiti@unt is higher the
the monetary expression for heating, electricitgfexr, communication services as well as utilitw®es provided actual
in the Premises the accrued price difference #imlleemed to be as the partial payment for providiéity services fo
upcoming months.

4.6. If the Lessee fails to make the lease felartimely manner or other payments to the Lessaumeler, from the amoul
paid by the Lessee first of all the Lessor shallofethe late payment penalties and/or penaltesl then indebtedness
the lease fee of the Lessee and other paymentgritkne

5. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES

5.1. Without violating the rights of the Lesseeyihg notified the Lessee in advance, the Lessoll bleaentitled to verif
whether or not the Lessee properly uses the Pyofgesides, the Lessor shall be entitled to shawRtoperty to a futu
lessee or acquirer.

5.2. The Lessor shall be entitled each month andéded more often to verify the readings of méagwapparatus located
the Premises which measure the usage of energyroeso water and other utility services.

5.3. The Lessor shall not be liable for interrupsion provision of energetic resources, water, campations, utility service
and other services due to fault of third partied/@nproviders of these resources/services. Thedreaslso shall not |
liable and shall not reimburse the loss incurredhgylLessee due to emergencies which have occduedo fault of thir
parties and/or providers of these resources/sexvice

5.4. The Lessee must use the Property orderly pptbpriately for the purposes set forth herein,pkéee Property in goc
condition taking into account regular wear and.tear




5.5. After the end of the lease term or terminatmfnthis Agreement prior to its term the value afiprovement:
rearrangements and installations (improvementf)ePremises and/or Property shall not be reimburséhe Lessee.

5.6 The Lessee shall undertake to perform the pegntaepair works of the Premises and/or Properitg @wn expenses wi
prior written coordination with the Lessor. The ties agree that the definition of ‘permanent repairks’ to extend it i
specified herein shall meet the definition of ‘pamant repair worksestablished in the Law on Construction of
Republic of Lithuania. Repair works must be carmed in compliance with all the requirements ofiségfion governin
this activity taking into account the specificstiogé Premises and Property.

5.7. The Lessee must observe the regulations esdifety, sanitary, environmental, occupational gafetectrical safet
operational use of heating, watrpply and sewage, telephone networks and instafaand also internal proced
regulations of the Building interior and other riedions related to operational use of the Premigash are established
legislation of the Republic of Lithuania.

5.8. The Lessee must immediately notify the Lesdout fire, accident, emergencies and other exkatdave occurred in t
Premises and which could cause or have caused éamdge Premises/Property and undertake measurpsotection ¢
the Premises and the property located therein #saw/éor liquidation of consequences of emergesioy accident (even
if that happened due to fault of the Lessee.

5.9. The Lessee must immediately notify verballyd(@hen as soon as possible in writing) the Leabout the accidents
emergencies that have occurred in the PremisetdiBgiior their engineering systems, malfunctionghef said syster
and their consequences and also about deteriorafi@onditions of the Premises and/or equipmentgestices of th
Lessor installed therein which could cause or cals®age to the leased Premises. Having receiveddtiee of th:
Lessee specified herein, the Lessor shall undestdtkeut any unreasonable delay and at its expanfiquidate the sa
accidents or emergencies, malfunctions of engingesystems and also the consequences of such @iscidenergenci
or malfunctions if that occurred due to fault of thessor.

5.10. The Lessee must pay properly and in the yimnanner the lease fee and other payments hereunder

5.11. The Lessee shall not be entitled to sub-ltes@roperty to third parties.

5.12. The Lessee shall not be entitled to rearréamgéeased Premises without written consent of gssor.

5.13. The Lessee must obtain at its expensesealidinses, permits and other documents neceswsattyef use of the Premi
according to their purpose and the Lessor shaledakle to refrain from preventing this and provideéhe Lessee all ti
authorizations to this end.

5.14. If damage is caused to the Property dueulh ¢d the Lessee, its clients, visitors, interdsparties and/or other th
persons to whom the Lessee granted the right ailptity to enter the Premises or use them otharwiise Lessee sh
immediately perform the Property repair works hgvimordinated this with the Lessor. If the Lessaks to perform th
required repair works in the timely manner and stegair works are performed by the Lessor at ifsease, the Less
shall reimburse to the Lessor all the repair rel@epenses incurred by the Lessor and justifiethbydocuments.

6. LIABILITY OF THE PARTIES

6.1. Each Party must reimburse to the other Pdirthe loss that has been incurred by such othety Pecause of failure
perform or properly perform the obligations undetahereunder.

6.2. If the terms of payment set forth herein & lkase fee and/or other payments are breachegpamdwritten request of t
Lessor, the Lessee shall undertake to pay the ldéfigerest in the sum of 0,02 percent of unpaicbant for each day
delay.

6.3. The Lessee shall be liable for the damageechiasthe Property by its faulty acts or due toégligence.

6.4. Each of the Parties shall be excused fronilitialfor failure to perform or properly perform ¢hobligations set for
herein, if it is capable of proving that such faflwccurred due to circumstances beyond contfralrée Majeure) which
are set forth in RL legislation (such as fire, flpgtrike, transport disturbances, natural disasted other circumstances
similar nature) which have




occurred after signing of this Agreement and aldbis capable of proving that it could not by amgasures prevent |
occurrence of said circumstances or could not atb&m and also it could not anticipate the occurenf suc
circumstances when signing this Agreement. TheyRahich faced thd~orce Majeurecircumstances must in writi
notify the other Party of that and deliver the doemnts justifying the existence of such circumstance

7. AGREEMENT VALIDITY, AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION

7.1. This Agreement shall become effective as ef tioment of its signs and shall be valid until fpérformance ¢
obligations hereunder.

7.2. All amendments, supplements and annexes soAthiieement shall be valid if drawn up in writingdasigned by bo
Parties.

7.3. The Lessor shall be entitled to unilateraMithout invoking judicial procedure, to terminabést Agreement prior to expi
of the lease term with at least 1 (one) month ediicthe Lessee, if:

7.3.1. The Lessee uses the leased Property agaénstirpose set forth herein;
7.3.2. The Lessee delays the payment of the Leaseid other fees hereunder for more than 30 dal/$ads to rectif
this breach within the term specified in writing tne Lessor;
7.3.3. The Lessee deliberately or negligently detates the condition of the Property;
7.3.4. The Lessee does not carry out the repaiksvior cases when it is obliged to do so and failsettify this breac
within the term specified in writing by the Lessor.

7.4. The Lessee shall be entitled to unilateradlithout invoking judicial procedure, to terminataéist Agreement prior -
expiry of the lease term with at least 1 (one) rhordtice to the Lessor, if:

7.4.1. The Property becomes unsuitable for useusecaf the circumstances for which the Lesseetisasponsible;
7.4.2. The Lessor prevents the Lessee from usm&tbperty according to its purpose and termsisfAgreement.

7.5. The Lessee shall be entitled to unilateradiyminate this Agreement prior to its term withoutemsonable cause
notifying the Lessor about the intended terminafigone) month prior to the intended day of Agreentermination.

7.6. This Agreement is subject to termination bittem agreement of both Parties.

7.7. Having this Agreement terminated, the oblmai and duties which have not been performed ak aseéstablishe
procedure of settlement, payment of penalties and, Iresolution of disputes arising out of this ée&nent shall reme
effective.

7.8. By signing this Agreement the Lessor undedstaand agrees that this Lease Agreement may naoerbenated b
unilateral statement of the Lessor unless the gistances specified in Paragraph 7.3 are present.

8. OTHER PROVISIONS

8.1. Each Party hereby represents and warrantsother Party that:
8.1.1. it is a company of private limited liabiliuly established and legitimately operating urtlerlaws of the Repub
of Lithuania;
8.1.2. it has all the rights and authorizationgxecute this Agreement and perform properly thégabbns undertake
hereunder; it received all the permits, approvats @authorizations of the competent institutiors citrporate bodies and
other persons which based on applicable legislatimhinternal documentation of the Parties are ssacg for executic
and implementation of this Agreement;
8.1.3. neither execution of this Agreement, norfgrerance of obligations established herein viokate breach (i) ar
Articles of Association of the Party or provisioofsother internal documents and also any decisiorters or instructiol
issued by the corporate bodies of the Party; (i decision, resolution, order, instruction or etdecument issued
court or other sate or municipal which is mandatorapplicable to the Party; (iii) any agreemerheo transaction «
promise to which it is a party; and also (iv) amg\psions of laws or applicable legislation thamandatory to the Party.




8.2. Besides the statements and warranties seinoBaragraph 8.1 hereof, by signing this Agreentbmet Lessor she

additionally represent and warrant to the Lesdes; t

8.2.1. the Lessor possesses the Premises by powatership title;

8.2.2. the Lessor represents that during the tihexecution of this Agreement the leased Premisesmmrtgage
to the bank AB Swedbank.
8.2.3. there are no disputes in court concernieddhsed premises, premises are not seized omudeiaccording to the
direct purpose is not otherwise limited; premises reot leased and are not given to any third paxie the grounds
commodate; there are no hidden defects of whichL#ssor is aware of due to which the Premises coatdbe use
according to their purpose or their utility coulel tlecreased to the extent that if the Lessee haarkabout these defec
it should not have leased the Premises or shoulgaid for the Premises the lease fee of such atnoun

8.3. It shall be deemed that representations amchwniges listed herein is delivered and is accuoat@ day of signing of tr
Agreement and on the day of delivery and acceptahtiee Premises.

8.4. If the representations and warranties as waellstatements set out herein were not true, thgy Barwhich suc
representation, warranty or statement has beeemqess (aggrieved Party) shall be entitled (in adiditvithout limiting the
rights which it can exercise under the laws of Republic of Lithuania) to demand from the Party ethpresented su
representation or statement, to reimburse the tdioss suffered due to the fact that the aggrieRady trusted fals
representation, warranty or statement and whiclkdaoot have been incurred by the Party, if thee@sentation or warrar
should have corresponded to reality.

8.5. The Party shall undertake to refrain from Idising the terms and conditions of this Agreemerdrty third parties with
exception of state institutions and creditors @& tlessor which are entitled to receive such inféimnaunder the law
Notwithstanding the confidentiality obligation sk&irth herein, any of the Parties shall be entitteddisclose th
confidential information to is employees, partigitg auditors and advisors and/or consultants teeldxy the Parties.

8.6. Invalidity of any provision of this Agreemestiall not affect the validity of other provisionstbe Agreement. The Part
agree to replace the invalid provision of the Agneat with other provision which meet the most thgctive and spirit ¢
the previous one.

8.7. The Agreement together with all its amendmentpplements and/or annexes form one agreemem¢dethe Parties a
the Agreement may not be anyhow divided.

8.8. Having the ownership title to the Propertysealsfrom the Lessor to a third party, this Agreenséiall be valid to the ne
owner of the Premises with the same terms and gonslifor the entire Agreement validity time.

8.9. Any dispute arising out of this Agreementalated hereto which within 30 (thirty) days as freabmission of the Party’
request regarding the performance of obligatiomeureder is not resolved by negotiations, must belved in court of tF
Republic of Lithuania in accordance with the pragedestablished by laws of the Republic of Lithaani

8.10. The laws of the Republic of Lithuania shall/grn the relations arising between the Partiexhvhre not regulated
this Agreement.

8.11. In the event of change of the legal addressesibers of bank accounts and (or) other detthls, Parties mu
immediately notify each other of that. The Partyichhfailed to fulfill this requirement shall be deped of the right t
present the claims or counterclaims that actiorth®fother Party performed according to the detdilwhich it was latel
aware of fails to meet the terms of the agreemenhat it had not received notices which have bsmmd according
these details.

8.12. The Parties confirm that all the terms amuddmns of this Agreement were discussed and c¢oateld individually, i.€
each term and condition of the Agreement was dssmiand coordinated individually.

8.13. All the information, warnings or notices tel& to this Agreement must be drawn up in writimgl anust be send
electronic malil, fax, registered letter or counaail (with confirmation about delivery) or deliveragainst the signature
the addresses specified in Paragraph 9 hereof.

8.14. This Agreement may be registered in Kaunas@r of Immovable Property Register of the Statetprise Center
Registers. The Agreement shall be registered aresgs of the Lessee.

8.15. The Agreement shall be signed in three capidse Lithuanian language, each copy having #meslegal authority, ol
copy is retained by each Party to the Agreementlaindl copy shall be




delivered to the Kaunas Branch of Immovable PrgpBegister of the State Enterprise Center of RegistThe Parti
shall place their signatures on each page of threekgent.

8.16. The Parties represent that they have read Agreement, understood their content and the coesEes of i
performance, failure of performance or improperfggenance, or untimely performance. The Parties #ngs Agreemet
as the document which corresponds to the will ohezt them and the objectives of signing this Agreat.

8.17. By signing this Agreement the representatif/¢he Lessor confirms that the meeting of creditof the Lessor h
approved this Agreement draft as it is being sigaad the Agreement draft is approved by decisiothefmeeting ¢
creditors of the Lessor.

ANNEXES TO THE AGREEMENT:

Annex No. 1- Copy of the Premises’ Plan

Annex No. 2— Plan of the Third Floor of the Building

Annex No. 3— Certificate of Delivery and Acceptance of therRises

Annex No. 4- Extract from the Register of Immovable Propeftihe State Enterprise Center of
Registers.

9. LEGAL ADDRESSES AND DETAILS OF THE PARTIES

LESSOR LESSEE

BUAB Apskaitos etika UAB Ubiquiti Néeworks Europe
Company number 1117 75915 Company nurd@es33724

50 Putvinskio Str., Kaunas Address: 32%anon Ave., Kaunas
LT19 4010 0425 0307 4176 E-mail: rasa@uabom

AB DNB bank Ph. 8-687-27482

Represented by bankruptcy administrator

UAB Imoniy bankroto administravimo ir teisinpaslaug biuras

E-mail k.stankus@adminbiuras.lt

Ph. 8-687-55922

/signed/ /signe
Kestutis Stankus Director Rasa JuediSi
A person authorized by the administrator




ANNEX No.3 to the 10 July 2013 Non-Residential Preises Lease Agreement
CERTIFICATE OF DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE PREMI SES

10 July 2013, Kaunas

BUAB Apskaitos etika, company number 1117 75915, legal address 50 WirBkio Str., Kaunas, represented by
administrator UABImoniy bankroto administravimo ir teisipipaslaug biuro (Company Bankruptcy Administration and L
Services Bureau), number of legal person 235238dyQauthorized person gstutis Stankus (basis for authorization is thi
March 2012 Resolution of Kaunas Regional Court thied30 April 2012 Power of Attorney No. @4/1), hereinafter referred to
the ‘Lessor’ on one side
and

UAB Ubiquity Networks Europe , number of legal person 300633724, address ofdfistered office 221 Savaneri
Ave., Kaunas, represented by Rasa JuodiSibe director, hereinafter referred to as thesseeon the other side,

The Lessor and the Lessee hereinafter may be edfewras the Parties’ and each individually as thd?arty’ , following
the Non-Residential Premises Lease agreement driteéoeon 10 July 2013 (hereinafter referred tdhes‘ Agreement’) hereby
agree as follows:

1. The Lessor hereby delivers to the Lessee fofdh to possess and use phemises of administrative purpose the tot:
area of which is 477 sq.m, located on the third floor of the building at aglsk 50 V.Putvinskio Str., the unique numbt
which is4400-0605-4380 owned by the Lessor.

2. The Lessee hereby undertakes the aforementionedige® The Lessee confirms that the conditiond®fremises to
delivered on the day of execution of this Certificeneets substantially the terms and conditiorth@®Agreement and al
that the Premises are suitable for use accorditigeio purpose set out in the Agreement.

3. The Parties state that at the time of signing f @ertificate the works which have been undertakethe Lessor und
the Paragraph 2.1 of the Agreement are not peridrihe measuring apparatus and shower cabin argstatled. Th
Lessor shall undertake to perform such works imetance with the terms set out in the Agreement.

4. The defects of the Premises which are presenteoddii of signing of this Certifica

Keys have not been handed, gate remote controgsaccards and the company ‘Apskaitos ethas not vacated tl
Premises
(specify, if any)

The readings of utility meters on the day of signiinis Certificate:
5.1. electricity: WHG:21422; WHP:1951; WHP:1692;
5.2. heating: 0000; 0000 (2 measuring apparatus);

5.3. .
LEGAL ADDRESSES AND DETAILS OF THE PARTIES
LESSOR LESSEE
BUAB Apskaitos etika UAB Ubiquiti Néeworks Europe

Company number 1117 75915 Company nuiddes33724




50 Putvinskio Str., Kaunas Address: 32%anon Ave., Kaunas

LT19 4010 0425 0307 4176 E-mail: rasa@gom
AB DNB bank Ph. 8-687-27482

Represented by bankruptcy administrator

UAB Imoniy bankroto administravimo ir teisinpaslaug biuras
E-mail k.stankus@adminbiuras.It

Ph. 8-687-55922

/signed/ /signe
Kestutis Stankus Director Rasa JuediSi
A person authorized by the administrator



Subsidiaries of the Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.

UAB “Devint’
Republic of Lithuania

Ubiquiti Cayman Limited

Cayman Islands

Ubiquiti International Holding Company Limited

Cayman Islands

Ubiquiti Networks Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd
The People's Republic of China

Ubiquiti Networks (India) Private Limited
Republic of India

Ubiquiti Networks International Limited

Hong Kong

Exhibit 21.1



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No-B33310 and No. 333-185958) of

Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. of our report dated Septemh3, 2013 relating to the consolidated finansiatements, which appears in this Form 10
K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California
September 13, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
RULE 13A-14(A) AND 15D-14(A) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Robert J. Pera, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKIbiquiti Networks, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theégos presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as define:
Exchange Act Rules 13a—15(e) and 15d-15(e)) aednat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoidge designed under our supervisiol
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtis report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentesisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigit occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céboirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a sagmiifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

September 13, 2013

/s/ Robert J. Pera

Robert J. Pera
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
RULE 13A-14(A) AND 15D-14(A) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Craig L. Foster, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKIbiquiti Networks, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theégos presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) omantiial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Ralgs—15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoidge designed under our supervisiol
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtis report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentesisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigit occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céboirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a sagmiifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

September 13, 2013

/sl Craig L. Foster

Craig L. Foster
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PR INCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Robert J. Pera, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.&xtidn 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@tteabarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Annual Report of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. on Form-KOfor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 fullyjnpties with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended, and that information coathin such Annual Report on Form KO-
fairly presents in all material respects the firiahcondition and results of operations of UbigiNgtworks, Inc.

Date: September 13, 2013

By: /sl Robert J. Pera
Name: Robert J. Pera
Title: Chief Executive Officer and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)

I, Craig L. Foster, certify, pursuant to 18 U.SSection 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 96dbarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Annual Report of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. on Form-KOfor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 fullyjnpdies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended, and that information coathin such Annual Report on Form KO-
fairly presents in all material respects the finahcondition and results of operations of Ubiqilgtworks, Inc.

Date: September 13, 2013

By: /sl Craig L. Foster
Name: Craig L. Foster
Title: Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)



